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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors’) of Viva China Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or "Viva China”, which together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given

in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM ("GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman

's

Statement £E¥kS

Dear Shareholders,

China’s urbanisation has driven the accelerating growth of
consumption appetite among its urbanites. In addition, an
increasingly younger consumer population is observed in
recent years, with quite a few studies suggested that the
most frequent domestic consumers are aged between 15
and 35, more attentive to sports and fitness, entertainment
and socialising as well as electronic games, and are switching
from merely commodities consumption to multifaceted
experiential consumption. Coupled with extensive sharing and
interaction via social platforms, young consumers nowadays
are more inclined to display their unique characters through
experiential consumption, thereby gaining recognition from
peers or even generating various consumption demands
among friends. In response to the emergence of experience-
oriented “prime consumer groups”, we intended to develop a
variety of venues and scenarios, activities and products that
are focused on leisure sports, esports, footwear and apparel,
and create more diversity in sports and life experience to
bring about consumption opportunities, so as to capitalise on
the huge potential market of “prime consumer groups”.
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Chairman's Statement E[E¥RS

Commitment to More Diversity in “Sports Experience”
for the Public

Development of Sports Destinations Network

We worked to develop quality sports destinations, particularly Li Ning Sports Parks
and Li Ning Sports Centres, in our communities and provide professional sports
fraining and services in an effort to proactively promote national physical fitness,
whilst enriching public’s experience and interactions in our sports destinations. In
2019, we managed to extend our sports destinations network to various places
nationwide at a faster pace. At the beginning of the first quarter of 2019, we
obtained the operating rights of Nantong Li Ning Sports Centre and Tianjin Li Ning
Sports Centre. The aforementioned sports centres were two of the five sports
destinations managed and operated by the Group during the Reporting Period,
which also included Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre and
Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park.

BORARBRITEEEESZ T
[EE R

IR FEE B 191 4

BN SHEITEBEMNRE BN LR
EFERERNZTEEYT L WIRHEHE
MEEEIIMRYE EREHERES
REEATRNBEBENM ZEBRN N —
Z—NF HPIRIMRN 2B & 1658
EREMMRSE F-FTEAEMRGTEAR
FEEHPORREFEBEHPOIEE
B-BRTUALEMMEES L RSB
ANAREEETERNEERREGMNTERE
BT FEESHPTOMEBERMMETELE
BEEAREREBNM-

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G R A 7]




.

Chairman's Statement EE RS

China will take successive steps to prepare for the 2022 Beijing
Winter Olympic Games and Hangzhou Asian Games, with greater
support in the pipeline. In view of this, the Group was an early
mover in taking the opportunity to actively develop its sports
destinations network in 2019. Nationwide, the Group has six
sports destinations under development, which are expected to
complete construction between 2020 and 2022 successively. We
anticipate to capitalise on such thriving sports events as a valuable
opportunity to engage more people in more diverse sports
experience by operating sports destinations that are open to the
public.
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Chairman's Statement E[E¥RS

Successtul Acquisition of lce-Skating Rinks

Apart from the organic growth in our sports parks and sports centres, the Group
also worked on mergers and acquisitions to expand its sports destinations
network., We anticipate the Beijing Winter Olympics to bring huge room of
development for the winter sports industry, with the training demand for various
levels of ice-skating to embrace further growth in particular. The Opinions on
Taking 2022 Beijing Winter Olympic Games Committee as the Opportunity to
Develop Winter Sports and the Implementation Outline for Engaging 300 Million
People with Winter Sports (2018-2022), two national policies issued in March
and September 2019 respectively, have demonstrated the objective of mobilising
300 million people nationwide to participate in winter sports by 2022, Hence, the
Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Rise Mode Investments Limited,
the operator of “All Star Skating Club”, at a consideration of HK$290 million in the
fourth quarter of 2019, The target group under acquisition, as one of the leading
chain-brands of indoor ice-skating rinks in the PRC, operates a total of 13 ice-
skating rinks in first and second-tier cities in the PRC and is mainly engaged in
providing ice-skating training services with a proven track record. We anticipate
that ice-skating rinks will bring positive returns by leveraging on Winter Olympics
and the rising public demand for ice-skating training and experience. On top of
the acquisition, the Group is now active in studying the possibility of acquiring
other ice-skating rinks and wishes to take hold of the expected development and
opportunities in the winter sports industry.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G R A 7]

BT W BB ok 55

Br TS RAES O ET A HKIE RN
I AEEEBRBHENAREERS B NS
BoBMBERILRELREAKSERNITES
REARNRERZER  LETREE B KIS
IFERBE— PR - ZFT-NF=ARN
Ao Rl EMmaE s (AR A2022F It R &R
ReATBRANBREAEEINER) &
(BE=FBALEKSEHEHRME (2018-
2022F) ) ERKRANFHN _ZE__FEH
EHEE-—BAZ2EATEHNEZ-H
b AEER T - NFEMOFLURE29E
BTRELE2HEBKELE | WFAE
BEERARZEPEHTRA - WEE Z
EEATRELNENBKGEHREZ
— NP — 4R T2 E HE13EE
TKISEEN N IR OB KIE RS - #E A K
MEBTE - BRMBEBKSEBENZE:
LA B R B KBS 5 AN /B Tk BE B 10 BB SRR FH
A REmMAWARR - Et B EEHE
B & o RS @ R IEFE AR A 7T UK AR A B K5
MAlaelE EEMBKFEFITEMNTBER
EES X



Coordination and Investment of Sports Competitions and Events

In its 2079 Annual Report of China’s Game Industry published at the end of
2019, GPC (Game Publication Committee) under the China Audio-video and
Digital Publishing Association indicated that the Chinese esports industry recorded
a total revenue of RMB94.73 billion and a user base of 440 million in 2019,
with a sustained growth momentum. On the other hand, the 2079 Global Esports
Industry Development Report published by Tencent E-Sports stated that 79% of
Chinese esports users were below the age of 35. Hence, committed to taking
hold of such esports resources that possess huge market potential, the Group
finished acquiring 80% ownership of “Snake Esports” and formally changed its
name to “LNG Esports” in the second quarter of 2019. The Group expected that
its investment and operation of an esports team under the League of Legends
Pro League (LPL), together with the application of its advantageously rich sports
resources and managerial experience, can boost the appreciation of competitions
amongst public spectators and their peripheral experience, while nurturing and
developing the relevant markets of young sports consumers.

Chairman's Statement E[E#RS
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Chairman's Statement E[E¥RS
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During the Reporting Period, we continued with the commercial operation

of certain authorisation for Chinese Basketball Association (CBA), and the
operation and marketing of streetball league “3+1 Basketball League”. By
doing so, we seek to promote the coordination of both professional and
grassroots sports competitions and events to cover the sports experience and
consumption demand of different groups of people.

By creating and optimising “sports experience” in various aspects, we wish
to not just generate positive returns for the Group, but hopefully attract
participants who love sports and leisure entertainment and pursue fashion
trends, particularly young target consumers, by stimulating their fervour
towards such experience and “sports lifestyle consumables” and ultimately
turning it into consumption.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G R A 7]




Chairman's Statement E[E#RS

Well-Positioned “Sports Lifestyle Consumables” Business

Issued by the State Council in September 2019, the Opinions on Facilitating
National Fitness and Sports Consumption and Promoting High-Quality
Development of the Sports Industry explicitly stated the requirements of optimising
sports consumption environment and issuing favourable consumption policies. As
the Group expects a wealth of untapped opportunities in the consumables market,
in relation to sports lifestyle in particular, we have been active in pushing forward
various potential projects in relation to consumables and negotiating merger and
acquisition opportunities, with special attention paid to sports, health and leisure-
related apparel and footwear brands. By far, we have commenced our new
sports, health and leisure consumables business, so as to create more enriched
experience and consumption opportunities for the public in respect of sport, health
and leisure.

Acknowledgment

Consistently committed to our aspirations, we take it as our mission to integrate
sports into daily life, communication and leisure consumption in communities and
the country at large. As Viva China, which is established as a company with sports
industry operations, enters its tenth year in 2020, the Group, devoted to its new
positioning and strategies, will focus on developing its two principal businesses to
offer all-rounded sports experience, services and consumables, in order to better
gather, promote and nurture the new target “prime consumer groups”, and create
greater value for Shareholders.

The extensive outbreak of Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia (COVID-19) across

the country at the beginning of 2020 is expected to exert certain impact on the
Chinese economy during the year. Nonetheless, our anticipation is that after the
epidemic, people will pay more attention to physical and mental health, gravitate
towards more daily exercise and have a stronger pursuit for a sustainable, healthy
way of life. This stays in line with the Group’s mission to advocate healthy lifestyle
and sports culture, which is expected to bring greater benefits to the mid to long-
term development of our business.

On behalf of our fellow Board members, | want to thank our staff for sticking

to their posts at all times. | would also like to extend my heartfelt thanks to our
Shareholders and business partners for their trust, loyalty and support to the
Group, and to our management and business teams for their contribution over the
past year.

Li Ning
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
27 March 2020, Hong Kong
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In 2019, the Group is dedicated to the strategy of developing two principal businesses,
namely 1) “sports experience”, including the operation, service provision and investment
of sports destinations, sports competitions and events as well as an esports club; and

2) “sports lifestyle consumables”, covering investment in and preparation for sports,
health and leisure-related consumables projects. During the Reporting Period, the Group
attained significant progress in the development of its two principal businesses.
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Sports Destinations Development

Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres

As of 31 December 2019, the Group managed and operated a total of five Li
Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres nationwide, which were located

in Yangzhou, Linyi, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay, Nantong and Tianjin respectively.
They offered a wide spectrum of indoor and outdoor venues and facilities for
popular sports and leisure activities, together with value-added services including
fraining, catering, retail and health management, as part of their consistent efforts
to practise the corporate mission of promoting diverse sports experiences and
advocating a healthy sports lifestyle across communities. As a brand, “Li Ning
Sports Park” has been highly commended by various local governments on
multiple occasions for its venue maintenance, operation and usage, which serves
as undisputable evidence for its social recognition.

In addition, new Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres are under
construction across the country, including Chilongnan Street District in Tianjin
Municipality, Nanyan Lake in Hefei City, Liwan District in Guangzhou City, Jianggan
District in Hangzhou City, Hushan District in Jiangshan City and Tongxiang

County in Jiaxing City. These new sports destinations are expected to complete
construction successively between 2020 and 2022,

Business Review 3¢ 7% [0 8
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Business Review 2 ¥ [0] g8

lce-skating Rinks

The Group was approved by way of poll at the EGM
held on 19 December 2019 for its acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Rise Mode Investments
Limited, the owner of a leading indoor ice-skating
chain-brand "All Star Skating Club” in the PRC, at a
consideration of HK$290 million. The acquisition was
completed by the end of December 2019.

With its operations commenced in 2008, All Star
Skating Club is principally engaged in the business of
managing and operating ice-skating rinks in the PRC.
It currently operates an aggregate of 13 ice-skating
rinks in first and second-tier Chinese cities including
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Tianjin,
Hangzhou, Suzhou, Wuhan and Haikou. Covering an
average operating area between 1,200 and 3,000
square metres, the ice-skating rinks are mainly located
in districts with high customer flow, such as large
shopping malls in central business districts, with an
aim to provide different communities with localised,
accessible and quality indoor ice-skating rinks.
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Apart from providing rental service of venue facilities and winter sports gears,
All Star Skating Club focuses on offering systematic winter sports training
programmes, coaching and interests classes for different age groups and
people at different skill levels. In its training programmes, All Star Skating Club
aligns with the teaching standard of Ice Skating Institute (ISI) as well as the
qualification ranking of International Skating Union (ISU), and has employed a
team of professional coaches comprising retired athletes of national professional
teams and overseas trainers. International partners are also introduced to offer
tailor-made winter sports training programmes and cultural exchange activities.
To promote the winter sports culture around China, All Star Skating Club also
sponsors and undertakes international, national and provincial winter sports
competitions and events from time to time.

The acquisition of All Star Skating Club will further boost the number, variety,
service offering and nationwide coverage of the Group’s sports destinations.
Leveraging All Star Skating Club’s well-established reputation and proven track
record in the winter sports industry, particularly its ability to capture the opportunity
of faster growth in the demand for ice-skating trainings under the 2022 Beijing
Winter Olympics, the Group expects the acquisition to generate a positive

revenue source, as well as create greater synergies and additional commercial
opportunities for its existing sports destinations network and other sports
resources.

Business Review 3 7% [0] &

BTRESHRESKSEGREEE 2
BHE %%Tﬂm*ﬁizﬁTHEM%‘?HEWD??ZTTI
KFEWATIREEZF IR KSESIFIIR
2 BB REB B RZHEAEEE K
Tz?f’z/é\.US')E’J&i%ﬁ LA K2 BB 8 Kk Bt B2 (1SU) Y

RFE WHERE %%Lm@@)ﬁ&/ﬁ
9|\ IR B A 2 BEHRE TSI
Mol ABIBR & 1ERH - 1Rt 1I|§HKE’J/7J<%?L
EF T8I A L M IE B - IR B R
B BREREBKESESHLERIER UL
kE2BIKSES L -

W2 AE B KELITGE—FPEETAEE
REEMNHM EHE R REKZEEE
FE-BEZHEBKELITNKFTEETT
¥MRUBERASAE LEEHTEE
/ﬁ/7kiag“ﬁﬁj:.§4%—fi7£|Eit/?'\x$ﬁﬁ
PRI A MBS NEBTEHRE EEES
IR IETE A B AZRR - Iﬁfﬁﬁzmtﬁmiﬁl
WEMEMEEERERE ZHEIRENE
*%%o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

17



Business Review 3¢ ¥% (O] 8

EEESTHABRKRE

== iz
e

—E-NFE-F AEBE TR [Snake
B R RIBLEE | Ms0% A W ERAE R
RBIINGE T B RS - BBRE K2 E
INGEE ST CARIERE AR R E) (IPUMEHRE
B BRABOGBEERAT S ENNER
BEEAR MREABNFERBEHETS -

EREEHNESET INGEHRBERIREHAR
LG IPLEZEHIE T MAHKE B2 M
“E-NFPEFEERBIXNNEAS
RE BBFENBHNE X EUMNER
HEBEBEREESRMIG  INGEHEBEA
EBF2M+—AMWPLEAERRTESE
ABREABES-

Goordination and Investment of
Sports Competitions and Events

Esports

In the second quarter of 2019, the Group finished acquiring 80% ownership
of “Snake Esports” and formally changed its name to “LNG Esports”. By
investing in and operating LNG, an esports team under the League of Legends
Pro League (LPL), we strive to take hold of such esports resources that boast
a huge market potential and develop a vibrant market out of young sports
CoNsumers.

Under the Group's operation, LNG Esports team obtained impressive results
in multiple LPL matches during the Reporting Period, including the sixth place
in 2019 LPL Summer Playoffs following its triumphant emergence from the
regular match, coupled with an outstanding score of 3:0 to thrash the world
champion team IG. In addition, LNG Esports team solo players attended the
LPL All-Stars Weekend in November and snatched the crown of Group Assassin
amongst Solo-King Participants.
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The Group also widened LNG's brand recognition v

and developed relevant consumption opportunities, A\ \

including various marketing campaigns on social media \V) />
and the launch of customised products with other > 7 |

brands. Besides, the LNG Esports team was arranged to
join a number of public charity activities to give back to
community. As a result, the LNG Esports team recorded
an excess of 520,000 followers on its official Weibo
account during the Reporting Period.

In January 2020, the LNG Esports home arena was
relocated to Yangcheng International Esports Center,
a world-class and established stadium in Suzhou. The
Group plans to further work on content development
for the LNG Esports home arena by leveraging years
of experience and resources in the traditional sports
industry, such as undertaking different types of
competitions, hosting offline activities and establishing
immersive esports culture spaces.
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Basketball

The Group engaged in commercial operation and
marketing for an IP event namely “3+1 Basketball
League” during the Reporting Period. By introducing
streetball match systems of “three versus three” and
“one on one”, the League entered the core business
districts and university grassroots basketball courts
in 24 cities across the country. The content of the
League, combined with hip-hop elements including
rap, street dance, music jockey and graffiti, is also
closely tied with intensive publicity via different online
social media platforms as well as experience in offline
activities. This infused the League with entertainment
elements and turned it into a gala of pop cultures
for young people, where participants could enjoy
more enriched sports communication, exclusive
products and recreational experience, and convert
such enjoyment into consumption. The recipients of
3+1 Basketball League included young basketball
players, key players of campus basketball, as well as
consumers who are fashion-savvy.
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Apart from that, the Group partook in the commercial o AEBRBERALEFBEESER
operation of certain authorisation for CBA (Chinese BT ECBA (P B FETRBEHE)
Basketball Association), the highest-ranking MR E v mEZE IRHEAHIEHE
professional basketball league in China, by providing EHRBEREG-

sponsorship and marketing-related services during the
Reporting Period.
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Sports| Lifestyle
Consumables
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During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
proceeded with a variety of potential projects in
relation to sports, health and leisure consumables and

conducted negotiation on possible M&A opportunities.
Currently, dedicated operation teams have been formed
to commence business on casual sports footwear,
apparel and accessories consumables, such as the
new apparel and footwear brand “LNG". By developing
products concerning sports, health and leisure, the
Group hopes to bring more diversity to sports and

life experience and thereby generate consumption
opportunities, so as to seize the huge potential market
of young consumers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees, customers and suppliers are crucial to the success of the Group. As
such, the Company has maintained a smooth communication with all stakeholders
to establish mutual trust, in pursuing outstanding environmental, social and
governance performance.

The Group adopts a people-oriented approach to formulate its human resource
policy, to provide employees with reasonable remuneration and welfare and make
adjustments when appropriate. Moreover, in addition to requiring employees to
comply with occupational safety rules and procedures, the Group also cares

for the well-being of employees by launching various staff caring programs for
employees to relax. The Group also offers employees with extensive training
programs to enhance their lateral skills, enabling them to have better development
opportunities in the long run.

The Group strives to provide goods and services of the best quality to our
customers. By listening to customers’ feedback, the Group has established
effective communication channels, and maintains a cordial relationship with its
customers. The Group believes that the success of the Group lies in quality of
service. Hence, the Group is committed to building an integrated sports platform
featured with spectating and participatory projects, aiming to meet the needs

of our customers with quality sports resources and involve the public in sports
events.

The Group dedicates itself to establishing a long-term partnership with its
suppliers. To maintain a cordial relationship, it is crucial that we ensure the
products and services provided by suppliers meet the specified requirements. The
Group has established strict procurement standards, performed regular quality
inspection to maintain the quality of products and services.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group attaches high importance to
environmental issues. Though the Group is not a high-pollution generated
enterprise, it actively integrates the concepts of environmental protection and
green building into different business segments as practicable as possible.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. In order to
minimise the environmental, social and governance risks, the Group operates its
business in a manner that satisfies the relevant laws and regulations in respect
of employee benefits, safety and environment. During the Reporting Period, we
have complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it
operates, i.e. the PRC and Hong Kong, in all material respects.

For more information about the measures adopted by the Group for environmental
protection and regulatory compliance during this financial year, please refer to the
environmental, social and governance report of this annual report.
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PROSPECTS

Given the global outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia (COVID-19) since
the beginning of 2020, China is expected to confront the epidemic-induced
suspension, relocation or postponement of a number of world-class sports events
scheduled to take place in the country during 2020, which happens to be a
“‘momentous year” for international sports competitions. Domestically, this may
deal a heavy blow to public sport atmosphere, leisure consumption and even

the entire economic landscape in 2020. As we expect, the epidemic will impose
certain impact on the Group’s principal business, particularly on the operation and
development of sports destinations (including sports parks/sports centres and ice-
skating rinks). The Group will not incur systematical issues given its consistently
healthy financial position, and active and timely countermeasures taken by the
Group, with business operations set to resume normality after the epidemic.

Furthermore, we expect that favourable policies for the sports industry will be
released and executed in 2020, the final year for the 13th Five-Year Development
Plan for the Sports Industry, whilst the country is preparing for the business
opportunities brought by the sports competitions to be held in 2022 in China.
Backed by a number of favourable national policies on specific sports items
(including esports and winter sports), sports venue operation and leisure sports
consumption, we predict a sustained positive trend for the prospect of the Group's
principal business.

Despite a multitude of challenges in 2020, the Group will adhere to its new
business positioning, and focus on developing “sports experience” and “sports
lifestyle consumables” businesses. The Group will engage in the operation,
development, merger and acquisition of various relevant sports destinations, sports
competitions and events, services and products, by revolving around a host of
dimensions such as leisure sports, esports, footwear and apparel, as well as food
and beverage for sports and health. Committed to growing its business model
into “multiple brands, categories and forms” on a long-term basis, the Group will
blend more diversity into sports experience and consumption opportunities, with
the hope of capitalising on the huge potential market of “prime consumer groups”
represented by health-conscious sports enthusiasts who are also savvy about
leisure and entertainment, hence creating value for Shareholders.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s consolidated revenue

was HK$625.0 million (2018: HK$1,134.6 million), representing a decrease

of 44.9%. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in sales

of construction materials. Gross profit of the Group for the year was HK$123.2
million (2018: HK$166.7 million), representing a decrease of HK$43.5 million or
26.1% as compared to the previous year which was in line with the decrease in
revenue but with lower percentage of decrement.

The Group’s other income and other gains-net for the year amounted to
HK$890.6 million (2018: HK$24.5 million). Other income and other gains-net
during the year was mainly attributable to the gain on disposal of 6.8% of Li Ning
Co Limited (“Li Ning Co") interest in an associate amounting to HK$817.4 million
(2018: nil), and the fair value gain arising from lower interest rate of return of
convertible notes to 8.5% per annum.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$47.7 million
(2018: HK$41.2 million), representing an increase of HK$6.5 million or 15.8%
as compared to the year of 2018. The increase was mainly due to additional
marketing and promotional expenditures and staff cost incurred as a result of the
new businesses acquired after scaling down the sales of construction materials
during the year, which was in line with our business expansion.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses together with net
impairment losses on financial assets (“Administrative Expenses”) incurred in the
year amounted to HK$355.8 million (2018: HK$154.0 million), which represents
an increase of HK$201.8 million or 131.0% as compared to the year of 2018.
The increase is mainly due to the one-off operating expenses and non-cash items,
including impairment loss of trade receivables and other receivables of HK$82.5
million, impairment loss of goodwill and intangible assets of HK$31.4 million,
impairment loss of investment in a joint venture of HK$17.4 million, amortisation
of intangible assets of HK$12.5 million, depreciation of right-of-use assets and
fixed assets of HK$12.7 million.
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Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$118.3 million (2018: HK$83.7
million), which represents an increase of 41.3%. The increase in finance costs
was primarily attributable to (i) no interest expense was capitalised into properties
under development during the year while there was capitalisation of interest
expense in prior year; and (il) interest expense in relation to the new adoption of
HKFRS 16 Leases.

The Group held 263,405,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co Limited (‘LI Ning
Co") and the convertible securities which carrying right of conversion into
approximately 137,797,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co whereas the Group
held approximately RMB204.2 million registered and paid-up capital of CITIC
Land Co., Ltd (“CITIC Land”) as at 31 December 2019, representing 16.3%
equity interests in Li Ning Co and 29% equity interests in CITIC Land, respectively
as well as 48.4% and 7.5% on the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2019, respectively.

Investment costs of Li Ning Co and CITIC Land as at year ended 31 December
2019 were HK$ 1,956.3 million and HK$357.4 million respectively. Dividend
received from Li Ning Co was HK$40.0 million during the year ended 31
December 2019. Please refer to Note 15 for the fair value of the investments.

Li Ning Co’s principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture,
sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories
in the PRC.

CITIC Land's principal activities include property development and operation;
property management; hotel investment and management; construction
project and facilities contracting and equipment installations; decoration units;
landscaping; property development consultancy.

Li Ning Co and CITIC Land are accounted for as associates of the Group. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted
to include the attributable share of associate’s results based on the financial
statements drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must
be no greater than three months. During the year, the Group shared the results of
Li Ning Co based on its adjusted financial results for the twelve months ended 30
September 2019 adjusted by any significant events or transactions for the period
from 1 October 2019 to 31 December 2019. There is no non-coterminous
period end for other associates and joint ventures.
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Li Ning Co’s adjusted net profit for the year amounted to HK$1,492.3 million
(2018: HK$778.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 91.7%. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and gross profit margin, control
over expense ratio and growth in gains from investment in wealth management
products and share of gain in relation to the disposal of a piece of land parcel
held by Double Happiness.

Li Ning Co will continue to promote the strategy of “Single Brand, Multi-
categories, Diversified Channels”, strengthen and improve the core business
focuses, remain devoted to create LI-NING's experience value, and focus on
enhancing efficiency in order to achieve healthy and sustainable profit growth
for the Company in the future. Backed by various favorable policies to support
the development of the sports industry and the consumption upgrade driven

by national economic growth, consumption concept of the general public has
changed gradually with more and more consumers giving great consideration

to product innovation and brand value. Along with the increasingly mature
consumption concept, consumption demand of people will become more refined
and diverse, which will pose even more challenges to the brand and product
competitiveness in the market. The global economy as well as the operation and
financial performance of Li Ning Co have also been affected inevitably, and the
outbreak of COVID-19 is posing severe challenges for the overall outlook for
2020. In the long run, people will become more concern about their health and
daily workout habits after this epidemic, hence more potentials of the industry will
be released.

Investment in Li Ning Co aligns with the Group’s strategy to expand its business
scope along the sports value chain in the PRC. The long term commitment to build
an integrated platform allows the Group to create synergies and reap crossover
benefits among its various business components to the greatest extent in the long
run, enabling the Group to explore further strategic development opportunities,
including sports marketing and sponsorship opportunities. Meanwhile, aligned
utilisation of resources in hand, including the sports talents or sports events and
sports destinations network, would be promoted between Li Ning Co and the
Group for growing their businesses together as well as possibly expanding the
markets for certain types of sports in China.

CITIC Land's net profit for the year amounted to HK$10.9 million (2018: net loss
HK$13.8 million). The turnaround was mainly attributable to the gain on disposal
of certain properties during the year.

By leveraging the Group’s existing sports resources and the “CITIC Land” brand’s
reputation, the Group can strengthen its execution capability in sports destinations
development in the PRC via the redevelopment project in central business district
in Beijing.
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During the year, the Group shared the profits less losses of associates and joint
ventures amounting to HK$342.1 million (2018: HK$182.3 million). The increase
was mainly due to the increase in contributions from Li Ning Co and Double
Happiness of HK$85.7 million and HK$63.8 million respectively in the current
year.

During the year, the Group has recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders
of HK$834.4 million comparing to a net profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$77.0 million for the year 2018. The significant increase was mainly due to
the gain on disposal of 6.8% interest in an associate (Li Ning Co) of HK$817.4
million and the increase in share of net profits of associates and joint ventures of
HK$159.8 million, but partially offset by the decrease in gross profit and increase
in Administrative Expenses and finance costs in the current year.

SEGMENT

Sports Destinations Development

Sports destinations development segment mainly comprises operation of sports
parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks; property development for sales and
investment; and sales of construction materials. Due to adjustment in corporate
strategy, the Group focused on developing and investing in sports destinations
and related opportunities with enormous growth prospect in China. Meanwhile, it
has largely scaled down the sales of construction materials and has fine-tuned its
operation policy to asset-light policy during the year.

The sports destinations development segment generated revenue totalling
HK$268.6 million (2018: HK$771.3 million) for the year ended 31 December
20719, which represents a decrease of HK$502.7 million or 65.2% as compared
to the year of 2018. The decrease in sports destinations development segment’s
revenue was mainly attributable to a decrease in sales of construction materials,
but partially net off by the increase in operating revenue of sports parks and
sports centres. The operating revenue of sports parks recorded an encouraging
growth of 229.8% during the year as compared to the prior year, driven by

the increase in sports training fees, venue facilities hiring income and sales of
merchandise through the operation of new sports parks and sports centres. The
segment revenue was mainly derived from the operations of sports park and
sports centres, and sales of goods as the Group continues to expand the sports
destinations network. Operation of ice-skating rinks will generate revenue to the
sports destinations development segment in the year of 2020. Taking into account
the expenses incurred for potential projects, this segment reported an operating
loss of HK$70.7 million (2018: operating profit of HK$10.2 million) during the
year which represented a decrease of HK$80.9 million. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in sales of construction materials, community development
consultancy service income and other one-off operating expenses compared with
the prior year.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G PR A F]

FR AEEDEBHEARREECE G
8 85 18 /2342,100,0008 T (—Z T — N\ F:
182,300,000/ ¢ ) ° ;%‘bu)ﬁiﬂmﬁézﬁiﬁ
ZE N A KA EE E B 9 BIE 5185,700,000
7 7T 563,800,000 7T

FR AEBEESESFE ARG F
834,400,000/ 70 T =& — \F B 15 ﬁe
@A ARG 5 R JF EE77,000,0007 T © 5%
AEEMDEZHRAFEHE —HHE
NE(EERA)Z68%ERMES 2 W
817,400,000 T R DB E R R KRG &
2 3% % M3 A0159,800,00058 7T - B H B E
FR A A R ATERE B R B 75 i AN 3 N4 8

7 &
EEEHEE

BBER E’Ui‘@?‘@%ﬁix/@%?&%ﬁ%ﬁ =X
o BIEREER  BBPLREKE FER
i’@?ﬁﬂ?ﬂiﬂxﬁ AR M S - B2
RBEELRARE AEEF)FTRPEFERE
BEHRBENERANSAEE B /9 FE R
B RAKRFARBEBREMEEREK I
ABRHBEEHEREEENRR -

HE-_Z—NWEF+t-_A=+—HLFE"

S B MR X% E £ 268,600,000
BT (—Z— )\&F 771,300,000 7T) r & —
T — 4 [ 4502,700,0005 7T 5(65.2% © 52
BEEMMERED IO /W’J\IKEEEEA
EMEER D 1El*|3 MREEA EL & W amig
MK - RAEETNEEE KEFHF
Do BEEIIRA - SEREHERARE
MHER SN FRESRLLERERE
FEx152208% 2 FEE IR AN AEERFE
EREEEMMMAL A REFTBREE

EEREFHFLNLE AKEREE B
/7kiﬁ%@%%?ﬁaEﬁi@?ﬂ?&"*ﬁ?izxﬁz
HEEN TR EREBEMLRE
)EIEEFEZE%EZ It D R F NG
E51870,700,0008 70 ( ZF — N\ F : & & %7 7
10,200,000 7T ) * 8 4>80,900,0007% 7T ° 3% &k
DPHETERREMEE R ERBARE
WAREM— R EEERAIBEFERD -



The Group’s long-term strategy is to build a comprehensive sports destination
network and it has been dedicating its effort to promote a sportive and healthy
lifestyle in the community. Echoing the PRC government’s strategy to promote
nationwide physical fitness, the Group actively seeks cooperation with different
prospective contracting parties, including local governments, property development
and construction companies, and established financial institutions by asset-light
means. The Group has been selecting suitable cooperation opportunities to invest
in and operate potential sports destination projects, including sports parks and
sports centres, and sports-related commercial opportunities.

In March 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shares in Joy Top
Management Limited, the operator of three of the sports destinations. During the
year, two sports destinations, namely Nantong Li Ning Sports Centre (located in
Gangzha District of Nantong City in Jiangsu Province) and Tianjin Li Ning Sports
Centre (located in Xiging District of Tianjin Municipality) commenced operation.
Both sports destinations are committed to promoting national fitness across their
respective neighborhoods, whilst bringing new sources of revenue for the Group
starting from the second quarter of 2019.

In December 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Rise Mode Investments Limited with 13 ice-skating rinks, at a
consideration of HK$290.0 million (further details of the transaction were set out
on page 34 of this report). Upon the completion of the transaction, the business
of the acquisition target is included in the sports destinations development
segment.

Sports

The sports segment currently encompasses coordination and investment of sports
competitions and events, management and operation of an esports club, sports
talent management, and sports-related marketing and consultancy services. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, our sports segment generated revenue
totalling HK$356.4 million (2018: HK$363.3 million), representing a slight
decrease of 1.9%. The decrease in sports segment’s revenue was mainly due to
the decrease in revenue generated from sports content production and distribution
but partially off set by additional revenue generated by esports business. The
sports segment recorded an operating profit of HK$22.9 million (2018: operating
profit of HK$51.9 million). The decrease in operating profit was mainly due to the
decrease in gross profit and increase in operating expenses mainly generated by
esports business acquired during the year.

It is the Group’s strategy to drive the establishment of an integrated sports
platform by leveraging the existing resources of its sports business. During the
year, the Group continued its effort to capture and maximise the commercial
values of its sports resources, and encourage social participation in sporting
activities through commercial management of popular sports events and
competitions, operation of an esports club, sports talent management, as well as
provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy services.
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In April 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in /& &5 = 48 4%
BB BR A &) for 80% ownership of “Snake Esports” (further details of the
transaction were set out on page 33 of this report) which was rebranding as “LNG
Esports” during the year. Upon the completion of the transaction, the esports
business of the acquisition target is included in the sports segment.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019, the net assets value of the Group has decreased to
HK$3,059.6 million from HK$3,934.5 million as at 31 December 2018. The
decrease was mainly due to the net effect of the payment of a special dividend of
HK$1,667.1 million and the gain on disposal of 6.8% interest in an associate (Li
Ning Co) amounting to HK$817.4 million during the year.

The total non-current assets of the Group has decreased from HK$3,867.7
million as at 31 December 2018 to HK$3,671.7 million as at 31 December
2019, which represents a decrease of HK$196.0 million. The decrease was
mainly brought about by the disposal of partial interest in an associate (Li Ning
Co) and the disposal of a subsidiary which held investment properties, but partially
offset by the increase in goodwill and intangible assets arose from the acquisition
of subsidiaries and the increase in recognition of right-of-use assets due to new
adoption HKFRS 16 Leases during the year.

Current assets of the Group recorded an increase by HK$1.5 million from
HK$1,193.3 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$1,194.8 million

as at the end of the year. The key components of the current assets at the
reporting date were cash and bank balances included restricted bank balances
of HK$652.6 million (2018: HK$380.7 million), stock of properties, and trade
debtors and bills receivable. The increase in the Group's cash and bank balance
was mainly due to the proceeds from bank loans and the consideration received
from the disposal of a subsidiary but partially offset by the payment of special
dividend during this year,
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The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were HK$327.6
million, representing an increase of HK$36.6 million or 12.6% from that as at 31
December 2018, As at 31 December 2019, the key components of non-current
liabilities were bank loan of HK$1,256.0 million and non-current lease liabilities
of HK$169.3 million, while prior year's key components of non-current liabilities
were the carrying amounts of the liability component of the convertible notes

of HK$819.6 million and non-current deferred income of HK$10.0 million. The
convertible notes were replaced by new bank loan with lower costs in December
2019,

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash inflows in operations for the current year of
HK$41.3 million, representing an increase of HK$182.5 million compared to last
year (2018: net cash outflows of HK$141.2 million). The increase in operating
cash inflows was mainly due to the increase in collection of trade debtors and
bills receivable, compared to last year. A net cash inflows in investing activities of
HK$1,595.1 million for the current year (2018: HK$57.4 million), representing
an increase of HK$1,537.7 million compared to last year. The investing cash
inflows in 2019 was mainly due to the proceeds from partial disposal of interest
in an associate and the proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary during the year,
while the investing cash inflows in 2018 was mainly due to the proceeds from
disposal of investment properties and dividend received from associates. A net
cash outflows from financing activities of HK$1,354.2 million for the current

year (2018: HK$20.2 million), representing an increase of HK$1,334.0 million
compared to last year. The financing cash outflows in 2019 was mainly due to
the dividend paid and redemption of convertible notes but partially offset by the
proceeds from bank loan during the year. The HK$778.0 million convertible notes
were repaid fully by the new bank loan proceeds. As a result, the cash and cash
equivalent of the Group as at 31 December 2019 increased by HK$268.6 million
from the beginning of the year.
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The Group had banking facilities of HK$1,648.5 million (2018: HK$460.0
million), of which HK$1,256.0 million has been utilised (2018: HK$40.0

million have been utilised) as at 31 December 2019, The Group’s gearing ratio
was approximately 0.20 (2018: 0.11) as at 31 December 2019. The Group
defines gearing ratio as ratio of net debt over equity plus net debt in which net
debt represents total bank and other borrowings less cash and bank balances
(including restricted bank balances). The current ratio (ratio of current assets to
current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was approximately 3.6
(2018: 4.1). The Group's gearing level and liquidity position has been maintained
at a healthy level as at the reporting date. It is the Group’s strategy to maintain a
healthy and effective gearing ratio in a range of O to 1.

Financial Management Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group’s treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in any speculative activities. As the
Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of the revenue and
trading transactions are settled in either HK$ or RMB. Accordingly, the majority of
the Group’s net current assets were denominated in either HK$ or RMB. Deposits
placed in various banks are mainly denominated in these two currencies. The
Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HKS$ in line with its future
business and investment plans. The policies in place to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are considered to be
effective with the current foreign currency risk still manageable. The Group has
assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has not entered into any
foreign exchange hedging arrangement during the year and as at the reporting
date.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, interests in an associate with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,065.1 million (2018: HK$875.7 million) had been charged
as security for a bank borrowing of a subsidiary.

Commitments for Property Development/Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had commitments totalling HK$590. 1
million in relation to capital contribution to the Sports Cultural Industry Fund,
associates and joint ventures and for property development in the PRC which were
contracted but not provided for (2018: HK$616.9 million).
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Material Transactions
The Group entered into the following material transactions:

(@)

On 25 March 2019 the Group announced the sale of 6.8% of the total (a)
issued share capital in Li Ning Co by way of placing. The placing completed

on 27 March 2019 and all the relevant sale shares were placed with net

proceeds of HK$1,719.7 million received. The placing represented an

opportunity to realise part of the investment by the Group in Li Ning Co.

As a result of the placing, the Group recorded a gain from partial sale of
investment in an associate which contributed to the significant increase in
the Group's attributable to owners for the reporting period as compared
to the corresponding period in 2018. The Group also derecognised the
carrying value of the associate proportionate to the percentage reduced,
reclassify a proportionate amount of the exchange fluctuation reserve
previously recognised to the consolidated financial statement. For detalils,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 March, 28
March, 9 April 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 6 May 2019.

On 9 April 2019, the Board declared a special dividend of HK$0.148 per (b)
share of the Company to the shareholders, amounting to approximately
HK$1,311.9 million in total, following the placing as a gesture of rewarding

their constant support to the Company, and approved a payment of an

equivalent amount of dividends declared by the Company to the holders

of the outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company in November

20713, on an as-converted hasis, amounting to approximately HK$355.2

million in total. Such payments were made on 10 May 2019. The

remaining proceeds in the amount of approximately HK$52.6 million from

the placing was applied as working capital of the Group.

In April 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest (c)
in J:/i/\iiﬁ 4RI A BR 2 A (which holds 80% equity interest
in _E/ERBEBERIE AR QA ata consideration of RMB89.2
million. Follovvmg the acquisition, the Group holds 80% ownership of
“Snake Esports” with a League of Legends (“LOL") team serving as a
backbone of League of Legends Pro League (LPL), the most established
and professional event under the leading Chinese e-sports series LOL. In
May 2019, “Snake Esports” has been formally renamed as “LNG Esports”
with a fresh team logo. The Group expects to leverage its extensive sports
resources and managerial experience to providing more professional
practices for the business model and long-term development of LNG as
well as the Chinese esports industry at large, in addition to creating value
and commercial opportunities for sustainable development.
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(d)  In December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of the entire issued
share capital in Shenyang Zhao Huan Modern Construction Industry Park
Limited (AR BIRREREX B AR A F]) , awholy-owned
subsidiary of the Group at a consideration of RMB87.0 million. The net
proceeds arising from the disposal will be used for working capital of the
Group.

(e)  In December 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Rise Mode Investments Limited at a consideration
of HK$290.0 million. Following the acquisition, Rise Mode Investments
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Rise Mode
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
business of management and operation of ice-skating rinks in the PRC. It
currently operates 13 ice-skating rinks across the PRC, particularly in first-
and second-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Suzhou and Wuhan, etc. The acquisition is a strategic
initiative in line with the Group’s business strategy of sports destinations
development, and will further diversify and enrich the sports destinations
portfolio of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund
contributions, medical benefits, housing benefits, education allowances and
discretionary share options issued based on their contribution to the Group. Staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$92.6 million (2018: HK$76.2 million). The Group also engages
professional consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the remuneration

policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the Group. As at 31
December 2019, the Group employed 659 full-time employees (2018 355) and
their remuneration was calculated with reference to the market rates.

Subsequent Event

Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 has inevitably created
certain impact towards our staff, suppliers and customers, particularly in China.
The outbreak of COVID-19 is a new emerging risk. In a baseline scenario, the
outbreak should be contained but led to certain impact in the operation of our
sports centres, sports parks and our newly acquired businesses, especially ice-
skating rinks, suspension or postponement of a number of sports competitions
and events in the first quarter of 2020. The Group expects that the facilities and
competitions will resume their normal operations in the second quarter of 2020.
The Group has carried out necessary measures to control its costs and keep our
staff in safety and will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operation results of
the Group.
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MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Ning, aged 57, has been the chairman (the “Chairman”), an executive
Director and a member of the executive committee of the Company since June
20710. Mr. Li was also appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee,
the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 15 March 2012,

22 May 2013 and 4 November 2019 respectively. He is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-NING brand. He has
been appointed as an executive director of Li Ning Co* since 4 March 2004 and
is currently its executive chairman. Mr. Li was appointed as interim chief executive
officer of Li Ning Co* on 18 March 2015 and has been re-designated as its joint
chief executive officer with effect from 2 September 2019. Mr. Li is the younger
brother of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive Director and the uncle of Mr. Li
Qilin, who is an executive Director.

Mr. Liis one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six
gold medals in men'’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” ("8 1% E ") in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic Games
in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making him
the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr. Li
became the Asian member of Athlete’'s Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men'’s
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring from his athlete career in 1989, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC.

He has dedicated the past over 20 years to the development of the business of

LN Group, achieving great contribution to the development of the sporting goods
industry in the PRC.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor's degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(dE KR E8) | an executive M.B.A. degree from Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University (b R K B2 J =& IR 2B ) | an honorary
doctorate in technology from Loughborough University in the United Kingdom and
an honorary degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary fellowship from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation” ( 2=
= E &) and his genuine support to the active and retired Chinese athletes and
coaches in establishing “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation” ( /P B &
FEHBEES ), which aims at providing subsidies for further education and
trainings for athletes and to support educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as “WFP Goodwill Ambassador Against
Hunger”.

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 51, is an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2010 and is
a director of JE LB EF 2R (4L ) AFE A a), Viva China Community
Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.
He was one of the founders of “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”. In
1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics Championships.

MR. LI QILIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 33, was appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2013,
Mr. Li has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director and appointed as a member of the executive committee of the Company
with effect from 13 November 2015. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2013, Mr. Li
is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has been a director of
Lead Ahead Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, since June 2010.

Mr. Li has been appointed as a non-executive director of Li Ning Co™ since 13
December 2017 and re-designated as its executive director with effect from 19
June 2018.

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and was an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited during the period from January
20710 to July 2013. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive
Director and the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director,
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MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 54, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2010. Mr. Ma
was a member of the nomination committee of the Company during the period
from 2 June 2010 to 15 March 2012. Mr. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in finance and administration. Mr. Ma has been employed by “Li Ning Foundation”
as the financial controller since 2005. From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Ma had been
employed first as accountant and later as financial and accounting manager of
Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.) Company Limited, which was a wholesaler and retailer
of Jianlibao drinks. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Ma was employed as assistant
accountant by Wong’s Circuits (PTH) Limited, which was a manufacturer of printed
circuit board and a subsidiary of Wong's International Holdings Limited* (Stock
Code: 0099).

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional

diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment &
foreign enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by School of Management
Zhongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MR. LI QING

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Li Qing, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of
both the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.

Li joined the Group in December 2019. Mr. Li has accumulated over 27 years

of experience in investment and asset management, merge and acquisition and
business operation in Hong Kong and PRC. Mr. Li graduated with an executive
M.B.A degree from Guanghua School of Management of Beijing University ( 4t 5
REBHEEFRER) in 2006.
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Mr. Li has been appointed as an executive director of Suzhou Crystal Clear
Chemical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 300655(SZSE)) in July 2016 and is currently

its chief strategy officer. The shares of this company are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He is currently the chairman of both Jiming Asset Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and Ma'anshan Jishipujiang Asset Management Co., Ltd, He
was appointed as the general manager of HuaAn Funds Management Limited from
May 2010 to September 2014 and a director of China Investment Information
Services Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from
July 2001 to June 2010.

MR. PAK WAI KEUNG, MARTIN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the audit committee, @ member of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pak join the
Group in February 2019. He has accumulated over 25 years of experience in
finance, accounting and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak graduated with

a Bachelor of Commerce from the Murdoch University, Australia in 1991 and

a Master of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2009. Mr. Pak is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. Pak has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nan
Nan Resources Enterprise Limited* (stock code: 1229), Convoy Global Holdings
Limited” (stock code: 1019), Dragon Mining Limited* (stock code: 1712) and
China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (stock code:1886) with effect from 19
September 2017, 8 December 2017, 5 November 2018 and 12 June 2019
respectively. Mr. Pak was an independent non-executive director of Ta Yang Group
Holdings Limited* (stock code: 1991) during the period from 27 April 2016

to 28 October 2018. The shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. From January 2017 to August 2018, Mr. Pak has
been an independent non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company
Limited, trading of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange has been
suspended since 21 June 2012 and was delisted on 23 August 2018.
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MR. WANG YAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and a member of both the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in July 2017.
He is currently a director of Sina Corporation (“SINA”, ticker: SINA), the shares of
which are listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market in the U.S. In April 1996, Mr. Wang
founded the SRSnet.com division of Beijing Stone Rich Sight Limited (currently
known as Beijing SINA Information Technology Co., Ltd.), one of the subsidiaries
of SINA and served as the head of SRS Internet Group from April 1996 to April
1999. From April 1999 to August 1999, Mr. Wang served as the executive
deputy general manager for production and business development in China of
SINA. From September 1999 to May 2001, Mr. Wang served as the general
manager of China operations of SINA. From June 2007 to May 2003, Mr. Wang
served as the president of SINA. From May 2003 to May 2006, Mr. Wang served
as the chief executive officer of SINA. Since May 2003, Mr. Wang has served as
a director of the board of SINA. From May 2006 to September 2012, Mr. Wang
served as the vice chairman, deputy chairman and chairman of the board of SINA.
Mr. Wang obtained a B.A. in Law from the Université Paris Il in France in July
1997,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin, being the executive Directors, are
also the senior management of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF FHREEERNEHHE

DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in details R A5 GEM_E T 4R BIZE17. 50AM K - I AR B &L

of the Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the E-T-AFNNA=ZTHILNEA 2+ HFR

Company for the six months ended 30 June 2019 are set out below: LSRR EEEREHFBHINOT

Name Details of Changes

& SHFE

Mr. Li Ning appointed as a member of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 4 November
2019. Details of the appointment was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4 November
2019
re-designated from interim chief executive officer to joint chief executive officer of Li Ning Co* with
effect from 2 September 2019

FEEYE B NF+ - AOREEZERARAFTMEECEZE -AHEZENFS
RARBIBHR-ZE-—NF+—-—AOBZAERKE
B NFAAZBRHEFEQRARETRAKAT REFEITHRAK

Mr. Chan Ling resigned as a member of each of the remuneration committee and the executive committee of the
Company with effect from 4 November 2019 and resigned as an executive Director with effect from
23 March 2020

PREESE & BT AF+ - ANBEHIARAIFMEEEZERNTEZEGZERA
T FE-ATZHEREHERTES

Mr. Li Qing appointed as an independent non-executive Director, and a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 20 December 2019, Details of his
appointment were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 December 2019

TR & E BT NFT AT HEEZERARAIBIINTESR EXEES

FHEE B -ARREZRINFRRARABHMA T NE+_A=-+
B2 RERE

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 20 December 2019

ERIESEAE E-E - NE+ AT HRERHEARAIBUFNTEE EXEZTE 2 KM
ZEBZE
the shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange AR 2 R BB AT BT

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G PR A F]



The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) sports competition
and event production and management; (i) operation of an e-sports club;

(iii) sports talent management; (iv) provision of sports-related marketing and
consultancy service; (v) operation of sports destinations (including sports parks,
sports centres, and ice-skating rinks); and (vi) development, design and sale of
sports, health and leisure consumables.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 31 December 2019
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review and the Financial
Review of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 108 to 208.

On 10 May 2019, a special dividend of HK$0.148 per Share was paid to the
Shareholders and an equivalent amount of the special dividend was paid to the
holders of the issued and outstanding convertible bonds of the Company on an
as-converted basis. The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019,

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company recognizes the importance of maximizing return to Shareholders
and believes that driving growth creates significant value to Shareholders. The
Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective of achieving right
balance of the amount of dividend and the amount of profits retained in the
business for various purposes. The Board would consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend:—

) financial results of the Company;

) Shareholders’ interests;

) general business conditions, strategies and future expansion needs;
)

)

o O T O

the Company’s capital requirements;

e)  the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its subsidiaries;

(f) possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the Company; and
(g)  other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable
laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

Reportofithe]Directors

E o Aok

EEEMRERE—_TNF
BLtEEZESTEREN E%&W%ﬁ§°

Egiﬁﬁiﬁ S
ARARAMEARE RIS (B

T figl D B R
mw@@aﬁmwmw
B
W 5
- mg
@E
X
ﬁ »
NI
-y
% m
==
=
a1~
\I}'@
Koot
—~fii
= my
5 po

S
-5

s
/)
¢

4t
o
el
jqq

i
gL
%
=
S

Py
il
%FFFH-
[ | |
Skom
11
m-+

N
He I
S

S
S A

s
=l
it oy |
SUd?\

]
0

%GR

>

A N

S 58

51

(@)

[

8

&
/mH

77

VAR

_F:H
=
m
o+
£
B
5>
al]

JiTa=s
B S
el
NES
=5
T
3 =

wwﬁ#
HE
=

=
&

¥

K

il

|1 bk
ST 2

— o} > 5 S
| 1Rt i
m-B 2L h =T

RS R
=t Etiﬁ/

IR B BUR

$@ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%$ﬂ S AE R - W ARE
HBEBIERERRRAEBRENEE K
2R BERMBBEECR - §E#II AERRE

&ﬁmﬂﬂﬁxﬁigﬁgﬁﬂ ST AR

[
Bk
\}éﬂ'_l,
i
3
W

s AV
o | I8

j.

=%
=
Vi
&
=
X
ClIt
o

[13

32

MM T - EF N IR EHRKE
RERHZEBIATEE:

PAN/NSTE L RS ¥

IR M 2

‘ %ﬂ *E&*X%@m*
i iﬁﬁ/

ﬁ$ AR IR

AIRBEe B RANER

(g) RANEEREME = -

IR BB IR 78 AT AR 8 R OR R AN A Rl AR A

=
b

o O T O
el S
EE%

kel
il
58
D

EI

e

o <0 e 55 Bt Dt
ol

it I B O 1D 0D R

i)
el
o>
[\Yay
&

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

1



L2

Report of the Directors EE S iRE

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 210 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 16,408,000 Shares upon exercise of
share options pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme. The consideration
received in aggregate for issue of Shares upon the aforesaid exercise of share
options amounted to HK$9,197,600. The convertible note in the aggregate
amount of HK$778,000,000 had been fully redeemed in December 2019,

Details of the share capital, the perpetual convertible bonds and the convertible
note during the year are set out in Notes 29, 31 and 27 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

In December 2016, the Company had issued to Lake Tai Investment Holdings
Limited (“Lake Tai", an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.) the convertible note in the aggregate principal amount

of HK$778,000,000 (the “Convertible Note") bearing an interest at the rate of
5% per annum and Lake Tai had paid HK$778,000,000 for subscription of the
Convertible Note pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 5 December 2016
entered into between the Company and Lake Tai (the “Subscription Agreement”).
The Convertible Note is convertible in full at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.840 per Share into a maximum of 926,190,476 Shares. The details of the
issuance of the Convertible Note were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 5 December 2016.
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The Convertible Notes have been redeemed on 10 December 2019 and none
of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes has been converted into
conversion Shares. The Company redeemed the outstanding Convertible Notes in
whole at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount
of HK$778,000,000 together with all accrued and unpaid interests thereon

plus an additional amount resulting in an internal rate of return on the amount

of the Convertible Notes being redeemed at 8.5% per annum and completed

all relevant procedures thereafter pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Notes (as amended by the deed dated 27 November 2019 entered
into between the Company and Lake Tai) (the “Full Redemption”). Following the
Full Redemption, the Convertible Notes have been cancelled in whole and the
Company is discharged from all of its obligations under and in respect of the
Convertible Notes. The details of the Full Redemption of the Convertible Notes
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 November 2019 and 12
December 2019,

For the year ended 31 December 2019, save for the Convertible Note, the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds and the Share Option Scheme (as set out in this section
and the sections of “Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” and
“Share Option Scheme” in this report), the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end
of the year.
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RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$99,324,000 (2018: HK$1,784,280,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 111 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers (including LN
Group) accounted for approximately 85% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 51% of the
total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
68% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 32% of the total purchases.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to have
personal interest in 11,148,396 LN Shares and 7,482,180 unvested restricted
LN Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co, which in
aggregate amounted to 18,630,576 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares
(representing approximately 0.80% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li
Ning Co as at 31 December 2019). Mr. Li Ning is also the executive chairman,
the joint chief executive officer and an executive director of Li Ning Co. As at 31
December 2019, Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director, was also deemed under Part
XV of the SFO to have personal interest in 215,200 LN Shares and 860,800
unvested restricted LN Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li
Ning Co, which in aggregate amounted to 1,076,000 LN Shares and underlying
LN Shares (representing approximately 0.05% shareholding interest in the share
capital of Li Ning Co as at 31 December 2019). He is also an executive director
of Li Ning Co.

Save as disclosed above for the purpose of the Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing
Rules, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.

REDEMPTION OR PURCHASE OR CANCELLATION OF
REDEEMABLE SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Equity-Linked Agreements”, there
was no redemption, purchase or cancellation by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of any redeemable securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chunyang
Mr. Li Qilin
Mr. Chan Ling
(resigned with effect from 23 March 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Wing Man
Mr. Chan James
(resigned with effect from 28 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing

(appointed with effect from 20 December 2019)
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin

(appointed with effect from 13 February 2019)
Mr. Wang Yan
Mr. Chen Johnny

(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent

(resigned with effect from 20 December 2019)

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Wing Man and Mr. Wang

Yan will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for
re-election in accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of
association of the Company and pursuant to Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Mr. Li Qing will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election in
accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the Company. Further
particulars of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general
meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent together with this
annual report. All other existing Directors shall continue in office.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 35 to 40 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company's or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its
connected entities had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who,

as the Board or a committee comprising Directors and members of the senior
management of the Company (the "Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the Board or the Committee
(as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for period of
10 years commencing on 29 June 2010.
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The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company
may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company under the limit,
as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders. The Scheme Mandate
Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Shares following the approval of refreshment by
the Shareholders on 16 June 2017. As at the date of this report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 752,060,472, representing
8.48% of the existing number of issued Shares.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

is determinable by the Board or the Committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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Movement of the share options under the Scheme outstanding as at the end of RBEFELEER & BB T R ARITHEE
the reporting year are as follows: PetEz ZEhamT
Number of Share Options
REHE
Cancelled/
Balance Granted Exercised lapsed Balance
as at during during during as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2019 the year the year the year 1 31.12.2019
RZZ-NF
RZB-NF . TZA=t-AH
R AH —-B-R&&% REARHE RERTHE RERTHE /K o &e
Directors
=
LI Ning 02.07.2013 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000 -
% 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - (3,000,000 3,000,000
LI Chunyang 02.07.2013 13,000,000 - - (13,000,000) -
XY 20.01.2017 20,000,000 - - (10,000,000) 10,000,000%¢
LI Qilin 02.07.2013 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000 -
4 20.01.2017 87,000,000 - - (43,500,000) 43,500,000%¢)
MA Wing Man 02.07.2013 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
HikX 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - (3,000,000) 3,000,000
CHAN Ling (resigned with effect from
23 March 2020) 02.07.2013 15,000,000 - - (15,000,000 -
BE(B-2-2F=-A=1=H
RBEfT) 20.01.2017 40,000,000 - - (20,000,000) 20,000,00020)
192,000,000 - (1,500,000) 1@ (111,000,000) 79,500,000
Other employees
HitfEE
In aggregee 06.00.2010 2,400,000¢ - - (2,400,000) -
(=K
n: qurgregate 02.07.2013 23,500,000 - (9,096,000) (14,404,000) -
=k
\/r;eigrgregate 20.06.2014 9,608,000 - - (8,304,000 1,304,000
=K
n: qurgregate 20.01.2017 42,280,000 - (176,000) (39,704,000) 2,400,000
(=K
Ilnka%gregate 05.09.2018 60,000,000© - - (60,000,000 -
(=K
\gqgrgregate 15.08.2019 - 26,000,000 - - 26,000,0007
(=K
Ilnka‘ggregate 06.09.2019 - 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000®
(=K
137,788,000 66,000,000 (9,272,000) "0 (124,812,000) 69,704,000
Other grantees
fhEREA
IleLnggregate 02.07.2013 35,880,000 - (2,500,000) (33,380,000) -
(=K
\E\algrgregate 20.01.2017 149,708,000 - (3,136,000 (74,622,000 71,950,000
=K
185,588,000 - 5,636,000)7 (108,002,000) 71,950,000
515,376,000 66,000,000 (16,408,000) (343,814,000) 221,154,000
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Exercisable period: from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. W)

(a)

The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i) 2)
3,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to

19 January 2019; (i) 1,500,000 share options with exercisable period from

20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii) 1,500,000 share options

with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021. The

number of share options under (i), (i) and (iii) of this note was 0, 1,500,000

and 1,500,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.

The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i)
20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017
to 19 January 2019; (i) 10,000,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii) 10,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January
2021. The number of share options under (i), (i) and (ifi) of this note was O,
10,000,000 and 10,000,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.

The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i)
10,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017
to 19 January 2019; (i) 5,000,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii) 5,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January
2021. The number of share options under (i), (i) and (ifi) of this note was O,
5,000,000 and 5,000,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.

The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i)
43,500,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017
to 19 January 2019; (i) 21,750,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii) 21,750,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January
2021. The number of share options under (i), (i) and (ifi) of this note was O,
21,750,000 and 21,750,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.

TEH: —T-—REFLAZHE-Z-NF

+tHA—HB-

(@) —hFE—A—B BRERRE
ATEE: (TTEMR_FT—EF—
RZ+BEZZ-—NF—A+tNLEBZ
3,000,00017 i A% # ||)T:J@EHE7%_T
—NF-AZ+RH=E —ZF—H

+hB2Z1, 5000001‘%1&% &m TT
FHAE-—ZE—NF—A=-tAZ=
——%—AF+hB21, 5000001\5%1&
HE o ZN B EE (1) ~ (i) K (i) 1B 2 B AR A 8 B
R-ZE—HhE+-A=+—HD3A
017 ~ 1,500,0001% X 1,500,00015 °

—E-hF—A—B BRESR
UWTEE: ((fTERAE-ZT—tF—
BE-+HE-Z—AF—AF+NBZ
20,000,0001) BERR & : (NfTFEHAA -
—NE—fF-+BE-ZET-_FTF—A
+ 71 B 210,000,00017 B8 A& 42+ K (i) 1T
FHAE-—ZE—NF—_A=-tAZ=Z

——%F— A+ .8 210,000,00017 88§
ﬁé AP EE () ~ (i) R (i) 3B 2 BB AR A #R B

—E-hF+-_A=+—HDH A
of +10,000,0001% %.10,000,00015 °

—nE—A—8 BRI
LT &E: (T EBA=E—+E—

RZ+HRE=-Z— ﬂi—ﬂ‘ﬂlﬁz

10,000,00017 B& A 4 (|i)fﬂ§iﬁﬁ7% -
—NE—AF-+BE-_ZE-_TEFE— ﬂ

+7LE1250000001‘H§H§$%E &mﬁ
FHAE-—ZE—NF—A=-tAZ=
——F— H+n525oooooo1\ﬁﬁﬂx
HE o ZR B 5 (1) () Rz (i) B 2 BE PR RE B B
R-ZZE—-HhE+-A=+—HD3A
017 ~ 5,000,00017 £5,000,00015 °

—hWF—A—B BERESRE
UWTEE: ((fTEHAEA-ZT—tF—
A-+HE-Z— ﬂi—ﬂﬂmz
43,500,00019) B& A% 1 (|i)fﬂ§iﬁﬁ7% -=
—N\E—A=+H=Z —EF— ﬂ
+ A B 221,750, ooof\ﬁﬁﬂxﬁ; &(m TT
FHAE-—ZTE—NF—A=-tAZ=
——%—A+hBzo1, 7500001‘5%1&
HE o ZN B EE (1) ~ (i) K (i) 1B 2 B AR A 8 B
R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—HDH A
017 ~ 21,750,0001% %%.21,750,00017 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

49



Report of the Directors EE S iRE

(38)  The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i) 1,200,000 3)
share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2014 to 5 September
2019; and (i) 1,200,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September
2015 to 5 September 2020.

(4)  The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i) 4,804,000 (4)
share options with exercisable period from 20 June 2016 to 19 June 2019; and
(ii) 4,804,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 June 2017 to 19
June 2020. The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and
1,304,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.

(5)  The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i) 20,880,000 5)
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019;
(i) 10,700,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19
January 2020; and (iii) 10,700,000 share options with exercisable period from 20
January 2019 to 19 January 2021. The number of share options under (i), (i) and
(iif) of this note was 0, 1,200,000 and 1,200,000 respectively as at 31 December
2019,

(6)  The share options comprised the following: (i) 20,000,000 share options with (6)
exercisable period from 5 September 2019 to 4 September 2021; (i) 20,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 5 September 2020 to 4 September
2022; and (i) 20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5
September 2021 to 4 September 2023.

(7) On 15 August 2019, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a (7)
total of 26,000,000 Shares pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the aforesaid share
options were granted was HK$0.485. The share options comprised the following:
(i) 20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5 September 2019 to
4 September 2021; (ii) 2,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 15
August 2020 to 14 August 2022; (iii) 2,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 15 August 2027 to 14 August 2023; and (iv) 2,000,000 share options
with exercisable period from 15 August 2022 to 14 August 2024,
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On 6 September 2019, the Company granted share options entitling subscription (8)
of a total of 40,000,000 Shares pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the

closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the aforesaid share

options were granted was HK$0.49. The share options comprised of the following:

(iy 20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5 September 2020 to 4
September 2022; and (i) 20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5
September 2027 to 4 September 2023,

The share options as at 1 January 2019 comprised the following: (i) 74,758,000 9)
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019;

(i) 37,475,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to

19 January 2020; and (iil) 37,475,000 share options with exercisable period from

20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021. The number of share options under (i), (ii)

and (iii) of this note was 0, 35,975,000 and 35,975,000 respectively as at 31

December 2019.

The Company cancelled 60,000,000 share options which were granted on 5 (10)
September 2018. There were 283,814,000 share options lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

(@) The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which amn
the share options were exercised was HK$0.79.

(b)  The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$0.69.

(c) The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$0.74.

The exercise prices of the share options are as follows: (12)

Date of Grant

ATE—NFAANB RARBEBER
REFTEI I B T # ) AT 3R B 4 $£40,000,000
RE (D 2 BRI AE - B D B E il BE AR i &
Bz B EBAT 2 T B B0.4978 7T - BE IR i
BEATEE: (TEHE-Z-_ZEFNA
ABE-ZT = —4 1 AMA 220,000,000/
B RiTERAE-_S-_—FhLAAH
ZE-Z - =% A AMHE Z20,000,0001 & i
1 o

AT —NF—A—BZBERESEAT
FIE: ('%ﬂfﬁﬁi%:i@ tF—HA=+8H
E-FT—NF— A+ B 2747580001 88
Hﬁg (u)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ - N\F—HA=-+H
E-E 2T F— A+ .H237,475,0001) &
R R(NVTHERAE-_ZT—hAhF—A =+
A== —%— A+ NHz374750001%
BE RS HE © AN B B ()~ () R (i) B < BB A AE EX B
ﬁé:i@—ﬂi+:ﬁz+—ﬁ%%\ﬁ%o@~
35,975,0001% }.35,975,00017 e
ARAAEAER-_ZE— N \FALARAERD
#960,000,00010 BERR#E - RELZE — T — L F
+=—A=+—HIFE 52838140000 &
F% HE B SR e

(@) REEIBEREETE BB 2 NEF
HU (B A0.795 T

) PEERBREETEBHRZNEF
TR (B /0698 7T ©

€ HREEBREETE B 2 NEF
B (B B0 747 T

BREZITEEST:

Exercise Price per Share (HKS)

5 i 6 SRITEE (BR)
06.09.2010 415
02.07.2013 0.50
20.06.2014 0.80
20.01.2017 0.80
05.09.2018 0.94
15.08.2019 0.478
06.09.2019 0.49
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

Long positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture
of the Company

EERTHABRAQFR AR
ZEZROREEAROEEERZ
BERAR

RZE-NF+_A=+—HB ARAZE

ERTHRBHNARRIREREER ( E&
REHKHEEMEXVER) 2 - 8K G5
MEEES BEBARBESMBEIEIE
XVEREE7 R B8 ER A& AN R B M Bt XX Al 2 #E
mERARE ( BREARAES RITHBHBE
BH RGO B BIE X%ﬁ?ﬁ%iﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ZE@E&D(F) y%‘/,\&anaﬁﬁ/\z’g
BIEFSFRBEGOELGMTEE Eﬂ%
2R R E  SIRIEGEM E AR BIZE5.46 2
SO B ESEE v R EREANS
ARARIRBRT 2 EmRARIT

REQXTDRSD - HEROREEEZHR

Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held .
ke HERGEE Approximate
percentage of
Nature of interests shareholding
BERitE Number of as at
Personal Corporate share 31 December
Directors Capacity interest interest options held® Total interests 2019
RZZ-NF
+ZA=+-H
it m%&%
= 5t BAER ARERE  BREHA BRAE R
Mr. LI Nin& Beneficial owner 21,508,000 - 3,000,000
PR Fm%fAud 8,212,443 1511
nterest of controlle - 212,443,151 - 0
corporemon 8,236,951,151 92.92%
THEEER
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneficial owner 13,067,669 - 10,000,000 23,067,669 0.26%
FEGAE ExBEEA
M. LI Qlilin Beneficiary of frusts 6,080,022,769% - -
FTEBEE ERAXEA
Beneficial owner - - 43,500,000 6,123,622,769 69.08%
Enl
Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 1,544,000 - 3,000,000 4,644,000 0.05%
HAXEE EnEAA
Mr. CHAN Ling (resigned with effect Beneficial owner 63,287,669 - 20,000,000 83,287,669 0.94%
rom 23 March 2020) )
ExE(BZZ_TF EHBAA
—H T=BRFET)
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Notes: B 5 -

1. Mr. LiNing is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 8,212,443,151 1. ZFEEAEFEBLAT M Lead Ahead Limited ([ Lead
Shares in aggregate through his interests in Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead Ahead"), Ahead |) ~ Victory Mind Assets Limited ([ Victory
Victory Mind Assets Limited (“Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management Mind Assets ] ) 2 Dragon City Management (PTC)
(PTC) Limited (“Dragon City"), respectively as follows: Limited ( [Dragon City ] ) %> Bl %5 & 4 2 M # 4%

BEEA A $£8,212,443 151 & 15 4F B 2 #E

(@  thelong position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is (@  2,132,420,3828% % {7 &F & FaLead Ahead
owned as 10 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also 5 Mlead Ahead i ZEB R E N H

a director of Lead Ahead:; P A B B 60% R 40% AR HE - 28 S

A I8 A lLead Ahead 2 B 5

() the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets () Victory Mind Assets# 5 2,728,582,7698%
is interested in comprises (i) 1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind [0 iF 2 #E s - & B3 ()Victory Mind
Assets and (ii) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis of AssetsFT A 21,680,022, 769 k% I 17

a full exercise of conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per FBEARRRTR=_ZE—=F+—A

Share attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by the [AVictory Mind Assets®% 17 2 A #2 % (&
Company in November 2013, Victory Mind Assets is owned as to 57% by HFRM S SR ERERETRR

Ace Leader Holdings Limited (“Ace Leader”) and 38% by Jumbo Top Group 150.3258 L E B B AT E T ] T 31T
Limited (“Jumbo Top"). All shares of Ace Leader are held by TMF (Cayman) 2.1,048,560,0000% A% 1% © Victory Mind

Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning Assets?y Bl FAce Leader Holdings Limited

is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such ([Ace Leader ) & Jumbo Top Group
2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of each of Victory Mind Limited ( ['Jumbo Top J ) #EH&57% &% 38% °
Assets and Ace Leader; and Ace Leader ZPA% {9 A TMF (Cayman) Ltd.

([IMF) A BB EREZZTEAED
BHE - TBEELEBZETLZAIA
A It R &R b2, 728,582, 7698% %
19 PR B HE 25 - 22 45 4 B Victory Mind
Assets N Ace Leader & B2 B E &
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(c) the long position of 3,351,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is
interested in comprises (i) 2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City
and (i) 1,357,440,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full
exercise of conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share
attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the Company in
November 2013. Dragon City is interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares
in its capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as
to 60% by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of separate
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and
a founder of the unit trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
3,351,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of Dragon City.

2. See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.

3. These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective
Directors, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2019, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors"), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012,
for the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by
the issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares
and to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds") which
are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject

to adjustment provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible
Bonds. All Initial Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares
on 6 June 2014,

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the “Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Eamn-
out Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon
City in November 2013 subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of
the Earn-out Convertible Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that
certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Earn-out Convertible
Bonds are convertible into 2,400,000,000 Shares at an initial conversion

price of HK$0.325 per Share. On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing

the undertaking has been met and the Company has released all the Earn-out
Convertible Bonds held by the Vendors in accordance with the terms of the Deed.

Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, his
brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director. Dragon City is the
trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li
Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of Mr.
Li Ning.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Report of the Directors EE B iRE

ESREROIEEE 2EF

$’ &) E2Victory Mind Assets & Dragon City
B ) ([ERH J)EA LT — _F+ A
%‘sz%“ Epam ([REHBE])
T IE 4R (E1,358,507,4007 T U B8
266,374,000 x$ B3 15 ZME$* A& B
BB TIRARA25.227% (B T ——F+—
ASERK) - HEREE D %'JiﬁiﬂﬁVictory Mind
Assets (L /p —% B 77 ) #171,780,022,769%
f% 15 K [ADragon City (3 —RE 7 ) BETA &
%ﬁ;@&aaooo,ooo;‘%ﬁzE%tt;&t‘mﬁﬁﬁ%%
F([EHaIBRBRES]) (NPEREREE
f& A% 150.32578 7 » tEZRR IR B it A] ] AR (& 5
ZIEFREGETUAABR) AR ETIN -5
AR ESER - —MENANBEY
H,#52,400,000,0000% P17 ©

BEEKEHBERAQRAEEIR - —=
ﬁ/\ﬁ_‘f—lﬂ AV Z2RE([2E]) AR
AR ZF —=F+— AR Victory Mind AssetsZ&
17754 %8 /5340,782,00058 7T 2 3F E T A F B
Nr R ESE (BN DTRERES]) &
F'EﬂDragon CityB$ 17 AN & B8 45439,218,00078 7T 2
Ik 7‘]7?‘*‘&5%"&%?%%(@?@%
HEAR WEEEE2E :FféfEETTﬂEZE
EX E'J*B > & A jJ—HﬁHYJE%‘—f Be AR
BYAQRRDHEBRT BFEHAIBRKRES
AP ERETRRMNOIB TERA
2,400,000,0008% B 7 « 78 —F — LI 73 +
H S@BREABENIEGEDER MARAER
?F;@%’]E’Jﬂ%ﬂ(ﬁﬂ?aﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂﬁ%
AR ES -

Victory Mind Assets e 3 {8 BY 5 {5 5T #) 2 7] X 5E
ABERE MEBNBELT2ZR )\i’J’j%
TEEE (RTES EFERTBER) E
REFAAE RN ETEE AL S
Z%‘«E%ﬁfc,% > Dragon Citye — BB FFE2 X

CHERZEMNAMEARKEAES
ﬁﬁﬁlﬂl%ﬁﬂ&%Z*‘/\)\ﬂ@%? T A
THEEERTEHBIESBZRKEKE -F
BB TEATELEZRTREFEAEZRE
T

B EX R ARG (Bt El | — BT E
%éﬂ\'$’D\ETE’$¢WEHH¢F”1$E&4EF%TEM
SEEAHBARARBBRNDKEEIZM SR 2
%ﬂ*ﬁ?&%*ﬁﬁfﬂ%&ﬂ&%%ﬂ A

/\%G—

T

B+
»wﬁﬁ

\
,U]]

\.\.

R A HREATAAH B A RS A E R AR
HAERRRMEBA T)ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ:&dﬂ?iﬂ#ﬁl

1%%%%@%)\&@%@%/\@ﬁ%za%ﬁg
FI] o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

55



56

Report of the Directors EE S iRE

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

ERBRRRENzER

BRAREAEEEIN RABREMMME
X B AR AR OR sk B AR AP B A R R AE
i B AT AR B R A KIS iR R
Rk E A M8 2 B[R AR 1 B sk E AL AR /B
RERHRE ZEFRERAEH -

FTERRREMALTRERFRE
ZHEBERKR

R_E-NF+_A=+—B BEEHR
B EXFAEBEZ AR ERRITRAE
HE 2 EmLORRIN AT AL RARAR
0 &,/ SRR T B OB A R AR IR
Er LB GG E306IFAFE 2 E LMk
ERTTHEARARF ZERZNRE

RROREBRGZHR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at

Capacity Shares held 31 December 2019
R=ZZB—N&F
Frs i1, +=A=+—H
&4 HERGZHE FERESNED T
Substantial Shareholders
FERR
Mr. LI Chun™ Interest of controlled corporation 8,212,443,151 92.65%
FHEAED REHEEER
Lead Ahead? Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382 24.06%
EmEAA
Victory Mind Assets® Beneficial owner 2,728,582,769 30.78%
41 2PN
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,582,769 30.78%
ZEHEE R
Jumbo Top® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,582,769 30.78%
ZEHEE R
Dragon City® Trustee 3,351,440,000 37.81%
XEA
TMFE® Trustee 6,080,022,769 68.59%
XEA
Other Persons
Ht A
Mr. MA Chi Seng Beneficial owner 543,500,0000! 6.13%
BEREE EmEEA
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Notes:

Mr. Li Chun is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 8,212,443,151
Shares in aggregate through his interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and
Dragon City, respectively as follows:

(a) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun;

(b) the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets
is interested in comprises (i) 1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind
Assets and (i) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis
of a full exercise of conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325
per Share attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets
by the Company in November 2013. Victory Mind Assets is owned as to
57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top. All shares of Jumbo Top are
held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Chun
is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
2,728,5682,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of the trust and is also
therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,728,5682,769 Shares. Mr. Li
Chun is also a director of each of Victory Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

(c) the long position of 3,351,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is
interested in comprises (i) 2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City
and (i) 1,351,440,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full
exercise of conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share
attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Dragon City by the Company in
November 2013. Dragon City is interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares
in its capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as
to 60% by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of a separate
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of one of the said separate
trusts and is also therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,351,440,000
Shares. Mr. Li Chun is taken to be interested in 40% of the shares of Dragon
City and is therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,357,440,000
Shares. Mr. Li Chun is a director of Dragon City.
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Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li
Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double
counting, it should be noted that Ace Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be
interested in the 2,728,582,769 Shares which Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(c) above. TMF is deemed to be interested in
the 3,351,440,000 Shares which Dragon City is interested in.

Mr. Ma Chi Seng was interested in 500,000,000 Shares and the share options of
the Company entitling to subscribe for a total of 102,000,000 Shares as at 2 July
2018. Following the lapse of some of his share options entitling to subscribe for a
total of 58,500,000 Shares during the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Ma Chi
Seng was interested in 500,000,000 Shares and the share options of the Company
entitling to subscribe for a total of 43,500,000 Shares as at 31 December 2019,

According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed to the Stock
Exchange by Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (“MOF"), MOF
is deemed to be interested in a long position of unlisted and physically settled
derivative interests in 926,190,476 underlying Shares (representing approximately
10.45% of the total no. of issued Shares as at 31 December 2019) held by

Lake Tai which is in turn wholly-owned by Huarong (HK) International Holdings
Limited. China Huarong International Holdings Limited is owned as to 88.10% and
11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Huarong Real Estate”) and Huarong
Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Zhiyuan”) respectively. Both
Huarong Real Estate and Huarong Zhiyuan are wholly-owned by China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Ltd. which is in turn owned as to 77.49% by MOF. On 10
December 2019, the Company has redeemed from Lake Tai the convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$778,000,000 carrying a right for conversion into
926,190,476 Shares and cancelled the convertible note in whole.
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As at 31 December 2019, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s policy
to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for
measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with specific
performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing
basis and a formal evaluation is conducted once a year to review employees’
overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary
review would be based on individual's performance and subject to Group’s
discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

The existing share option scheme was adopted by the Company in 2010 as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 46 to 571 of this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 22 July 2019 (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) and the supplemental agreement dated 22 November
2019 entered into among Lion Woods Limited (the “Seller”), Viva China
Community Development Holdings Limited (the “Buyer”) and Mr. Li Chun as the
guarantor of the Seller in relation to the acquisition of the entire share capital of
Rise Mode Investments Limited (“Rise Mode”, which together with its subsidiaries,
the "Rise Mode Group”) at a consideration of HK$290 million (the “Acquisition”)
and a letter of extension dated 9 October 2019 entered into between the

Seller and the Buyer for extension of the long stop date of the Acquisition from
31 October 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Acquisition was completed in
December 2019,

Report of the Directors EE B iRE

R-ZB—NF+-A=+—B B LXKE
EON REEAA  BWEMAL (RE B
AR ATRERIN) RAR ARG R,/ %48
BRI AR AR BB S R R
DI BB BT AR 2 B RMRENE
STME AR E 2 BAELAR -

BEEEN

FAMERZXFETASIEAEEZ L
FMERBOEBZERBRTHZEL

REE 2 FHM R

AEEES ZHMBRIIRBEREXE - E
ERENMEE MARENBR SRR
BHUEERIATAENGFE - AEER
BEREXRBEMNES WEEXRRELNETE
BERDEIERBBR -AEBRFELETR
Bge] WEFETRIEAFE  AFEZ
BEEERRE NELSEZER -NEEH
RIFEARBRITETH MR

ETE=FNEGBEREEIETRANE
BEBESHER AL2EFBLH AR K
AABHEEENDMBE 2 E ST HBK
I ARERAFEMARFE DHNFHITESE
RE - BNESREREEABZHFMFS
N BRI ES -

ARBR T —EFRNIBAE BRAETE
NEBEENAERSHE AL -TEFEH
RARERFICEES B [BEREE] —Fe

AR # Lion Woods Limited ([E A1) ~ FEAHP B+
ERZEERERAR([ER]) RFTHELLE
(EAERZERANEFIMNZASRA-Z—N
FrtAZt+ZHEEH®E([EEHZE])
M_ZE-hAE+—AZt+ZBz@RHE
N A A B8 LA {E290,000,00078 7T Uk B FE R
BEERAR (R ERENBARRE
[RESEE] N2 BHITRA([WES
H)AMEREEFIIVAHA-_ZT—NF
+ANBMEREKGAGKREEENREE
AT - NF+A=F+—HEREZZ
TE-NF+-_A=+t—H mMEFBEER
—E-NF+AEK-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

59



60

Report of the Directors EE S iRE

The Rise Mode Group is principally engaged in the business of management and
operation of ice skating rinks in the PRC. The Rise Mode Group could provide
additional leisure sports destination to the Group’s customers apart from Li Ning
Sports Park and Li Ning Sports Centre. The Acquisition is a strategic initiative

in line with the Group’s business strategy of sports destination development,
and will further diversify and enrich its sports destination portfolio by improving
the number, variety, service offering and nationwide coverage of the sports
destinations operated by the Group. In addition, the Rise Mode Group is one of
the leading ice-skating brands in the PRC with mature operation, experienced
management and healthy financial performance. Leveraging the Rise Mode
Group’s strong reputation and proven track record in winter sports industry, the
Group expects that the Acquisition will create synergy among its businesses, and
bring in additional commercial opportunities for its existing sports destination
network and other sports-related resources.

As the Seller is wholly owned by Mr. Li Chun who is an elder brother of Mr. Li
Ning and the father of Mr. Li Qilin (both Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin are executive
Directors), the Seller and Mr. Li Chun are associates of Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li
Qilin and are therefore connected persons of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules and details of which are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 22 July 2019, 9 October 2019 and 22 November 2019 and
the circular 27 November 2019,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is set out on
pages 63 to 74 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Li Ning whose biographical details
are set out on page 35 of this annual report. Mr. Cheung Chi is the company
secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and has over 25 years of experience in financial
management, corporate finance and administrative management.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to the discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance in the Business Review of this annual report, an environmental,
social and governance report which explains how the Company complies with the
environmental, social and governance reporting guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules is set out on pages 75 to 100 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year 2019 and up to the date of this report, according to the GEM
Listing Rules, the following Directors have interests in the following businesses
which are considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than those businesses where the
Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group:
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Businesses which are considered to compete or likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group

BEREFEEEB BB F R TEBRBFOER

Name of Director  Name of Entity

Description of the Entity’s Business

Nature of interest of
the Director in the

Entity
BEEnS BEREE BEROEBEN EERZERNESR
Mg
Mr. Li Ning Li Ning Company mainly engaged in brand marketing, research and development, director and substantial
Limited design, manufacturing, distribution and retail of professional and shareholder (within the
leisure footwear, sport apparels, equipment and accessories meaning of the SFO)
under the LI-NING brand and other licensed brands.
FESEL FEHRAA TERFTERBRLRAMRERE THNEERAKE EFERFERR (E
HR - EERE BV MEGNERE HE BT EREBHFRBEK
FE-DHEREE- 1)
Mr. Li Qilin Li Ning Company as disclosed above director and substantial
Limited shareholder (within the
meaning of the SFO)
FEBELEE FERRAA W P EE A EERTFTERR(E
ERARZTFAHBERK
1)
Note: B =E -

Mr. Li Chun, an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning, the father of Mr. Li Qilin and a substantial
shareholder (within the meaning of the SFO) of the Company, is deemed to be interested in
the shares and underlying shares of Li Ning Company Limited held by the Company.

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the board of the above-
mentioned entity and none of the above Directors can control the Board of the Company,
the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from the businesses of this entity.
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PUBLIC FLOAT PBRERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the RIBEARRESZ AREREBMEEFMNF

best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was a M-RAAFRAZEBH ARG B ETRA

sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the ZABEREFACMLETRAIFEEKFE-

GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR =B A

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have AARREBEFERN P BRERLE B K

been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, EEMERNEZ ZEBKEGTME

offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of BB ER TAEEWRKBEEREET K

PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the RABREERRBAFTASRERER B

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. BB ARUKES M BRI AN QR
EgHIE

By Order of the Board REEEZW

Li Ning FRERITHAZ

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer =

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020 'R —_TTEF=A=++tH
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Report

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save for
the disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.71 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise and insight of
the sports field, having these two roles performed by Mr. Li enables more effective
and efficient overall business planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies of the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals and adequate independent element in the composition
of the Board, with over one-third of them being independent non-executive
Directors.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors generally should attend the general
meetings of the Company. One non-executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 14 June 2019 due to overseas engagement. Two independent
non-executive Directors were unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 19 December 2019 due to overseas engagement.

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group's affairs and
activities with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the

management. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the
Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
management. Important matters include those affecting the Group's strategic
policies, risk management and internal control systems, major investment and
funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.
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The Board currently comprises of three executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), one non-executive Director (the “Non-executive Director”) and three

independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Directors”).

The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies to pursue
opportunities along the sports value chain.

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Li Qing, Mr. Pak Wai
Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan. The Independent Non-executive Directors help
the management to formulate the Group's development strategies, ensure the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate system
to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The Company
received the annual confirmation from the Independent Non-executive Directors
in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or

via telephone conference facilities. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performance and review the financial results of the Group. Additional
Board meetings may be convened for considering and approving other significant
matters. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to the
number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely, the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the
general meetings of the Company held during the year 2019 and the attendance
of each Director are set out in the following table:

EEEEARERARAR-F-NFRTLZ
%ﬁ"&,\mi,\a (W%T’f‘éﬁ@(f%&
ZBgl) ¥HZES ([FHERE
REZEE([(RE2ZBEE]) $ﬂ/?§,§?-§
(THTZER]) ) RBRRAEZE@RZRELZ
BFRAEHUREESHREBRER TK:

Meetings held in 2019
RZB-NEBT2z8E

Annual  Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive General General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
BR BE
EZ¢ ENZEE §MZEE REZEE YNEEE  BEEAE  BHXE
Number of meetings SENH 7 4 1 1 4 1 1
Executive Directors BTES
M. Li Ning (Chairman & FEEE
Chief Executive Offcer? (FEHRTHER) 6/7 n n 44 n 0
M, Li Chunyang TEELE " 414 17 17
M Li Qllin? THBEE 6/7 1/4 1n 0n
Mr, Chan Ling (resigned with effect BELE(B-S-%F
from 23 March 2020) =R=t=H #EM) 6/7 114 " i
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Wing Man BHOUEE M 44 17 17
M. Chan James RERLE(BZE-NE
(resigned with effect from 28 June 2019) ~NAZT B RET) 44 0/1 010
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Wi, Li Qing? (appointed with effect from FREE(EZE-NE
20 December 2019) +-RA-THREZRT) 0/0 00 00 0/0 00
M. Pak Wai Keung, Martin® (appointed AE®REE (BZT-1E
with effect from 13 February 2019) ZRTZBHREERT) 6/7 4/4 n n 1n 11
Mr. Wang Yan TREE o7 34 01 01 01 011
M. Chen Johnny” (resigned BELEE (BZZ-NE
with effect from 13 February 2019) “BTZBREET) 0/0 0/0 0/0 00 00 0/0
M, Lien Jown Jing, Vinoent (resigned with effect  BRELE(B-F-NE
from 20 December 2019) TZAZTAREE) 6/7 44 01 01 01
Notes: Bt
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of mestings a 1. HERBEEEERHFEZRE BHEH

Director is entitled to attend.

2. Mr. Li Qilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer

and an Executive Director.

3. Mr. Pak Wai Keung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 13 February 2019.

FZE&HZRE-

2. EBBALEAIR TRAARNTESS
EEEZET

3. HARBRELEAB-_FT-NF_A+t=AEE

RERBIUFNTES BRLZBEER
REZBEEKBRFHEZEEKE -
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4, Mr. Chen Johnny resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 13 February 2019.

5. Mr. Li Qing was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect from
20 December 2019,

6. Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent resigned as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 20 December 2019.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has provided the materials on directors duties, corporate governance
and updates on regulatory development for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:

4, BREBRELEEBZZE-—NF-_A+=H®EH
ABIEATEE ERZESIFE IRE
ZEBeRENFMEESKENE-

5, FHEEEB_FT-AFT_A-_THEHE
RERBUIFNTER BEERZE G N

6. EFREEEBRB_T-AF+_A-THR
BEBUIFATES BEERZEERFME
Bk BaRE-

EECHAEXRR

AARBBEESEAMIERERE N
BRESFHFEARARB ZEENEER
ETZEE-RFA ARARAEZRREHE
RESRE CXRBENENEARBER M
P BERE R FEITRIRE 2 A LB RER
REBEER-

ARRGFEESFEXEI 2k Bihm
EOEERNFAGEIATHHEMNEIIAE
¥R BB AN

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER LERBEER
Hit A S A
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) TEEE (FEFTHEZ) v
Mr. Li Chunyang =EBEE v/
Mr. Li Qilin FTHEB T E v
Mr. Chan Ling (resigned with effect from 23 March 2020) RELE(BZE-TF=A=1+=A v
REEHE)
Non-executive Directors *HITES
Mr. Ma Wing Man BIKEE v
Mr. Chan James (resigned with effect from 28 June 2019) REBLE(BZE—NF /AR 38 F
NAZTN\HEET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Li Qing (appointed with effect from 20 December 2019) EHEE(BZE—NEF v
+t-A-tHREZRMT)
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (appointed with effect from HE®REE (BEZT—NF v
13 February 2019) “Rt=BREZT)
Mr. Wang Yan TS A v
Mr. Chen Johnny (resigned with effect from 13 February 2019) REREE (BT -NEZRA+=HEEHT) N/AT i A
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (resigned with effect from BREEE(BZZ—NE N/AT 38 B
20 December 2019) T AZt+HRBEHE)
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed compliance with the Required Standard during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Required
Standard. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company's affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with written terms
of reference. The current Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning,
the Chairman and Executive Director. The other members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Mr, Wang Yan, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Under the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders every three years. A
Director appointed by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after his appointment in case of the appointment of
additional Director or at the first general meeting after his appointment in case of
filling of casual vacancy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also recommended suitable
candidates to the Board for appointment as independent non-executive Directors
after its assessment with reference to a range of diversity perspectives.
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The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial

for the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with effect from 12 August
2013, which provides that the nomination and appointment of Board members
should be based on meritocracy, taking into considerations of the diversity of
Board members from different aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Nomination Committee’s role includes monitoring the
implementation of the policy and review the same as appropriate.

The Company also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with
effect from 1 January 2019. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set
guidelines for the administration by the Nomination Committee of the nomination,
evaluation and termination of each member of the Board. The Board shall

be composed of members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the Board
shall possess, be recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional
standard. The core criteria include gender, age, capability, experience, skill and
knowledge, integrity and ethics, independency and leadership. In the nomination
process, each new candidates shall be considered upon evaluation against the
criteria. According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential new Directors and recommends to the Board
for decision. If appointment is considered by the Board, the appointment shall
be subject to the approval by the Board in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Nomination Policy. If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if any) set out in the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Nomination Policy. The Policy shall also be governed by other additional and
relevant rules under the Company's Memorandum and Article of Association and
the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the nomination, appointment, election, re-
election, retirement, and termination of Directors.

In 2019, the Company was pleased to welcome Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin
and Mr. Li Qing to the Board. The extensive experience of Mr. Pak in finance,
accounting and corporate governance affairs and Mr. Li Qing in investment and
asset management, merge and acquisition and business operation would boost
diversity to the Board.
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Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition on
behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In
designing and reviewing the Board's composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider from a number of aspects. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives, including gender, age, professional background, business
experience, length of service and directorship with other listed companies. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board possessed a balance of skill and
expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will
review the composition and diversity of the Board if and when necessary.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Yan (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Li Qing and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and one Executive Director, Mr. Li Ning.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of

the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee (i) reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Directors; (i) approved the adjustment of

the salary of an executive Director and provision of housing bengfits to two
executive Directors; and (i) recommended to the Board the director’s fee of new
independent non-executive Directors by reference to their academic qualification,
experience and duties and responsibilities with the Group.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin. The
primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and implement business
strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations of companies of the
Group and approve matters relating to their day-to-day operations.

The Executive Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include the development and review of the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors

and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of the
Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance of the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee also has duty to design, implement and monitor the

risk management and internal control systems and to provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, half-year reports, quarterly reports and risk
management and internal control systems and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Li
Qing and Mr. Wang Yan and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma Wing Man. This
annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the quarterly
reports, half-year report and annual report before submission to the Board. The
chief financial officer of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings

in order to give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and (i) the risk management and internal
audit plan and reports.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chi has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
since November 2018. During the year, Mr. Cheung has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial reporting are set
out in the independent auditor's report on pages 1071 to 107 of this annual report,

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total fee paid and payable

to PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and other services for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, amounted to HK$3,517,000 and
HK$3,022,000 respectively. The sum for other services included HK$935,000
for the agreed upon procedures performed on the Group’s interim results for

the six months ended 30 June 2019 and the quarterly results for the three
months ended 31 March 2019 and nine months ended 30 September 2019,
HK$1,937,000 for special purpose audit performed on the acquisition and other
agreed upon procedures and HK$150,000 for tax services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged KPMG Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited (“KPMG"), as its risk management and internal control review advisor

for the year ended 31 December 2019, to review the Group’s risk management
system.
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The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group
are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and
operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by
the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures
to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

° Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that
appropriate internal control procedures are in place;

° Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in
case of any significant change of situation; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board
regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment

of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. KPMG was
engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance
controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management, comments
from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement
from external auditor and risk management and internal control review advisor,
the Board is of the view that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2019,
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The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures
and internal controls to ensure inside information remains confidential until such
information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information
is made in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with the Shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company's articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company’s articles
of association.

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company’s corporate website www.vivachina.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address: Room 3602—06, 36/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 37961111

Fax: 37961100

The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders” questions.
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Communication with Shareholders

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 14 June 2019 (the
2019 AGM"). A notice convening the 2019 AGM contained in the circular dated
22 March 2019 was despatched to the Shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2018. The Chairman of the Board and members of the committees of the
Company (as appropriate) attended the 2019 AGM to answer the questions from
the Shareholders. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
attended the 2019 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. The Chairman explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
All the resolutions proposed at the 2019 AGM, including (i) the adoption of the
audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018; (ii) the re-election of certain
Directors and the authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’ remunerations; (iii)
the re-appointment of auditor of the Company and the authorisation to the Board
to fix its remuneration; and (iv) the granting to Directors the general mandates to
issue and repurchase Shares, were passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 19 December
2019 (the "EGM") to consider the ordinary resolution approving the connected
fransaction in relation to acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Rise
Mode Investments Limited. A notice convening the EGM contained in the circular
dated 27 November 2019 was despatched to the Shareholders. The chairman of
the EGM made himself available to answer the questions from the Shareholders
and explained detailed procedure for conducting a poll. The ordinary resolution
proposed at the EGM was passed by the independent Shareholders by way of
poll.

The poll results of the 2019 AGM and the EGM were published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Changes in the Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year 2019,

A notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched together with the Annual Report 2019 to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
CG Code.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Standard and Scope

This annual Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report (the
“Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix 20 (‘ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"). The Group has
complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Guide.

It provides an overview of the Group’s management approach as well

as ESG initiatives and performance in regard to the environment, human
capital, value chain and community for the Reporting Period. To represent
and cover the businesses which have the most significant impact on the
Group’s environmental and social performance, the following entities are
included in this Report:

Company Name

alfand[Governance
1o E=]

Report

AR AR E

BREEEREGE
AFEERE @ RERAME (KK
LB EEEBAERSIMER A A
(B2 FT] ) GEM_ETHAR BB 8 — + (R
B RERmEIES) ([RE - 4
gRERES ) WRTHEE - AEEE
BTIRE e NEIRESI T 2 BT
B TEBFHRERE] -

AREREAEEBNHREHARRE A
NER - BEERLRFEREMNEE
FEAMERE HEREABELRIRN
BE- ARBMREHAEBNIRER
HERBZERBERANEL KRS

WMALNTERE:

Principal Activities

YNGR FEEKEH

Viva China Holdings Limited Principal office

EAPEERERDFT FTEREER

BTENEEEEERLT Sports parks and sports centres management and operation

B =
B2

BRABBEX/ERAA
BMNEABELBRLF

BEEREFTLEEREE

Sports competitions and events management and coordination
BEESEHERE LA

Esports club management and operation

EENEE

Sports-related marketing and consultancy service

A B8 T 35 e JR N AR s AR A%

FNEHEEZER (LR)ERAA >
| 2
THIALHE
| 2
mE
p  Sports talent management
BEATERE
TRFNEBEEEZADBRAT >

Provision of development consultancy services

e fH A 2 o AR AR 7S

To better navigate and locate relevant ESG topics, disclosures and key
performance indicators (“KPIs"), a detailed ESG Guide Content Index is
presented on page 97 to 100 of this Report.

e
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

We regularly interact with a wide range of our stakeholders to gain valuable
feedback and address their concerns with regards to our ESG efforts,
performance and future strategies. This process enables us to make
informed decisions and better assess our potential impacts. Our ongoing
and two-way communication takes place through various engagement
channels. In preparation for this Report, we appointed an independent
consultant to conduct a comprehensive stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment to determine the most material ESG topics for

disclosure by following a three-step process:

Stage)1:/Identification

= EEET

The ESG disclosures of industry
peers were reviewed to identify
common disclosure practices.

An online survey was conducted
with internal stakeholders to rank
the importance of different ESG
issues.

BREREXRE HERE
AR R B - AR R 2K
R EEM -

B P AE A ETT A 5

T UARSRE HEak
ERBRECBEENETH
=38

Suggestions and Feedback

Stage}2:|Prioritisation
=R EEBRTIXFE

The results of the peer
benchmarking exercise and
stakeholder online survey were
combined and analysed. A
prioritised list of ESG issues of
varying materiality levels was
developed for confirmation.

BE MDA R EEEF G
MERNED AB LR
E°EE%$§F§T§F§'JW%H
R RIMRE HE R
a/n% 2 LA L RERR

We value your feedback on our ESG performance and disclosures. Please
share your views by email (info@vivachina.hk) or by phone

(+852 3796 1111).
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Stage)3: Validation

hk—u .
Unnllu

The Group’s senior management
convened a meeting with the
independent consultant to
confirm a finalised list of material
KPIs for disclosure.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

-

To fully realise the potential and value of
Focus the sports industry \.n or‘d‘e‘r to‘ facilitate
Q'Tg the progress of social cwvwhgatwon
FEHEER mAE BEXMNE
&8 XA E ¢F

E{E A

To become the leading and most

NEARELYE

It is the Group’s mission and corporate social responsibility to promote
sportive and healthy lifestyles nationwide. Over the years, we have provided
the neighbourhoods where we operate with convenient, high-quality and
integrated sports destinations, including our Li Ning Sports Parks and Li
Ning Sports Centres. To encourage citizens' wider participation in sports
and leisure activities, we work closely with local governments and other
business partners for the provision of diverse sports-related and ancillary
commercial offerings. Through creating an inclusive social platform, we
aspire to enhance citizens’ quality of life and nurture a sports-for-all culture
across China.

We recognise the potential of the sports industry to generate shared value,
and as such, constantly seek opportunities to accelerate the development
of the industry. Building on our diverse sports resources and management
experience, we coordinate, sponsor and support a wide spectrum of
sports events and competitions, including both professional and amateur
basketball leagues, as well as esports to promote a nationwide sporting
culture for community prosperity.

To promote sportive and

Mission healthy lifestyles in China
EED rEREEs

REMERTT R

(LN dynamic sports conglomerate in China
E=) KATEERE EESAEN

RIF-HEBKREIBHS

TEHEER

REBE#EEES BENERETA -
BEEASERFNEAMEXHLER
T BEEF  RMBAENLEEE
e BEL—BIEMEAS R M &
BREMNZEREENFTEEYD
Do RBBERZEEZRE RIKREE
B P8 BT R EERH T
DaE REZTHRERBELREER
ERB-BEB/AEABOLERTE &,
MBPLEAERNEEER YREE
BEEREH -
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

An effective sustainability governance structure is essential to manage ESG-
related risks and enhance sustainability performance over time. The Board
provides strategic guidance on our ESG direction and maintains oversight
of the Group's risk management and internal control initiatives. Reporting
directly to the Board is our management, who is responsible for detailed
monitoring and regular updating on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control initiatives. To support the process, an ESG
working group which comprises representatives from different business
departments was set up to plan and implement ESG initiatives within

the Group, and to help coordinate the day-to-day execution of our ESG
strategies.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Our spirit of environmental stewardship is communicated through the
Group’s Environmental Policy which guides our approach to the sustainable
management of our environmental footprint. To strategically manage the
environmental impacts arising from our operations, we focus our efforts

on energy efficiency, emission reduction, water conservation, waste
management as well as cultivation of environmental consciousness amongst
our staff members and the general public.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all applicable legal
and regulatory requirements' regarding environmental protection and there
were no non-compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse gas (‘GHG")
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes.

! Including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311),
the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354), the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC"), and the Energy Conservation Law
of the PRC.
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Resource Optimisation

To manage our operations in an energy-efficient manner, the Group actively
seize energy-saving opportunities and adopt multiple upgrading projects.
For instance, we introduced sensors to maintain indoor temperature
between 24°C and 26°C, and replaced obsolete lighting fixtures with LED
lights across our office premises to optimise energy efficiency. At our Hong
Kong headquarters, we installed solar window films to reduce heat gain

in air-conditioned space and undertook a delamping project to remove
unnecessary lighting fixtures. Additionally, video conference systems were
infroduced to reduce the needs for business travel. At our Li Ning Sports
Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres, we explore ways to make renewable
energy more viable in our operations such as installing solar panels for
illumination and heat supply. During the year, the installed panels generated
379,657 kWh clean energy in total. Aside from installing solar panels, we
have provided electric vehicle (“EV") charging stations at the car park of
Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park to support our facility user in reducing fossil
fuel use.

We have taken a multi-pronged approach to manage the use of water
during the operation of our sports destinations. To reduce the frequency
of pool water replacement, a pool circulation system has been applied
at three of our sports destinations to filter dirt particles and purify pool
water. At Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, we implemented a rainwater
harvesting system where rainwater is collected, treated and reused for
irrigation purpose. Regular leakage tests on water pipes and tanks are
also conducted in parallel with the introduction of various water-efficient
equipment such as dual flush toilets.

BEREI

REBUEgEHFAEREE  BIGHA
ERER MM KB ZHELRE  BEL
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Waste Management

As the impacts of waste generation and disposal continue to compound
and negatively affect our environment, it is becoming increasingly important
for companies to manage their resources in an environmentally responsible
way. The Group actively promotes waste reduction, reuse and recycling
across our operations. We encourage employees to adopt double-sided
printing and reuse office supplies such as envelopes and cardboard

boxes whenever possible. Recycling bins with clear signage are placed at
our offices and sports destinations, respectively, to minimise the amount

of waste disposed at landfill sites. Documents containing confidential
information are collected separately and shredded before being recycled.

Additionally, our Hong Kong headquarters continue to partner with Friends
of the Earth to recycle toner cartridges and work closely with Christian
Action to organise a “Green Collection” campaign to collect and donate
clothing, stationery and electronic devices which are in good condition to
persons in need.
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Cultivating Environmental Awareness

We endeavour to build a lasting environmentally conscious culture within
the Group. As a signatory of the Energy Saving Charter 2019 launched by
the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, we encourage staff to
conserve energy through posters and internal notices. To further promote
environmental stewardship among our employees, we set up an information
wall at our Hong Kong headquarters to share practical green tips.

In parallel with our internal efforts, we are keen to communicate positive
environmental messages to the wider public. During the Reporting Period,
LNG Esports under the Group's operation initiated a “Zero Waste Start
from LNG” campaign at its former home arena in Chongging to encourage
audience members to segregate different types of waste at source. Moving
forward, we are working toward a zero waste esports stadium and further
promote waste separation and recycling habits.

|
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Environmental Protection Awards and Recognition RERKERRT

The Group has actively engaged in different environmental protection AEBRGL2EZBANRRES -
campaigns. During the Reporting Period, our efforts have been well PR BEREENEHBEER KL
recognised by the industry and the wider community. GERBE-

Operation Awards/Recognition

EBEMN #®18 R

Hong Kong p  Awarded the “Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” under the “Hong Kong Green Organisation
headquarters Certification” by the Environment Campaign Committee

BEREI BERBEEHLZESHE [AAGCKEREBI P REFE LHAR]EE

p  Participated in “Hong Kong No Air Con Night 2019" organised by Green Sense
SHERRBEMAEEN [HEELRR2019]

p  Participated in “No Plastic Bottles Day 2019” organised by Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
SEBETEEBYETFSHEEN [ERBIBR2019]

p  Participated in “Earth Hour 2019" organised by World Wildlife Fund
SAMRAAESSHEBH [HIK—/NK2019]

T
L
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Environmental Performance Data I8 35 R 15 & 18

Emissions HE i

RIF-HEBKREIBHS

Carbon emissions in total and intensity Units 2019 2018

MHBEREERRE B —E-NEFE Z—EBE-NFE
Scope 1 emission? Tonne 658.5 522.4
& E1HEE? 7

Scope 2 emission? Tonne 3,267.5 2,683.6
BELH KR 0

Total emission Tonne 3,926.0* 3,206.1
BYEWE M8

Scope 1 emission intensity Tonne/FTE® 2.1 2.0
HBE R 1,/ FTES

Scope 2 emission intensity Tonne/FTE 10.5 10.2
HEBENEE Mg, FTE

Total emission intensity Tonne/FTE 12.7 12.1
REEMEE W& FTE

Other emissions

H i BE R

Wastewater generated Tonne 59,713¢ 67,614
EKEAE Mg

NOx emission kg 12.4 6.0
RELWHEK F5

SOx emission kg 0.3 0.2
i b 40 BE AR T

PM emission kg 0.9 0.4
FE ALY BE B F5

2 Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources which are owned or controlled by 2 HE : AAREEATHA TS

the Group, including the consumption of natural gas and fuels for vehicles. FMEAZEEERR BEXAZR
ERKLHBFE -
8 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity ’ FE2  HEFRAAEERTEER

and steam by the Group as a result of its usual operations. The sources of
emissions are owned or controlled by other companies.

®
FBREESNBE N MZETEL  MEE
RO B B At 22 R A B AR SR o

4 The increase in total emission is partly due to the expansion of reporting 4 B = 12 7J[17J*B AR -_ZT—hF
scope to cover Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park in 2019. EREBMEEA  BRMMNEFEE
BERRBERIBEEA -
5 "FTE” refers to full-time employees. o [FEl 2 BiRE -
6 In 2018, the scope of wastewater disclosure was confined to the emissions ’ -= */\Efg ’2%_7J< R ﬁz E— it
from the two subsidiaries in Beijing, Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi % F—‘Qﬁﬁ Al Mjb%ﬁl\ il 7 M é“% A= S
Li Ning Sports Centre. In 2019, emissions from Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li R g o 2 = 5%;@ L é? Tﬁgﬂ;; =z
Ning Sports Park was also covered. —NEFE RERAMEFTEEE
HIBERI B IEE A
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Resource usage & Jf fif

84

Resource usage in total and intensity Units 2019 2018

ERFEHABEEREE By —E-hEE ZEBE-N\EE

Electricity consumption KWh 4,627,197 3,794,221

AEE T B

Natural gas consumption m? 300,754°8 242,467

RINFHFE K

Gasoline consumption Litre 17,467° 10,969

FUH B RE F+

Water consumption Tonne 125,187 67,609

RKE Mg

Electricity consumption intensity kKWh/FTE 14,926 14,372

RERE F R FTE

Natural gas consumption intensity m*/FTE 970 918

RARBHREE A K FIE

Gasoline consumption intensity Litre/FTE 56 42

T R 7+/FIE

Water consumption intensity Tonne/FTE 404 256

RKEE Wa,FTE

7 The increase in electricity consumption is partly due to the expansion of reporting 7 AEEEMNIBLoER_ZE—NLFERS
scope to cover Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park in 2019. BEBA BEENMNEZEEERMNAES

th B ELEA -
8 The natural gas was consumed by one subsidiary in Beiling, Yangzhou Li Ning Sports 6 KAFRHEERB LR —ENB AT 5N

Park, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre.

9 The gasoline was consumed by the headquarters in Hong Kong and the subsidiaries 9

in Yangzhou and Ningbo.

0 Water was mainly consumed by Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, Ningbo Hangzhou 0

Bay Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre.
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Hazardous and non-hazardous waste EEREEEEY)

Hazardous waste 2019" 2018
BEEEY Units BE{v : kgT = —E-NEFE" ZE-N\FE
Usage £

Carbon battery and alkaline battery 0 0

fix 1 BT EH R 1 E S

Recycled B W £
Carbon battery and alkaline battery 1.6 4.6
Bix I BB NS B2 M B TS

Non-hazardous waste 2019 2018

BEBEEY Units EE{¥ : Tonnel§ —E-NEFE =ZEB-NFE

Usage AIE

Paper 5.8 1.4

FA#

Plastic 1.6 3.9

BRE

General waste 2.4 3.1

—MREEEY)

Recycled [E W £

Paper 2.6 1.9

R4

Plastic 1.6 0.6

BRE

General waste 0.3 2.6

—MREEEY)

By Intensity L Z E & & Units 21 : Tonnel#/FTE

Waster produced 0.03 0.03

EEEEY

Recycled 0.01 0.02

EIft &=

" 1n 2019, due to the expansion of reporting scope, waste data from Ningbo T ARCE-NAFEREHEERER BRAM
Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park was also covered. ETEEERMNEEMERELBEELEA-
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OUR HUMAN CAPITAL

The success of our business is greatly dependant on our talented and
motivated workforce. Building on our people-centric philosophy, we are fully
committed to creating an inclusive workplace which supports the personal
development of our employees, promotes wellness and fosters open and
interactive communication.

Employment and Working Conditions

The Group cherishes its employees and is dedicated to building a

work environment which values respect and dignity and is free from
discrimination and harassment at all times. All employees are protected by
our policies on equal opportunities to ensure fair recruitment processes and
employment practices based on experience and individual merits regardless
of gender, race, age, religion, disability, or family status.

Our continued success depends on the Group’s ability to retain every
positive and competent employee. To this end, we continue to offer
competitive remuneration packages and comprehensive fringe benefits,
which include discretionary bonuses, commercial insurance and a range of
leave entitlements such as marriage leave, maternity and paternity leave,
and examination/study leave. We regularly review our staff benefits and
policies to ensure our packages are competitive compared to industry
standards.

We prioritise health and wellness of our employees and fully support them
to maintain work-life balance. During the Reporting Period, a wide array of
staff activities as well as family-friendly and mother-friendly initiatives were
organised, including:

Hong Kong & 78

Upcycled Umbrella Bag Workshop

SRYVETHES

Set Up a Mother Care Room
aﬁ VYBEE

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED QFFL PEEZERERAE

—

EFRNOADESR

B EBKINEBURRE T4 %
WMELE-BMBRAUAARST 20T
EHBHNTIERE B8 THEAZR
R-REEIRRAEEET 2HAM
MEEE®-

B1E R T4

AEB2HERERES BHEE—EEM
EE  EAFRE IZEGENRENT
ERFE -HPNBRRELRESSRH
FERE TwEMR Bk FiK R
BoRREDRFEEMMN - RIIG AL
BAEA T B %L%ﬁ%iﬁ TERIBEE R
BEMERREFAFALE

HMHBEXNBAREAEERLE &

—(EEGEEEE THRE N - Atk - A
BERHEASRFNINFHFEREZE
METRN BRERIETEA BERR
RER ER BER R EER
ERxBREHMEN - RMAEMBTE LR
M ERBE  BREMANFERTRESRE
AL EHFES -

BPEREERE Tavf@mmmEn X2
NAXFHETHETIERAEERG -
BEMA RMBRTZHEE AL
HHZAB MK EMERE RN R
Bk

Annual Christmas Party

FEERRY

Outing to Fu Shan, Tai 0
OB BR 1L 3B
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PRC H E

|
Annual Gathering

FERS

e

Festive Celebration — Tuen Ng Festival

B A B —in T

Outing to Yangzhou Shouxihu
5 N 22 75 54 &0 32

During the Reporting Period, there were zero non-compliance cases with
the relevant laws and regulations' relating to recruitment and employment
practices, anti-discrimination, diversity, and other benefits and welfare.

12 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608), the Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 487), the Labour Law of the PRC, and the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC.

Sports Day
E&A

Team Building Event
B ERES

BEHARN ZMAERERER R
8~ et R B A AR R85 B E
RABBEG] R AR B

7 BRETRR (BEED) (%57
B) (&REITEKD) (£608F) -
CGERBARGD) (F487F) - (FE
BEE) R(PRESBHARZE) -
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Human Resources Overview Number 2019 2018
ANERHER BgE Z—ZE-hEFE ZEBE-NEE
Total number of staff BIHAANY 314 266
Number of staff — by gender BRMERESET A

— Male — 5 167 142

— Female - 147 124
Number of staff — by age group RERERNESEIAY

— < 30 years old —<30%% 127 106

— 30 - 50 years old —30-508% 136 125

— > 50 years old —>505% 51 35
Number of staff - by employee type BEEEENESET A

— Full-time — 28 310 264

— Part-time — B 4 2
Staff Turnover Rate 2019 2018
BIRKE % —E-NEE Z—ZE-NEE
Overall staff turnover rate BIARAR 52 60
Staff turnover rate - by gender EMRESBEITREAR

— Male — 5 62 B2%

— Female - 40 5814
Staff turnover rate - by age group BERARNEDPETIRAR

— < 30 years old —<30%% 911 108"

— 30 — 50 years old —30-505% 29 3414

— > 50 years old —>505% 14 111
3 The relatively high staff turnover rate is related to our employment of a significant 13 HRBTEEEHTLERAREZRERS

number of full-time receptionists, lifeguards and customer service staff in Linyi Li B MEBRERAE BWMEIRIEXR

Ning Sports Centre. Excluding that, the overall staff turnover rate was 37% in 2019. BoMBRIEEREZ - NFEEBEIRR
KEFH37% °

" The figures are restated to standardise the calculation methodology. " RFEHEREEEL ZEHTELEN-
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Training and Development

The Group recognises its staff as its biggest strength and an invaluable
asset which contributes to our business success and sustainable growth.
As such, we tailor our training programmes to cater for the needs of
employees from different departments and at various career stages. During
the Reporting Period, we continue to offer internal training programmes
which cover a wide spectrum of topics such as professional development,
skill enhancement, occupational health and safety, risk management

as well as regulatory compliance. To support employees reach their full
potential, our external training sponsorship supplements our internal training
offerings and is available to all full-time permanent staff at our Hong Kong
headquarters with approval from the Department Head as well as Human
Resources Development.

BIREER

AEBREEIRBMEABANNE

NREMEENTE  SEPFIHRBEX
D RFEEREL TR - Bk Ff9st
HARBPFIRBEEBEMNB THHER

A1 E B E IR - WS A - 3
HERMZ T RBPEFIIRE - @M
MEBEXER R BERER
ZE2 AREEMEESHRF /B
BT 0 BB - HARHINEPLE
BEARERRIFIIAR  FEAEH
FEERETRAMFETERANER
ERFIHLER I R A GE -

2019 2018
—E-hEFEE ZZE-N\EE
Average Training Hours Hours Hours
T Z PR B NEF NEF
By gender BRI E D
— Male -5 12 7%
— Female —X " 8
By employee category REEERNE S
— Functional heads —HEE 3 10
— Management —EIEE 13 26
— General/technical staff ——RHEITET 10 6

1 Training attendees and hours exclude training for Board members.

T BIARRBBEIEEAREENIG

il
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Occupational Health and Safety

We place great emphasis on the health of our staff members and make
every effort to create a safe and healthy workplace. In compliance with
relevant occupational health and safety ("OHS”) standards and regulatory
requirements, our business units developed their own OHS requirements
which are specific to their unique workplace condition to manage risks
associated with respective business activities. Various health and safety
measures were implemented at our Hong Kong headquarters and PRC
subsidiaries, respectively, including:

Occupational health
BXREER
p Offered staff members medical insurance and free body check-ups
REIRHBERREBLA2ERR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1R -1 EREGHRE

BEREERZZ

BMPBETRELEER BHK/E
TRE-—BZE2REFENTHERE-
REABABREREERZENEERE
ERE RPN EBFEFAEREBAN
THREHNIEESNBERERL S
ME WEEESAXLEBEMANE
B BMNDRINBELERLTENER
AERTRNEERZ 2R 21

p Provided Beijing-based staff with free access to the gym and other sports facilities in Li Ning Centre, the sports centre where

the Beijing office is located

ERBETARBEERAZMAEMUENES T O FTEPL] AR EREMBESRIE

» Provided ergonomic office chairs and laptop accessories to staff

RETRHTAABIENRIR RELAEMECH

Occupational safety
BEZZ
p Conducted regular fire drills and checks on fire-fighting facilities
EHEITENES s E&E

p Subsidised staff members who work in Li Ning Sports Parks/Li Ning Sports Centres to attend first-aid and lifesaving classes

EPFERER FTEEPTLNHE T2 MK LT B RE

» Organised safety-related seminars and talks
AR R 2 2 AE R A B BT ' R G R

During the Reporting Period, there were zero non-compliance cases with
the relevant laws and regulations'® relating to the provision of a safe work
environment and the protection of employees from occupational hazards.

Labour Standards

The Group embraces fair employment practices and respects the rights of
every employee. We strictly prohibit the employment of child and forced
labour, and ensure all operations within the Group are in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations'” related to labour practices. During the
recruitment process, our Human Resources Department is responsible

for reviewing and examining all identification documents provided by
applicants. Internal audits and reviews are conducted on a regular basis

to ensure there are no cases of underage workers or forced labour. Any
staff member found to be in breach of our labour policies will be subject to
disciplinary action and/or may be liable to legal prosecution.

1 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509), and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases.

7 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Labour
Law of the PRC, and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of the
PRC.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G PR A F]

WEMA - N BB E A E R EBEH
ZETEREMMEETIRIBER
EERMEVERAR WERBIR

# T % A

AEEFTAYHERI BEF—fI
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BT WHERAEEANNBEERFTA
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Anti-corruption

We are committed to upholding the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations. We adopt a zero-tolerance
approach to corruption or malpractice of any form including bribery, money
laundering, extortion and fraud. All employees are obligated to follow the
policies of the Group’s Employee Handbook which details our expectations
for professional behaviours and compliance with relevant legislation. In
support of our policies on ethical behaviours, the Group’s Whistle-Blowing
Policy provides channels for employees at all levels to raise concerns
regarding any misconduct. To ensure whistle-blowers have the freedom to
report grievances without fear of reprisal, all cases are treated confidentially
and submitted to designated personnel for further investigation. During

the Reporting Period, there were zero cases of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations'® relating to corrupt practices.

OUR VALUE CHAIN
Supply Chain Management

Our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along the
supply chain. Committed to operating responsibly, we work closely with
business partners who share our dedication to environmentally and socially
responsible practices. To effectively manage ESG-related risks arising

from our supply chain, our business units developed their own procedures
or guidelines appropriate for their business nature. Our Hong Kong
headquarters established a Supplier Code of Conduct which communicates
the Group'’s requirements for ethical standards, human and labour rights,
and environmental practices. Full compliance with this Code of Conduct

is required for all suppliers. A similar mechanism is in place at our sports
destinations. While selecting suppliers, we invite three or more parties

to submit their quotations for competitive fairness and take product and
service quality, supply capability and price into account.

Our Quality Services

With a large and diverse customer base particularly at our sports
destinations, we recognise the importance of delivering excellent and
caring customer services at all times. Going beyond regulatory compliance,
our customer-oriented spirit guides our provision of high-quality sports

and leisure services and facilities. We prioritise customer safety in the

use of our facilities and pay special attention to safety and crowd control
during special events. Moreover, during our sports competitions and
events, security personnel will be appointed to maintain order and provide
necessary assistance.

1 Including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201).
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BMEXBBRTREERHNERET
ERRAES  BTEREAEANES
HERTR BREBHE ARE $R
LB 2B BT HVEAETAREST
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RBETA/THENBR  AEEHE T
EREREE SEREIRNERTE
TRFNBIRHBFRRE - SERE
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VT ERERRIEEABIEE—FRHE - RE
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We work to ensure the protection of customer privacy and only collect BB RERFLE ERELEN
a minimal amount of necessary personal information. Our Employee EMEAGE -BMHNEIFMEEE
Handbook sets out clear data privacy guidelines which cover the use and e EALEIES - BRERBEBEES
management of personal data in accordance with the relevant regulatory HEPRAREEBEAER -BEEE
requirements'®. Only authorised personnel can access customer information ZATHEEERERER  BAMBHEA
and all personal data must be handled in a safe and secure manner. BERNBEE LR EERE-

During the Reporting Period, we complied with relevant laws and WEHAN B2 ETEEAEEFR
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy HrEMMRBNRERELZS  BEES
matters relating to the products and services provided by the Group. ZHRNMEALEEMNARERER-

7. OUR COMMUNITY 7. RfWHE
Guided by its peaple-centric philosophy, the Group strives to extend its AEERAIUMARBRINES B
care 1o the wider community. We have been leveraging our extensive sports MtREREEE - BEEINEEER
resources and human capital to build a more connected society. As a public RANER BB BEE—ERELE
recognition of our commitment to caring for the community, our employees HEMAHg ARETERMETHEELRR -
and the environment, the Group has been awarded the “Caring Company BERIRBEFAMELHE H K&
Logo” for the sixth consecutive year. EEREEF TEE (mMARBE]Z
—_

Total hours of
community s_erwce 1,490
contributed 2018

B 8R4t B PR A 48 B 2 =

—N\E
—E-hE

A
Number of /\

community service 55,388 Number of
events and 2018 beneficiaries served?

activities supported and —E-N\E BRBZTRAHED

attended by the Group
TEERXER
S BN ER%E
EEBNEERYE —T-NEF

19 Including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) 1 BEETRER (EAER (E) K
and the Cyber Security Law of the PRC. By (58486% ) & (P EE AR HF
WELEE) -
2 Refer to the number of people served or engaged during the Group's 2 EAREERETHERSEE AR FT
community service programmes. RS kR 5| 2B AE -
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Promoting Sports and Healthy Living

In line with the Group’s long-standing corporate mission, we endeavour

to promote sportive and healthy lifestyles among the local communities.
Over the years, we have been actively engaging with the general public
through our well-equipped Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports
Centres. Enabling active participation amongst citizens of all ages is critical
in cultivating a nationwide sporting culture. We continue to organise and
promote a wide range of sports activities and leisure events at our sports
destinations to cater for varied individual needs, including training and
interest classes, sports-themed carnivals, jogging and running marathons
and different sports competitions.

Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres also serve as community
hubs for the regular provision of public welfare offerings, such as free
medical check-ups, rehabilitation sessions, healthcare seminars and safety
talks. In addition, we offer free rental of sports facilities on designated days
and occasions to encourage wider public participation in sports activities.

Creating an Inclusive Society

In parallel with our efforts to promote a nationwide sporting culture, we
are motivated to strengthen social participation and integration. Through
collaborating with different non-governmental organisations and social
enterprises, we encourage our staff to spread positivity in support of
disadvantaged groups and the younger generation.

Highlights of Community Events
HEEBER

“

EREERBELE

AEBERF-ENDEESD BARE
WHRHEERRERRENEEIA %
FR-BMEBRETENFTEREE
MREFEBEHTOEHEATETEE)
BB TRFROFRIHSEAEEL
B EHEERREH VL LHEER-
BB BRE BNAESRIER
ERRERANEED  BIEEI&EE
M BETEZFE EBEMBRRIA
REANEEESE AR TEALH

== 37 o

™ AN

FEREFENRFEEHT O ELIR
HeBBERES BREY REW
GREZ2HESAILBENRSE  BAK
RALEAEA - SN HAITEREE A
NG ARBRHBEREHERE AR
BEZRR2EBEED-

HEERHE
BAPBARE2EEREREE UL ANE
MR Inceit & 28 K AR - BB TR
FRFAB I ELEAE BIE
ETMIMEEIEREE  XIF55 8 RFRE K
FEAA o

"y

Mock English Classroom
REEERERE
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Highlights of Community Events

Purchasing Cookies made by

Madam Hong’s Bakery
Supporting the Charity
Premiere of Fu Hong Society

BERESE | HENHT
I ZRHEE EEEW I
LNG Esports Team Members Visiting an Autism
Caring Centre in Chongqing and Delivering Gift
Packs to Disadvantaged Children

LNGE % B X B B R 5 E B I B E B 2 14
B AYNBFEREXEELYE
LNG Esports Team Members
Participating in the “LPL Cares”

Community Project
LNGE %% B X B 8 2 52 [ LPL
CaresEE ARES | BE5E

OL  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EN, Bl #: IR B BR A T
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Awards and Recognition RIBRFAT

The Group has been widely recognised for its continual efforts on AEBEHREESFENBEERS
community investment. Some of the highlighted awards and recognitions e EZRA -MEHARN ~NEEH
during the Reporting Period include: EU/5 H) 2218 R 3R Al B 4F

Operations Awards/Recognition

EBEBEN #®18 R

Hong Kong p  Presented with the “5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
headquarters RERBH R M (5 Years Pus AR BE | 1256

BBAL

p  Presented with the “10th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Logo (Volunteer Team
Category and SME Category)” by Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Committee on the
Promation of Civic Education
KEBBEENRERRARYEZEGHE (FTEEAALEELARSE
S (BIBAERI R/ NEIREAR) ]

p  Presented with the “Hong Kong Sustainability Award 2018/19 — Certificate of Excellence” by the
Hong Kong Management Association

RERBEEEERSEE [ BEIFHERRE018/19 - 2]

p  Presented with a certificate of appreciation by the 2018-19 “Hong Kong Citizen Hong Kong Heart”
Volunteer Ambassador Programme organised by the Social Welfare Department

KREMHESRANBHEE (201819 (BFEA-BEL) ETRETH] ZFAHR

p  Presented with a certificate of appreciation by the “Say Yes To Breastfeeding 2019/2020" campaign
organised by UNICEF Hong Kong, Food and Health Bureau and Department of Health
KEBABEREESEAZES RYKBEREEEERE
[ 55 8275 FAE2019/2020 | B AK

B
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Operations Awards/Recognition
EBE ®E R
Yangzhou Li Ning »  Honoured as “Jiangsu Sports Service Complex”
Sports Park WERIIHEABERBKIIREE]
EMNEERE
»  Honoured as the “Best Competition Venue” (Employee Division and Community Sports Division) in the
13th Sports Games of Yangzhou
HWELSBNTETZEEDG [HEER] (BRIXREESEEE)
b mEANEHE > Presented with a certificate of donation by China Charities Aid Foundation For Children
EihER® KEPEVFREREMHECERBRBEESE
BRAT
FNEHEE »  Presented with the “Most Supportive Organisation Award” by Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in
BE(tx) China
BRAF KEGEES(MR)EERE [RFEERBE]
»  Presented with a letter of appreciation by the China Education Development Foundation
WEIFBEHEERES S ARG K
LNG Esports team »  Presented with a certificate of appreciation by One Foundation

LNGE % 8 B

W B ZE S T R K

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 R, = Bl 2 B B PR A\ 7]
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8. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. Hﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬁ%iﬁ CHERERRE
ESIRA %3
Aspect HKEx KPI Description Page Number/
fBmE BT Remarks
AEEN Bl B
i
A.  Environmental
BRIE
A1  Emissions Al General Disclosure 78-81
B — MR
A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data 83
PERU ) & 18 I AE B e BB
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 83
MERBERERTE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity 85
FMEXEEREEVHEERER
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 85
FMECREEEMHEERER
A15 Measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved 79
AR BEN 2 818 1 R FT1S R
A1.6 How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction 80
initiatives and results achieved
EERENEBEEREMNIL  REELEENEIER
FTSACR
A2 Use of Resources A2 General Disclosure 78-81
BREA — R
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and 84
intensity

RSN ERL SHEEREEERTE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 84
BEKERKE
A2.3 Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 79

RETR 8 A R s 5T B AT S AR
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Aspect HKEx KPl Description Page Number/
[& | B Remarks
BREX HiE B
BE
A2.4 Issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives and results 79
achieved
SKEUE A /KR L T A (R - A REE T A7k Basat
2 X FT1SACR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Due to the business

nature of the Group,
this KPI'is considered

not material,
R mAAEREMENESE ENAEE 2 X715
WE Eme e
BIERAERRE
o
A3 The Environment A3 General Disclosure 78-81
and Natural — s
Resources
BRERRAARER
A3.1 Significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural 78-81
resources and actions taken to manage them
XBEEPUBRERAREBFRNEAZEREKNE
BERAXENTTE
B  Social
e
B1 Employment B1 General Disclosure 86-87
&= —REE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 88
geographical region
ZUR - EERR  FERER Rt EE DK EES B E
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 88
region
ZER - FRRARN RN EESHEBRAL X
B2 Health and Safety B2 General Disclosure 90
BREEZZ —RHE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities NILE
B T {ERA (R if 8 T B9 A B tb 3
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury NILE

AIBBRXIIERH
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Aspect HKEx KPl  Description Page Number/
=g B Remarks
BREN B B
BEE
B2.3 Occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 90

implemented and monitored

%fﬁ%%ﬁ%@%ﬁi%%%ﬁ@ ARERBIT REER

B3 Development and B3 General Disclosure 89
Training — R E
BE R o
B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender and 89

employee category
gliﬁﬂ&@ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂéﬂﬁ BHEREETAZIIN TR

B4 Labour Standards B4 General Disclosure 90
& T | —RIEE
B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 90

forced labour

5 R A 116 4 A DA 2 B T R 48 T

B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 90
EEREBRIBARERBBIBAMEKEA 2R

B5 Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure 91
Management —RRE
HEEEE
B6 Product B6 General Disclosure 91-92
Responsibility —RRE
EmEE
B6.5 Consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 92

implemented and monitored

E‘;ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬂ%ﬂz% A RAERBITRER S
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Aspect HKEx KPl Description Page Number/
[& | BRAT Remarks
BEW HiE B
BE
B7 Anti-corruption  B7 General Disclosure 91
RES —PRIXEE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices NILE

brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the outcomes of the cases
RBEHANEBTASIEEERETEEENES
FARMEE RFRER

B7.2 Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they 91
are implemented and monitored

PrgidE e Bz ARABBRIT RER A

B8 Community B8 General Disclosure 92
Investment — =
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 93
ErEREE
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area 92-93

EEIGEEMBAER (M EXER)
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IndependentJAuditoris)Report

To the Shareholders of Viva China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Viva China Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 208,
which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

18 N7 1% 2160 ¥R &5

BEAAE

BEATEERERATDRR
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to Revenue recognition:

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]
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Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

Revenue recognition

WA #Z

Refer to Note 3 critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements, Note 4 operating segment information and Note 5
revenue, other income and other gains-net to the consolidated
financial statements
F2HREMBRRMAIBEBRG T RR LA
B B EEARS L 9 BB A R R BT RO AR ~ B A U A R LA
W F 5

The Group recognised revenue of HK$625 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The revenue was mainly derived from sports
content production and distribution, sports talent management, sale
of goods and community development consultancy services.
HE_Z-NF+T_A=+—BLEE EEEHEIAWK
625,000,000 7T - MAEERENEE N B RERE
T BEASTER HEMMARM RAFEZEARY -

Significant management judgement was involved in revenue
recognition, such as determining whether the role of the Group in
those transactions was acting as principal or as agent and whether to
recognise revenue on a gross or net basis. The assessment included
considering and weighing key features like which party bears the
primary responsibility, inventory risks, and the way to establish prices.
WARRRIREBBENENHE fINEEEEEL
REFHABREARIEIRBERSREANLEE R
PREERFREEREBARA ZETHBREZSE
MEGHNESERESAEFERER BRERERE
R ARRERBEEEBENEBESE-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESTNATEERREESSE

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s judgement with
reference to the relevant accounting standards and consideration of
relevant facts and circumstances. The audit procedures we performed
mainly included:
BRERBGT LT EZBEBEENER  KMAHERE
BHEH B ET T E -RMEENEAREFEE
BIE

- We reviewed selected samples of contracts, discussed with
management, finance and business personnel of the Group to
understand the business substance, transaction process and
arrangement;

- HAEETHEEDRONER BESEEERE-
MGHMEBETIEEABETIR THREEEE
kRS miBMET

- For selected samples of transactions, we examined the
supporting documents, including sales orders, shipping
documents, records of deliverables, invoices and cash receipts,
where applicable;

- HEWMKRERNRG KMRETHEBEIFUEX
% BIEHEE BEE RHMNREKRLH
BEMNRERE (0E)F:

- We selected samples of customers to confirm the balances as
of 31 December 2019, the main terms of the contracts and the
amounts of transactions occurred during the year;

- HMsTEHEERNEFPFEE_Z-NF+A
=+ —BRERKERFHRE &R E Z RN FRE
SR GEERT HERF -
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESEER BB NAEERREENSE

Revenue recognition

KA ER

Our audit focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue, We also performed the following procedures in relation to the

the sales and services contracts that the Group entered into in the judgement of the revenue recognition on a gross or net basis:

current year and the significant judgment involved. BMEHEHBARR B ATFREERNABERE T

BPINBFEIE—BERERTWARBARKE  THEF:

MBRHESR  REEE - RS RO EEE H 6 -

We reviewed the contracts and discussed with the management
to assess the main terms, including who is the primary obligor
to provide goods or services to the customer, who has the
inventory risks;

BZMEERETTER WEEREBRATGE
TEGRN BREEAEFHENRERBHNEE
BN HEEREEERR

For selected samples of customers and suppliers, we
interviewed them to understand the key areas of their
cooperation, such as how their relationships were established,
how the price was negotiated and determined and the
acceptance of goods delivered or service rendered;

S MR T AR BRI E 7 5
THRERSEREPHNFTERE  flnE s mEE
TREEBER BRORAEEEARERENS
1 S PR 755 B B K

Based on the procedures performed, the audit evidence we collected

can support the management’s judgement of the revenue recognised

according to the accounting policy.

EREERNER BARENESGTIBEAIXHERE
HIRBE ST IR R U A R 2B -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Hftt 5 2

BERREFAHAMERAR HiWEER
REBRANAAERS BT EREREEMBER
KRBT ZBED R o
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HY 22 38 A ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.,
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report
is Brian Ming Yan Choi.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

o FESEMBEmMRNOERIIHmNA &
BHUAR BEKE URKEMBR
REDTERRR ZHMEIR-

e HMESBERNERXXKIPFNUKE
BERFTT HEENELRE UEY
HAMBRERERBR -BMAEAES
BETOTE EBMAT HMAE
AARREAEEHEE

BEMBEEN RMEBREERERTH
BBHOE BETH BABEHBRES
BERMER R ABE N EE
AERIE «

BPMEMNBEZZESRIBHA HALMD
NeEEBYEMBERERERE R Wik
B EE A RERAETERME
MMERABERMEMER A RIEEAN
BRT B &G -

ftEBEZZEBBNERD  LFIHEEH
LEREAMGEMBRERRNBAZA/E
2 A 45k B B2 | A =18 - WAATE X BED
WEPHEMELER RIPDERERT
AARBELER HEHRKERNEBER
T REEEHERMRETBREER
ERNBEEERBEELEN AR - B
REFEERSPEBLER

HEARBYZEMBENETBEARBAR
ZLER{C -

BIRUCKE G B
HEE D

BE —_ZE_ZEF=-HA_++tH

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

107



Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-F

Consolidated mm@mmmmﬁu 15i
GolEnkHEthE G &

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

velincome)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOT§S HK$"0@ HK$'OO_O
B 5 FAET FAT
Revenue Y 2= 9 625,004 1,134,584
Cost of sales $HE KA (501,795) (967,856)
Gross profit EX 123,209 166,728
Other income and other gains — net E AU A R B U 25 F 5 5 890,637 24,532
Selling and distribution expenses 35 N 85 B X (47,658) (41,215)
Administrative and other operating expenses {7 2 H b 48 & & F (273,346) (136,220)
Net impairment losses on financial assets MBEEREFEER 39 (82,483) (17,738)
Finance costs B 7% B AN o 6 (118,334) (83,693)
Share of profits less losses of associates DEBERRRAEREL
and joint ventures i F) Rk s 18 15 342,112 182,329
Profit before income tax BR FT 15 %% A s A 7 834,137 94,723
Income tax Frig e 10 (7,533) (21,733)
Profit for the year o A 826,604 72,990
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  E 2 @ (&8 ) W
ltems that may be reclassified subsequenty ~ HE A B NI EBaE 2
to profit or loss, net of income tax of nil HE MRS (&)
— Share of other comprehensive —DhBERELZ
income/(loss) of an associate Hih 2 Mz
(EE) 427 (514)
— Reclassification adjustment upon —RETHE—HEZER
partial disposal of an associate  AIREMBAE 39,737 =
— Release of exchange reserve upon - REE—EHEARR
disposal of a subsidiary FRERIE X 1B 10,437 =
— Exchange differences on translation of —MEBIEHL
foreign operations fE X =% (102,658) (246,515)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, SR EM 2 HEIE
net of income tax B AT 18 B (52,057) (247,029)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZERE(FE)AHE
for the year 774,547 (174,039)
Profit attributable to: UM AL G mA
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAESETE A 834,366 76,982
— Non-controlling interests — YRR 25 (7,762) (3,992)
826,604 72,990
Total comprehensive income/(loss) BUF AT G 2E RS
attributable to: (B1R) A
— Equity holders of the Company —AREIEDERAEA 784,347 (168,047)
— Non-controlling interests — IV AR A 25 (9,800) (5,992)
774,547 (174,039)
Profit per share attributable to RRRRmIFRE AESL
equity holders of the Company: BRER
Basic (HK cents) EOR () 11 7.41 0.69
Diluted (HK cents) s (A1) 11 7.34 0.67

The notes on pages 115 to 208 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

£1158 % %QOSEFE%CZW&EE ERE
BRER ZERER D
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As at 31 December 2019 W—_Z—HAF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 2 TR FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 12 74,156 20,399
Investment properties "RE Y 13 - 139,938
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12 176,282 =
Intangible assets mEEE 14 423,690 29,721
Interests in associates and joint ventures REE AR REEDEIER 15 2,939,730 3,596,220
Prepayments, depasits and other receivables T3 1E ~ 24 &
H fib & YW SR IA 20 33,628 68,955
Other non-current asset HEMIERDEE 551 =
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 28 23,700 12,443
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 3,671,737 3,867,676
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Stock of properties MEFE 17 290,557 293,474
Inventories FE 18 1,807 244
Trade debtors and hills receivable JE W BR TR K e M AR 19 199,624 380,315
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TS X IE - 24 R A fb
JE W3 I8 20 50,236 115,861
Derivative financial instruments PTEBMBKIA 16 - 22,780
Restricted bank balances PR 1 1% SR 17 45 #4 22 3,342 =
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHE R 21 649,262 380,654
Total current assets nBEEHEE 1,194,828 1,193,328
CURRENT LIABILITIES B8 &
Trade and other payables J& <1 BR 0 K2 HL A B <) SR I8 23 172,594 146,237
Contract liabilities EHEaE 5 61,377 20,474
Accruals i E A 24 50,794 33,859
Deferred income B E WA 25 8,959 15,732
Lease liabilities HEAE 12 15,359 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEBMKITA 16 2,965 =
Bank loans RITE K 26 - 40,023
Income tax payable FERFTIS R 15,503 34,654
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 327,551 290,979
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFE 867,277 902,349
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHRERADER
LIABILITIES 4,539,014 4,770,025
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income PRIE WA 25 1,872 10,011
Other payables E b fE 5 5/ I8 2,730 =
Derivative financial instruments TEMBKITA 16 - 2,772
Lease liabilities HEAE 12 169,279 —
Bank loan RITEN 26 1,256,000 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBEE 28 49,538 3,178
Convertible notes A AR E AR 27 - 819,602
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEAR 1,479,419 835,563
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,059,595 3,934,462
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As at 31 December 2019 W-—ZT—HAFE+=-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity AATEZEEAEBEGES
holders of the Company
Issued capital EBITRA 29 443,217 442,396
Perpetual convertible bonds KA MR R &5 31 1,139,046 1,139,046
Reserves & 32 1,439,034 2,309,695
3,021,297 3,891,137
Non-controlling interests FEITE AR = 38,298 43,325
TOTAL EQUITY DB 3,059,595 3,934,462
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March AP BHRERZZE_TF=-HA=_+tHE
2020. ExgntE-
Li Ning Li Chunyang
= =E5G
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
FRFTHAZ HMITEF
The notes on pages 115 to 208 are an integral part of these consolidated F1SEEF08EAE 2T AZEHEAH
financial statements. R 2 BRER D ©
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Consolidated]Statementlof{Changes]in)Equity

GolEn 2%

Notes

(i3

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARREREAEL

“NE+TZA=+—HBLLFE

Share  Exchange

option  fluctuation Reserve  notes equity

reserve reserve funds

il
BREGE XBER @RI
HSOO0  HKSOOD KOO0
TR TET  TER

Non-
Accumulated controlling Total
losses Total interests equity

RitBE &t FERRE REAE
HEOD  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO0
TRn  TRT  TEL  TER

1 January 2018

Proft for the year

(ther comprehensive income/[loss) for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprenensive loss of an associate

=%-\%--A

ERER

EhAb2ERE/ (BR):
BEBNEHENEE
AERERAZEBZERR

160,105 (58,786 6,664

- st -
- B14) -

(1.947.262) 4,003,132 5303 4038485

76,962 76,982 3.992) 72990

- sy Qo0 [65TS)
= B14) - B4

Total comprefensive (loss}/income for the year

Acquisiton of a subsidiary

Shares issued upon exercise of share opfions

Equty-setfled share aption aangements

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfefure or
expiy of share opfions

Share of associaes' eserve

Transfer to statutory reserve

FRRE(FB)/halE
WE-mHEAR
BREEMERZTIRG k|
HREEE BRERE k|
RERER RS
ERFBRERERE
AERERAZEE
BATHTRE

- (4509 o

1) - -

{71

13,599 = =

(2212 = o

21,931 = 312
= = 20

76982 (168,047) (5,992 (174039)
13,964 13,964

= 2,313 ° 2,313
(407) 13,148 = 13,148
2212 = = =
(3123 21,531 = 21,531
[2.012) = = =

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Profit for he year
(ther comprehensive income/[loss) for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment upon partil disposal
of an associate
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary
Share of other comprehensive income 0f an associate

EREHN
FRERZERGE/ (B8
MEW*%ZE%%%
REFLE-HBELRA"
EFHRAR
MEE-FRBARKBRELRE
AEBEANZ Eb2ERE

165,911 (303,815 11,799"

(100,620) =

= 39,737 o
= 10437 o
= a1 o

(1,863,644 381,137 4335 3,934,462

834366 834,366 (1,762) 826,604

- (g (0% (102650)

o 39737 o 39737
o 10437 o 10437
= a1 = a1

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
Acquisiton of subsidiaries

Acguisiton of non-controllng interests without a change in contol

Share issued upon exercise of share options

Fouty-setlled share option arengements

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfefure or
expiy of share opfions

Share of associates's reserve

Redempton of equty component of convertle notes

Dividend paid

ER2E (BE)/ hE4E
%WE il

%%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂzh £l
WREEEZBRELHR ]
RERERRIEERERARRERE

AMEBERR 2 HE
BOTARZRNERTS bij
ERRE 4

= (50,019) o

(3,133) = o
10377 - -

(53,430) = =
20,090 - -

834,366 784,341 (9,800) 74547
o o 18,499 18,499
13917 13917 (13,726) 191

- o® = 9,198
- -
53,430 = = =
- W - 0
075 (086 - (dogen)
- (1667,102) - (66710

As at 31 December 2019

RZE-NE+ZA=t-B

139816* (363834 11,799

(902,206 3,021,297 38,298 3,069,505

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,439,034,000
(2018: HK$2,309,695,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

) ZERERPERAMBEMRRARAZLER
éféﬁﬁ1 ,439,034,0008 T (=& — )\ F:
2,309,695,0007 7T, ) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #F ¥R



112

mir\D qu‘ﬁ_

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-F

—“NE+ZA=+—HLFE

Consolidat:d Statementiof{Cash]Elows

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FAET
GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EETBEZCRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax G F54 Al v ) 834,137 94,723
Adjustments for: FERs
Finance costs ﬁ7f A 6 118,334 83,693
Share of profits less losses of associates DIaEE N E K&
and joint ventures A A2 R R EE 15 (342,112) (182,329)
Net gain on partial disposal of HER—FBERAZ
interest in an associate o Em s W F R 5 (817,352) =
Interest income A E YA 5 (8,531) (6,525)
Fair value (gain)/loss on KEMEZATE
investment properties Wzs) /&8 13 (461) 677
Fair value gain on redemption of FE O AR iR 2
convertible notes N ERE 5 (67,122) =
Fair value loss on derivative PTEBMBITAEZ
financial instruments NFEEE 5 254 5,109
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing B E‘f’gﬁ”‘/\ %/JE E
interest in a joint venture WRERR W= - (1,764)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, ~ HEME  ME M RE
plant and equipment HEZER, (KE) 5 80 (183)
Depreciation e 12 20,004 4,200
Amortisation of intangible assets B & E R 14 14,459 380
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHBRR 2 EE 5 29,957 =
Impairment on intangible assets EBEEEZRE 14 31,368 =
Impairment on investment in a joint venture R — A Z N EZ
®EZRIE 15 17,381 —
Impairment on financial assets BB E 2R E 7 82,483 17,738
Equity-settled share option expenses ARRESEE 2 BBRRER 30(a) 10,377 13,148
(76,744) 28,867
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FE(Em, m (358) 76
Increase in stock of praperties EER=g Il - (3,552)
Decrease/(increase) in trade debtors and TH&B% YL EE
bills receivable w1 )Jl] 181,528 (80,098)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, iz} 1‘JL RIE e REAM
deposits and other receivables & WK IE/JESZ 2 / (&) 65,196 (1,322)
Decrease in derivative financial instruments — $74 B % T B g 4> 22,780 -
Decrease in trade and other payables B BR 3 K
Emrﬁ I8 (110,947) (12,013)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHEE(RD) gD (21,545) 20,474
Increase/(decrease) in accruals fEETE A i‘ jJD/ O 17,184 (50,520)
Decrease in deferred income LH&U\/UZ L (15,490) (14,042)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LIEEBE, (FTA)RE 61,604 (112,130)
Income tax paid EfFTSH (20,300) (29,038)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) 2EESME(FABRE
operating activities mEFRE 41,304 (141,168)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ‘RS EME &

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—-F

“NE+TZA=+—HBLLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7E FERT FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETEB2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &Y - ME &
plant and equipment REEB 2B RE 330 577
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEZMENRIE
properties - 64,060
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, & —EM B QA 2 {5
net of cash RIEF %E (MNBIEL) 95,731 =
Dividends received from associates BWEERAZIRE 15 50,523 11,343
Net proceeds on partial disposal of HER— F'ﬁ R /N] 4
interest in an associate B
FriGsIBF 58 1,719,683 —
Interest received =S 9,500 4510
Purchases of items of property, plant and BE #@% B KR B
equipment 12 (10,590) (7,799)
Purchases of intangible assets EBEEFEE (5,461) =
Purchases of investment properties EBEREYME 13 - (11,331)
Payment for investing in a joint venture Tﬁ’éf—FﬁA%fL\%FEH PIB = (576)
Net payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, Y B& B B A B BT~ FR B F 58
net of cash (HBRI‘E=2) (264,597) (3,407)
Net cash flows generated from investing % § /E BRBZRE
activities MEFRE 1,595,119 57,377
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETBH2ESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid =EN] ﬂ (124,032) (40,530)
Proceeds from new bank loan HERTT Fﬁ?% PO 1,256,000 40,000
Repayment of bank loan (=85 fﬁ ﬁ f% = (40,000) (40,000)
Repayment of convertible notes BB RIE (778,000) =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon E%Hﬁ RRITER T
exercise of share options LRI FRIA 9,198 21,373
Dividend paid BB (1,667,102) -
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEZ ﬁ F (10,229) =
Repayment to a non-controlling interest M) JEHE PR AE 2 I8 3K - (1,076)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BREEBARENEFHE (1,354,165) (20,233)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows RS I EME &

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZE—NAF+_A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B st FET FAET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERREZEYEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) 38 282,258 (104,024)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F %] fﬁi&fﬁégfﬂf% 380,654 521,012
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  SMNEFE R &8 2 &2 & F 5 (13,650) (36,334)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESCRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 649,262 380,654
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND HRERBESZEEYEH DN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & MIRITH R 21 500,867 349,457
Non-pledged time deposits with original REINHELR=@ARA
maturity of less than three months JEE AR E BTE K 21 148,395 31,197
Cash and bank balances as stated in the R AR KRR 2
statement of financial position H& MIRITE % 21 649,262 380,654

The notes on pages 115 to 208 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notesito]Consolidated

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

° production and distribution of sports content, management and marketing
of sports talents and provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy
services; and

° operation of sports parks and sports centres, development of communities,
provision of community development consultancy and subcontracting services;
property development for sales and investment, and research and development,
manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction materials.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2331), is an associated company

of the Group, whose principal activities include brand development, design,
manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment
and accessories in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

CITIC Land Co., Ltd ("CITIC Land"), a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability and a directly owned subsidiary of CITIC Group Corporation,

is an associated company of the Group, whose principal activities include
property development and operation; property management; hotel investment
and management; construction project and facilities contracting and equipment
installations; decoration units; landscaping; property development consultancy.

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (the “Double Happiness"), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, is an associated company of the
Group, whose principal activities include manufacture, research and development,
marketing and sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment under its
own “AL# = (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories.

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.

alfStatements
o o 1% ¥k 2% M 5

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

1. AaEHE
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5 B & fR B8 B AR R T 35 1 B K K AR
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BNIRE A NEM 23 B MISHEE
KIHE °

ZERRAR ([FERTF])  —HXRASEH
SHMKIZ 2 BRAR HE TR P
RArER T (BRDASE:2331) RAKHE
Z—HBERR HXBRBHBERENTP
FEARAME ([MEDREZREHEBEE
1 BReh 838 M 2 R % - BRET B
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5] o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations ("HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@ New and amended standaras adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting HKFRS
16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1 January 2019, see
Note 2.2(c).

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  New standard issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that

are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting period and have not been

early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material

impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods.

(c)  Changes in accounting policies
This Note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases on the
Group'’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.2(a) above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019,
The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.3.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation

to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases” under the
principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019.

(i Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics

° relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an
alternative to performing an impairment review — there were no onerous contracts
as at 1 January 2019

° accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of 12 months
or less as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases; and

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset
at the date of initial application.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a
lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and
Interpretation 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

2. FESHEREME (8
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(i)~ Measurement of lease liabilities

Al ¥ ¥R 2% B 5

2. FEEHEHESRE #)
iy MEREZFTE

2019
—B-hEF
HK$'000
FAET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-NF+ZA=1+—B%E
as at 31 December 2018 B4 T E R IE 111,309
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate E’\\%}] MRFER H B A ATE A/
of at the date of initial application HEERFEEITHE 43,255
(Less): short-term leases nat recognised as a liability CR) - WEmRAEaE T SHEE (3,198)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NF-—HA—BRIANEEEE 40,057
Of which are: HpwE:
Current lease liabilities nEEEAE 4,769
Non-current lease liabilities RBEEEE 35,288
40,057

(i)~ Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid

or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement

of financial position as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the statement of financial position on 1 January
2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in statement of
financial position on 1 January 2019:

° right-of-use assets — increased by HK$38,112,000

° prepayments, deposits and other receivables — decreased by HK$265,000

o lease liabilities — increased by HK$40,057,000

o trade and other payables — decreased by HK$2,210,000

(v)  Lessor accounting
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has

control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Any contingent consideration

to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

It the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group’s reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment.
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the profit or loss.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any
difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold

improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and

motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable

to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% t0 5%
Shorter of remaining
lease term or 20%
7.5% t0 33.3%

9% to 33.3%

9% t0 25%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold

interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the

definition of an investment property) held for long-term rental yields or for capital

appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties

are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where

applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are

carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting

date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if

necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific

asset.

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment
property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation gain
or loss in ‘other gains — net’. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal

of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

(@)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s
interest in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (‘CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or Group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Impairment reviews of goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets

are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Iracemarks and membership

Separately acquired trademark and membership are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks and membership acquired in business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and membership that have finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks and membership over their estimated useful lives
of 10 years.

Operating rights

Acquired operating rights are shown at historical cost. Operating rights acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of operating rights over their estimated useful lives
of 15 10 20 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

League Qualffication

League qualification has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. It is initially

measured at fair value of the consideration given to acquire at the time of the

acquisition. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the

cost of league qualification over its estimated useful lives of 9 years.

Players’ registration rights

The costs associated with the acquisition of players registrations are capitalized
as intangible assets at the fair value of the consideration payable, including

an estimate of the fair value of any contingent consideration. Subsequent
reassessments of the amount of contingent consideration payable are also
included in the cost of the individual's registration. This assessment is carried out
on an individual basis. The costs are amortised over the period covered by the
individual's contract of 1.5 to 2 years.

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using the straight-
line method over the following periods.

° Trademarks and membership 10 years

° Operating rights 15-20 years
° League Qualification 9 years

° Players’ registration rights 1.5-2 years

Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
leases where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is described below and the
impact of the change in Note 2.2.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a

corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by

the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific 1o the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do
s0 for the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all

leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in

profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and those
to be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-

date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial

recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case

of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain

or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from

the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For further details on the Group's accounting policies for management of financial
assets, see Note 39 credit risk.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments of the Group include call and put options

in connection with the acquisition of an associate. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the

fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Perpetual Convertible Bonds

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to
convert these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to
adjustments as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual
Convertible Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are
treated as equity instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially

at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option.

The equity component is recognised initially at the difference between the fair

value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the

liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in convertible notes

equity reserve. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the

liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition. The convertible notes equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts upon conversion.
Balance of convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits or losses at the expiry of the conversion rights.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as current unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Costs of properties include acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs and other direct costs attributable to the properties. The carrying values

of properties held by subsidiaries are adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements to reflect the Group’s actual costs incurred where appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Irade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables

Trade debtors and hills receivable are amounts due from customers for goods sold

and services rendered in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade

debtors and bills receivable and other receivables is expected in one year or less,

they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade debtors and bills receivable with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 19 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade debtors and bills receivable and Note 39 for a description of
the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

Irade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between

the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised

in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the business model, terms of the
contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation, depending

on the nature of the good and service to be transferred, is measured based

on one of the following methods that best depicts the Group's performance in

satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value of individual services transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

° the Group'’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods followed by related services,
or multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contact has performed, the Group presents the contract
in the statement of financial position as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a customer. Contract assets and assets
arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract that are recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 15. The Group uses practical expedients to recognise the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred as the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is made. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue

streams of the Group:

(@)  from providing services including integrated sports content production
and distribution, sports talent management, community development consultancy
service and sports park facilities hiring, in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on
the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of
the total services to be provided because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when control of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer, which is upon the acceptance of the goods.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the
Group is a principal if it obtains control through one of the following way:

° Control the good or services before it transfers to the customers;

° Has the ability to direct another party to provide the service to the customer
on the entity’s behalf; or

° Providing a significant service of integrating services and obtains control
of the inputs to the specified good or service and directs their use to create the
combined output that is the specified good or service.

If control is not clear, the Group will analyse the three indicators (1) who is the
primary obligator; (2) who has the inventory risk and (3) who has the discretion in
establishing the price to assist the analysis of control. Sometimes, control are not
always clear and judgement are need in analysis of whether the Group is principle
or agent.

If the Group is principle, revenue will be recognise at the ‘gross’ amount paid
by the customer for the specified good or service and record a corresponding
expense for the commission or fee that it has to pay to any agent, in addition to
the direct costs of satisfying the contract. If as an agent, will record revenue the
commission or fee earned for facilitating the transfer of the specified goods or
services (the ‘net” amount retained).

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease terms;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective

interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of other

income and other gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted on
grant day:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over

which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each

reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It

recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Foreign currency transiation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost

in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

translation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the translations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
franslated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation atiributable to the owners of the company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made

the following judgements apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

() Revenue recognition

The main revenue streams of the Group include revenue from sports content
production and distribution, sports talent management, sale of goods and
community development consultancy services. Under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of
services is recognised when control of goods or services transfer to customers.
The Group’s accounting policy in relation to revenue recognition is disclosed in
Note 2.3. In addition, the illustrative example of HKFRS 15 requires the Group to
determine whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent on these type of
activities, the Group made assessment based on indicators of (a) who is primarily
responsible for providing the goods or services; (b) who has inventory risk; and
(c) who has latitude to establish prices. Based on a comprehensive assessment of
all the facts and circumstances, judgement is made on an individual contract basis
to determine whether revenue can be recognised during the year and whether
revenue should be recognised on a gross or net basis.

With respect to the sponsorship and marketing related services the Group
provided to its associates in relation to a top-tier professional basketball league
in the PRC included in sports content production and distribution income in

Note 5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET, the Group makes

a judgement that it is acting as a principal instead of an agent by considering
several factors including: (a) the Group creates the combined output by integrating
services and goods provided by other parties together with the services produced
by itself; (b) the Group could control the services and goods and direct the use
of them; (c) the Group is acting as the primary obligor to fulfill the obligations to
provide integrated sponsorship and marketing activities services to its customers;
and (d) the Group bears the substantive inventory risk of the specified goods and
services obtained from the suppliers.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 15, 16, 28, and 30 contain information about the assumptions and their

risk factors relating to estimation of interests in associates and joint ventures,

derivative financial instruments, deferred tax assets and liabilities and fair value of

share options granted, other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

() Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk

of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on

the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 39.

(i) Impairment of Goodwill and intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with

the accounting policies stated in Note 2.3. Indefinite life intangible assets and
goodwill are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and

its value in use. Both calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation

of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the value in
use of assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated
with the non-current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital
expenditure and working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If
future events do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts
will need to be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with goodwill. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with goodwill have been determined based on
value in use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal calculation, which use
cash flow projections as at 31 December 2019. These cash flow projections are
derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast covering a period
of 5-10 years and have incorporated necessary updates. The key assumptions
used in the value in use calculations are set out in Note 14,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Depreciation

The Group’s management exercises its judgement in estimating the useful lives

of the depreciable assets. The estimated useful lives reflect the management’s

estimate of the periods the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from

the use of these assets.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.3 to the financial statements. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group’s internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered,
and for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group is organised into two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the sports-related business segment engages in the production and
distribution of sports content, management and marketing of sports talents and
provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy service; and

(b)  the sports destinations development segment engages in operation of
sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks, development of communities,
provision of community development consultancy and subcontracting services;
property development for sales and investment, and research and development,
marketing and sales of construction materials.

From 1 January 2019, community development segment information was
presented in sports destinations development segment due to the development of
the Group’s business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax. The
adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
or loss before tax except that interest income, finance costs, equity-settled share
option expenses, fair value changes on investment properties, share of profits
and losses of associates and joint ventures as well as head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. REIWBER (8

Sports
Sports-related destinations
business development Total
BE-Z2-hF BB BERM
Year ended 31 December 2019 +tZA=+-RLEE HEER 2R At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TER
Segment revenue: DB :
External B 356,413 268,591* 625,004
Segment results PBEE 22,939 (70,729) (47,790)
Reconciliation: FE -
Interest income FEWA 8,531
Fair value gain on investment property REME A FERE 461
Fair value gain on redemption of convertible notes ERTHRERE L
AFEY S 67,122
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments MTEMBTIAZ N TEER (254)
Net gain on partial disposal of interest in an associate ~ EER —FHHE A E) 2
Bt 2 W F 817,352
Equity-settled share option expense NREEE 2 BRERS (10,377)
Impairment on investment n a joint venture R-BEeEtEREZRE (17,381)
Impairment on intangible assets EWEEZREA (31,368)
Impairment on financial assets HBEEZRE (82,483)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMBARZER (29,957)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses CrEREMRIERY (63,497)
Share of profits less losses of associates and AMEBERAREERELZ
joint ventures i AR B 18 342,112
Finance costs IR I (118,334)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 54 A1 % 71 834,137
Other segment information: HinHEH:
Depreciation e 5,047 10,971 16,018
Add: depreciation related to corporate m:ErEEENE 3,986
20,004
Capital expenditure BEARY 2,004 7,519 9,523
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate MmECEEE EARY 1,067
10,590

*

Included in sports destinations development were HK$187,430,000 revenue
derived from sales of construction materials

B AT & B9 U A 187,430,00058 7T T st A
BEEMNMERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

4. RKEIIWEHR (80

Sports-related Community
husiness development Total
BE-Z-N\F ) \ \ .
Year ended 31 December 2018 TZA=+—HLEFE BERBER ik Bt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
. FET THT THT
Segment revenue: DEUE
External Mg 363,310 771,274 1,134,584
Segment results PREE 51,928 10,184 62,112
Reconciliation: HEZ
Interest income ESL N 6,525
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing interest EMMENGELEL
in a joint venture RAED WS 1,764
Fair value loss on investment properties REWME 2 NTEEE (677)
Equity-settled share option expense MRS v ERERY (13,148)
Corporate and other unallocated income CEREMRDERA 183
Corporate and other unallocated expenses TEREMEAIRAS (60,672)
Share of profits less losses of associates and PEBERRIRAEREL
joint ventures i AU 1B 182,329
Finance costs BB A (83,693)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 4 A 7 94,723
Other segment information: At &R
Depreciation . 573 S8 4,104
Add: depreciation related to corporate mECEEE ME 96
4,200
Capital expendture EAR X i 140 7,577 .17
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate mECEEE s EARY 658
8,375
Information about major customers FEFEFZEH

Revenue of approximately HK$316,249,000 was derived from an individual
customer of the sports-related business segment which is a related party

as disclosed in Note 35, while HK$85,723,000, HK$69,060,000 and
HK$33,062,000 were derived from three individual customers of the sports
destinations development segment, respectively, for the year ended 31 December
2019,

Revenue of approximately HK$329,959,000 was derived from an individual
customer of the sports-related business segment, while HK$274,695,000,
HK$270,330,000 and HK$152,068,000 were derived from three individual
customers of the community development segment, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Geographic information
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the operating activities of the
Group are mainly carried out in the PRC.

REBEZE-_T—NE+_A=+—HILFE-
#7316,249,000/8 Tz Wk B —ZE B HE
¥BoBZE@RITFE (A E35FT#H B /R
B A1) M85,723,0005% 7T ~ 69,060,000 7T
$33,062,0008 T2 WHE N RIKRBE=RES
BRI @REE -

REBE-_ZE—-N\EFE+-_A=+—RBILEE"
#9329,959,0008 ez Wik B —ZE B HE
Ko 2 @R - M274,695,000% 7T
270,330,000 7T % 152,068,0005 7T 2 W 25 5>
AIRE=ZBHERAES D ZERIES -

it & & K
BHE_Z-NFR_Z-NF+_A=+—
BIEFE ARENEEETDHERTTEE
7°
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET 5. UWrak - E bl A K H fth U 53 7% B8
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents () the net invoiced Was (TRBVASEE 22X 88) THIEF M ¢ ()i
value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and after allowances for returns and S8 m BZFE (KMBRIBEH A LI
trade discounts; (ii) the value of services rendered, net of value-added tax and REBBLREZIM) : (IRRERBGEE
government surcharges; (iii) considerations received and receivable for organising (BB ERMBFEHE) © (i)W R B
events and competitions; (iv) gross hiring income received and receivable from B RS RLBEZRE: (VEBERREEK
sports park facilities; and (v) gross rental income received and receivable from MEKR2HEEWARRE: RWVEBREWMEE
investment properties during the year. Wk U 2 T8 WA BEE -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and other gains-net are as AEEWZ EMWAREMKZFEZ D
follows: ranTs
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
NOE@\S HK$’O@ HK$'O@
. B s FERT FAT
Revenue Wi
Sports content production and BEANARER
distribution income TITWA 338,747 354,573
Sports talent management income BEATERRKA 17,666 8,694
Sale of goods HESm | 199,766 715,211
Community development consultancy 13 B R RS
service income WA 1,053 24,482
Sports park faclities hiring income and BEE&RmE o HERAR
other service income At AR %5 A 57,943 21,019
Gross rental income HaWwABEzE 9,829 10,605
625,004 1,134,584
Other income Hiblr A
Government grants K K 48 Bh 20,291 21,169
Interest income MEWA (@ 8,531 6,525
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing ENFERSELEL
interest in a joint venture RAE W - 1,764
Others HAth 9,619 =
38,441 29,458
Other gains-net H it W 25 7% 88
Fair value gain on redemption of BRI AT ERZ
convertible notes NS 67,122 =
Fair value loss on derivative financial FTEBRTAEY
instruments @3’2%}% 5 (254) (5,109)
Fair value gain on investment property BREMEZ N FEW S 461 =
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEMR BEMEEZ
plant and equipment (B1R) Wz i35 (80) 183
Foreign exchange loss IE 7 518 e (2,448) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHE AR ZEE (29,957) =
Net gain on partial disposal of interest HER —HBZEQE 2
in an associate oS 2 W s F 58 817,352 -
852,196 (4,926)
890,637 24,532
Note: B aE
(@)  Total interest income on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost for the (@ FRERBHERATENWBEENETE
year was HK$8,531,000 (2018: HK$6,525,000 at amortised cost). WA A8,531,0008 7T (ZF — \NF IR EHK A
6,525,000% 7T )
() Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liability b  FAFVIAHEEEHRZFABERKEA
balance at the beginning of the year was HK$20,102,000 (2018: HK$47,978,000.) 20,102,000% 7T ( =& — /\£F : 47,978,000/ 7T ) ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements =8

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

customers:

S il 75 $R % B

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

5 Wz Htl AR H &S F R
(#)

BE A MR

AEBEERRTIERFANEMNAE:

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Contract liabilities — receipts in advance aHaBE-EkEE 61,377 20,474

As at 31 December 2019, included in contract liabilities was an amount of RZE—NF+A=+—H B—HH
HK$2,618,000 (2018: HK$2,563,000) received from an associate, which is &N A WE Z FIE2,618,0008 L (= F —/\
based on normal commercial terms offered by the Group to major customers. £ : 2,563,000 7T) TIETAEHEE LR
BASEMEFERPREHCESHERNE
=
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. HBRA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By E FHET FAET
Interest on bank loans RITE IR B 26 5,061 4,117
Interest on convertible notes AIMEREENE 27 106,984 107,898
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBENE 12(B) 6,289 -
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BREERESRZ
properties under development for sale HFEWEZFBRAX (@) = (28,322)
118,334 83,693
Note: B 5T -
(a) The finance costs have been capitalised at a weighted average interest rate of (@) HE_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—RHLFE" ¥

13.81% per annum for year ended 31 December 2018 while no capitalisation of interest
for year ended 31 December 2019.

i&ﬂZlSEBﬂS81%27JD$%$1’]¢?U7§2MK ]
HE-_Z—NF+_A=Z=+—BULEEITEHNE
=N (A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRATBHANER
The Group's profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEEZBRASRANRFDEMER, 7 (5FA)
T B IEES:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By E FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 190,077 687,961
Cost of services provided T 42 £ Al 7% B AR 311,718 279,895
Depreciation e 12 20,004 4,200
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESH 14 14,459 380
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing interest EF T ER S L ¥
in a joint venture RERZ 2 W= 5 - (1,764)
Auditor's remuneration % S 6N B &
— audit services —ZE R 3,517 3,986
— fax services — M AR 7% 150 150
— other services — E AR 7 2,872 1,367
Employee benefit expense EERAHAZ
(including directors’ remuneration (Note 8)):  (BIEZEEM < (M7E8) ) ¢
— Wages and salarigs —TEKkE® 76,784 61,363
— Equity-settled share option expenses —ARELEE Z EIRER 10,186 9,138
— Contributions to defined contribution —EREHFRKEE 2 H®HR
retirement plans 5,679 5,697
Impairment on intangible assets B EEZRE 14 31,368 =
Impairment on financial assets W EE KA 39 82,483 17,738
Impairment on investment in a joint venture R — AP ERE 2
ERIE) 15 17,381 —
Net fair value (gain)/loss on investment BEMEZ NFE (KE),/
properties B8 %58 13 (461) 677
Foreign exchange loss P& % B 18 2,448 2,635
Net loss/(gain) in on disposal of property, HEME BEMREZ
plant and equipment Eia, (W) 758 5 80 (183)
Fair value gain on redemption of BRIATMBRERZ
convertible notes N ERE 5 (67,122) =
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTEMBITAZ A FEESE
instruments 5 254 5,109
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHNBRRZEE 5 29,957 =
Net gain on partial disposal of interest BHEHER —MEEARR
in an associate W W FEE 5 (817,352) =
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

8. EETM

B D A R B8 R AT (BBE
FHHER) RAZBRE EEEFH S
T :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Fees e 1,848 1,950
Other emoluments: H 4B 2

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FULEYWERF 17,606 14,881

Equity-settled share option expenses ARRHE4E & 2 BB AR M S 257 5,380

Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIHR 173 72

18,036 20,333

19,884 22,283

During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of

the Company, further details of which are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

RAFERBEFE FTESEHERLAE
B 42 AR 75 1 AR $% A 7 B B b At Bl IR
B A& PFBHERNYBREME
30 - ZEBBEZ AFERBHEEEREAE
BRER YRAEERL AMEE mat A
REEPHEBRRZFBCTALXATEZ
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows:

Note
k=3
2019 ZE-NEF
Executive directors: BTES:
M. Li Ning FEXE
Mr. Chan Ling RELE
Mr, Li Chunyang TEBEE
M. Li Qilin FHBEE
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr, Ma Wing Man BkEE
Mr, Chan James PR B LA (a)
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Chen Johnny BREREE b)
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent ERIERAE (0
Mr. Wang Yan TS AE
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HiE®REAE (d)
Mr. Li Qing FREE ()

8. EEME (&)

EEMeomoT:
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Retirement
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in Kind expenses contributions remuneration
e RER UREEEZ  EREHE
Hne ENRA  BRERX it e ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TER TER
200 11,7114 9 18 11,941
200 2,240 58 18 2,516
200 1,388 29 119 1,736
200 2,264 126 18 2,608
800 17,606 222 173 18,801
200 - 9 - 209
98 - 8 - 106
298 - 17 - 315
30 - 9 = 39
242 - 9 - 251
250 - - - 250
220 - - - 220
8 - - - 8
750 - 18 - 768
1,848 17,606 257 173 19,884
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

8. EEM< (&)

Salaries,
allowances Equity-setiled Retirement
and bengfits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind £Xpenses contributions remuneration
He E2BR UREREEZ BIREFTE
we ENEF BRERY fit 3K B @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTEL TEx TEL FTiEx
2018 —E-N\E
Executive directors: HITES:
M. Li Ning TEEL 200 10,682 183 18 11,083
Mr. Chan Ling RELE 200 1,800 1,216 18 3,234
M. Li Chunyang Z&EBRAE 200 1,047 608 18 1,673
Mr. Li Qilin ZEBETAE 200 1,352 2,645 18 4215
800 14,881 4,652 7 20,405
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk E 200 = 182 = 382
M, Chan James BRERLLE 200 - 182 - 382
400 = 364 = 764
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Mr, Chen Johnny BERLE 250 = = 432
M. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent ERIELAE 250 = = 432
Mr. Wang Yan P et 250 = = - 250
750 = 364 = 1114
1,950 14,881 5,380 7 22283
Note: B 5T -

(a) Mr. Chan James, resigned with effect from 28 June 2019.

(b) Mr. Chen Johnny, resigned with effect from 13 February 2019.

(c) Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, resigned with effect from 20 December 2019.

(d)  Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, appointed on 13 February 2019.

(e) Mr. Li Qing, appointed on 20 December 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

@ BREBEER-_ZB-AFSA-TN\B#
Fo

b)) BREEEENR-_ZE—HAF_A+=HET-

© BEFREEER-_FB-AF+-_A=-+TH#
£

d BEBREER-_Z-NF_A+=BEZ
Fo

® ZFTHEER-_FE-NAF+_A-_tHEZ
£

FARMEBEENEIRERREANE 2 L5
(ZF—N\F E)-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three directors (2018:
three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2018: two) highest
paid individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

9. EEESHFMAL
ERNAERESTMALOE=2EE (=%
—NE:ZZEE)  HMEHBEHIN X
fisrs - ERNEBME (ZE—N\E:WE)
AR ESTKATBLRIBESFMALTY
MesEmT:

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe EMEEDERN 5,663 4,030
Equity-settled share option expenses LARRREAEE 2 AR R 9,868 2744
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRE EHEI R 35 87
15,566 6,861

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FNBATHE ZFEERIFTRARZ &
SEFMALZABNT

Number of employees

REAH
2019 2018
—B-nE —B-N\F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T = 1
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,001 7T 213,000,000/ 7T 1 =
2 2

In prior years, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements =8
31 December 2019 —ZE—AFE+=-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. Fi8H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FHET FET
Current tax — the PRC A H B E —
Charge for the year FAZH 21,069 27,114
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERERZ
(EBEERE) 842 (559)
Deferred tax ELEB 18
Origination and reversal of temporary TR EEMELERED
differences 28 (14,378) (4,822)
Income tax expense FTi8fi 2 7,533 21,733

AEEHEE-_Z—NAF+_A=+—HI1
FEVENEEELETMARERT RN I
ERAFEELEBINEHBE(ZZ—N
$ /) MAPBRESELZPRCEMER
BETIRIEEBIRITEAR REBMEMNZA
FE L EEF RN A% SE TR EAE
(ZZE—N\F:25%) °

ARBRERIBAWMBERBREADEEER
Z 3 R BR P AS T B A 2 BT 1S 25 78 S B A3

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year ended 31
December 2019 as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2018: Nil). The PRC corporate income tax provision
in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated based on the statutory tax rate of
25% on the estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof (2018: 25%).

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

domiciled to the tax charge is a follows: HY H RO
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FAET
Profit before income tax B P 15 58 B4 A 834,137 94,723
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of BRRRAEAEER ZETE,
different jurisdictions %:ﬂ% FreBEs8 134,705 35,858
Tax effect of profits less losses attributable to BE AR RELEDEREG
associates and joint ventures iy ﬂ BEENRG 2 (63,302) (45,582)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BERBMBAZ BB E (147,888) (1,226)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TAMBRAZ 2 BB E 45,403 10,507
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BAEFERETR (BEEE) 842 (559)
Tax effect of unused tax losses nat recognised AEARERHIBEBE IR IGEE 41,077 22,735
Tax effect of tax losses utilised EHABEBBE I HBETE (3,304) =
Income tax expense FriS R 2 7,533 21,733
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

11. PROFIT PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31

December 2019 and 2018 is based on the profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue and participating equity instruments during the years.

M. RAGEEEEAELERER

ﬁ%:;—hi&:%—ﬂ¢+:ﬂz+—
HIEFE 2z BRERBNSBIRBAR
s Tﬁﬁ/\ﬁfﬁilﬁ@%'l&iﬁ\]ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ
B &2 B AR T B pnaE 9 EG

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31 HE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HULEFEZS
December 2019 is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders Hxﬁﬁ%%%?{ﬂ & %§E$Eff5$ AlIER A AME
of the Company after adjustment to the dilutive effect of share of profits in an (g2 W/ﬁﬁ FM(EREE BREEZDG
associate arising from its potential ordinary shares; and the weighted average = F'ﬁ A=WNE by v Y ?Q ZENFAE) &
number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effect of deemed exercise beﬂfkﬁi@%( (B8 EMET’EEAE%N =R
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration at T 1710 ok B it 2 L SE M B T @HXZ%%
the beginning of the year. The effect of the outstanding convertible notes and (EH AR ) S E o R R TE R AT AR =
outstanding share options were not included in the computation of diluted earning B R RITE A B AR i B 8 UE IJHZ
per share for 2019 as they were anti-dilutive. RETBE T —NF 2 SR ER TR RET
éﬁfﬁfk??1 MR EE R ARITEERE
=
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31 HE—_Z2—)\F+-_A=+—HILFEZE
December 2018 is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders REERNNSEIRBARRERITE AR
of the Company after adjustment to the dilutive effect of share of profits in an MERZHN (EREBELBREE 2D
assoclate arising from its potential ordinary shares and the weighted average —EHMERTRN s ST EBELRAE) R
number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effect of deemed exercise of TBRMEFEHE (EREIERFENRER
all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration at the beginning of the BIFEE2HEEEEL TR EIENHA
year. The effect of the outstanding convertible notes (Note 27) was not included i~ &) &1 & - B M ARTTEEAY AT AR 4% (FI 5T
the computation of diluted earning per share for 2018 as it was anti-dilutive. EREEXNE AERTE—_ZT— N\ F
Z@nﬁéﬁﬂkl*ﬁ&h*ﬁﬁTﬁh
RBEoTE-
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Profit attributable to equity holders of the ARFTEESRELRER 2
Company, used in the basic earnings RARE=FEB ARG RN
per share calculation (HK$'000) (FE7T) 834,366 76,982
Adjustment to the share of profits in an associate VB T e T m AR T B
arising from its dilutive potential ordinary shares D —REE R R 2 a A
(HK$'000) (F%E1) (7,975) (1,244)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company, R EESREBZER 2
used in the diluted earnings per share calculation RARE=FB ARG R
(HK$'000) (F#Em) 826,391 75,738
Number of ordinary shares ZiEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BRAESRERAETZ
issue and participating equity instruments used in BETERRKR K
the basic earnings per share QEFATAEZ
calculation ('000) IS8 (FAR) 11,260,786 11,231,069
Dilutive equivalent shares arising from potential BELTBRMEEZ
ordinary shares ('000) BEERRE (FK) - 87,351
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and ARstEgkEsai 2
potential ordinary shares used in the diluted TR BT AR INRE T8
eamings per share calculation ('000) (Fh%) 11,260,786 11,318,420
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZRN (BI) 7.41 0.69
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BRBERFN (B) 7.34 0.67
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2019

12(A) V¥ BERRE

—E-A%+-A=+-8

Machinery
Leasehold and office Furniture Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
BER
BF HENERS BAZRE HAREE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
31 December 2019 ZE-AETZA=1-H
At 1 January 2019; RZB-NF-R-H:
Cost AR - 23,992 17,615 769 5,249 47,625
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERAE - (13,703) (8,870) (660) (3,993) (27,226)
Net book amount RAFE - 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,399
(Opening net book amount FNERFE - 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,399
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR - 20,820 24,056 916 86 45,878
Aditions HE - 4,229 4,673 182 1,506 10,590
Transfer from investment properties (Note 13) ERERENE (W) 10,977 - = = = 10,977
Disposal HE = - (3,457) (L] (438) (3,903)
Depreciation charge FER (61) (5,070) (2,900) (562) (461) (9,054)
Currency translation cifferences ERZER 129 (867) 62 (38) (17) (731)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NFTZA=F-H:
Cost KR 11,106 54,279 67,017 4,390 5,561 142,353
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERAE (61) (24,878) (35,838) (3,791) (3,629) (68,197)
Net book amount REEE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
31 December 2018 “E-\¥+ZB=1-H
A1 January 2018; RZZ-\F-A-H:
Cost KR - 20,023 13,006 723 5,503 39,255
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERAE = (12,262) (7,591) (629) (4.210) (24,692)
Net book amount REEE = 7,761 5415 94 1,293 14,563
Opening net book amount ENEmEE = 7,761 5,415 9% 1,093 14,563
Acauisiton of a subsidiary WEKBAR - 907 2,69 = = 3,603
Additions HE - 4,051 3312 53 383 7,799
Disposal e = = (370) = 24 (394)
Depreciation charge FES = (1931) (1,854) (34 (381) (4,200
Currency translation differences EREE = (499) (454) (4 (19) 972)
Closing net book amount FREmEE = 10,289 8,745 109 1,25 20,399
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H:
Cost R = 23,992 17,615 769 5,249 47,625
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ZHTERAE = (13,703) (8.870) (660) (3.993) (27,226)
Net book amount REFE - 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,309
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements &S

31 December 2019 — &

12(B) LEASES

—NE+ZHA=+—8”

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases
when the Group is a leasee:

S il 75 $R R B

12(B)#H &

(i) RBBRREREIZHRE

MBEARRRINIRATHE
A)HERERR :

(REBERAE

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hF —ZE—NE
+=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT T

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Buildings EF 176,282 38,112
176,282 38,112

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current mEp 15,359 4,769
Non-current FEMED 169,279 35,288
184,638 40,057

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial year were

HK$155,238,000

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

R-ZE-NWBRFEEREEENRIER

155,238,000/%7E

(i) REBEBZREIANX

B i‘%ﬁlJT\LATTHiEJHF'@TAIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets CREEENESR
Buildings gF 10,950 N
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERZ (G AMBKA) 6,289 —
Expense relating to short-term leases (included REHEMERX (T AHE
in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and AOAS ~ SHE & /ﬁéi* 3 bA
administrative and other operating expenses) RATH M At & 5T 4,505 -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$15,147,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, sports parks, ice skating rinks and staff quarters.

Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 20 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants but
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales
generated from a store. For certain stores included fixed and variable payment
terms, the variable payment terms are with percentages ranging from 1% to
26% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases
across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

12(B) 2 & (#0)

(i) AEE2HEERHRAARL E
AEEHEZEPRSH BER BKS
FBIEE HEANBERIE2NFZE
EHRATZ - MERFIRE R A ERER - X
BEEETRMGRR KGN - HE W E T
MMEA R EHEEENSRERERER
1) 0

(ivy TEHEENRK

AETMERERSSHEHEENHERH
WA BN RIER - B TREEE R #
NEIEREHET S A B4 IR T8
EEMI%ZE26% - FRAAIZENRERESE
JRE - B 3EE 2% 5 & A B B A A E 8 &)
b BURRSHE BN ] S E RN B Z
ERFOEHBEENHBARIBEANER -

(v FHEEREENRLAERER
AEENETEHERESSEREZEN
RIEREEEE - DEEAKBZETHNE
EME ZFEERNERBNERKERE
BERMEI&RKE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REWHE

Land use rights
held for future

development
of industrial
Completed buildings Total
BFERK
RRIXET
I ZiwFERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—-H—H
ZEHE 75,186 62,088 137,274
Fair value loss NEEEE (392) (285) (677)
Addition NE 11,331 - 11,331
Currency translation differences BN ER (4,780) (3,210) (7,990)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and RZF-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZRA=+-Hk
—E-NE—-A—H
ZEAE 81,345 58,593 139,938
Fair value gain N AR 461 - 461
Disposal e (68,911) (57,305) (126,216)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 12) BEEYX  BELRE
(P&E12) (10,977) - (10,977)
Currency tranglation differences EHE (1,918) (1,288) (3,206)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=1—H
ZIREE - - -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss BEBRENMEZERER 2019 2018
for investment properties ZEE —E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Rental income He A 4,430 5576

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations
for future repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil).

Notes:
(@) At 1 October 2019, the Group transferred an investment property to owner-

occupied property with fair value of HK$10,977,000.

(b) At 3 December 2019, the Group sold a subsidiary which held investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$126,216,000.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

31 December 2019

—E-A%+-A=+-8

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14, BREE
League
Qualification
and Home
and Away Players’
Operating Co-operation  Registration Member-
Goodwill  Trademarks Rights  Agreement Rights Ship Total
HEERR
TE5
BE (] EEE AR HeE =t @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FAET THET TAET FTAET FTAET
At 1 January 2018: RZE-N\F—-HA—H:
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEHB AR 18,433 13,539 = = = = 31,972
Amortisation charge BB - (380) = = = = (380)
Currency translation differences ERESE (963) (908) - - - = (1,871)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 17,470 12,251 = = = = 29,721
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\F
+=A=1+—-8:
Cost B 17,470 12,619 - - - - 30,089
Accumulated amortisation REtEH - (368) - = = = (368)
Net book amount FEEE 17,470 12,251 = = = = 29,721
At January 2019; RZZ-AE—A—H:
Opening net book amount FONEmFE 17,470 12,251 = = = = 29,721
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B LA 208,255 63,832 16,249 112,809 = 25,845 426,990
Additions NE - 1,426 - - 19,825 - 21,251
Amortisation charge Foxick = = (631) (724) (11,098) (2,006) = (14,459)
Impairment charge AEE (17,087) (11,355) = (2,926) - - (31,368)
Currency translation differences b E R (1,896) (265) (754) (5,285) (245) = (8,445)
Closing net book amount FIREmMFE 206,742 65,258 14,771 93,500 17,574 25,845 423,690
At 31 December 2019: RZZE-NEF
+-A=+—-8:
Cost B AR 223,829 77,600 15,495 107,524 19,580 25,845 469,873
Accumulated amortisation R B ERRE
and impairment (17,087) (12,342) (124) (14,024) (2,006) = (46,183)
Net book amount REFE 206,742 65,258 14,711 93,500 17,574 25,845 423,690
During the year, additions to intangible assets were mainly acquired as part of RERN AENBERFEETEZRELAH

business combinations (see Note 36 for details). They are recognised at their fair
value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives.

(BB

G

ARERWEB 2 2P E BERZEMGA

15 R MIEES6) B —AB 0 YRS - LR

B FEHABERIEE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations are mainly allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs"), which are separate business operations,
for annual impairment testing:

Sports parks CGU
Esports CGU

Other CGUs
lce-skating rinks CGU

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU with significant amount of

14- P33 ﬂ:/ ﬁ E Iilfﬁ )

729 8 Rl BRI

BBMEBEHESNAEEIRSRETIBY

%ﬁ‘k @E’Jfﬁiigiﬁh(ffﬁifgiﬁﬂﬂ’
EITFEREANR

s BABERSELE[
s ERRSELEM
e HMRGELEM
e BAGHESELABM

Fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@"ﬁﬂ EBECEBRANAE

goodwill EEEBM
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
. FEAR :F /% JC
Sports parks CGU EFERSELEM 5,410
Esports CGU BHASELEMN 30,622 —
Other CGUs Hi R £ B 716 17,470
Ice-skating rinks CGU BIKGHECELEEM 169,994 -
206,742 17,470
(i) Sports parks CGU () BEERSELEBEN
The recoverable amount of the sports parks CGU has been determined based on BEERGET BN KESE HIRIRE
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets AEEHEERASRERA (EREEE
covering a ten-year period approved by management. The discount rate applied to HOERRE T FRNOMBEE) MEE - .
the cash flow projections is 22.4%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash AR RETRAAELIR K Z22.4% - AR
flows of the sports parks CGU beyond the ten-year period is 3%. EREsRESELEMBBI0FHNRES R
SRR E R3S -
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the sports parks CGU EtE—_Z NG+ _A=+—BWNBE
for 31 December 2019. The following describes each key assumption on which AeELBENNEAEBEKBERM T RE A
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing ML T BREEETRERENANRESR
of goodwill: EEAMERNSEBREBR
Revenue growth rate: -34.2%-24.6% W R xR -34.2%-24.6%
EBITDA margin : -3.0%-37.1% EBITDAF 8 =& - -3.0%-37.1%
Discount rate: 22.4% ALIR & : 22.4%
The revenue growth rate is for the ten-year forecast period. The cash flow W E Rt FHRAME -RERE
projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast A E BRI ERT 8 At EHA R
covering a period of ten years and have incorporated necessary updates. E+FHMENYE H

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the ten-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the

carrying amount of the sports parks CGU to materially exceed its recoverable
amount.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(ii) Esports CGU

The recoverable amount of the Esports CGU has been determined based on a fair
value less costs of disposal calculation using discounted cash flow projections.
The discounted cash flow projections are based on financial budgets covering a
eight-year period approved by management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 13.0%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the Esports CGU beyond eight-year period is 3%.

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of disposal calculation of
the Esports CGU for 31 December 2019. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

7.4%-35.2%
41.4%-50.4%
13.0%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin :
Discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the eight-year forecast period. The cash flow
projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of eight years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the eight-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

The following changes in assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to fall
below the carrying value:

A reduction in the sales growth rate from the assumption of 7.4%-35.2% applied
to a revised assumption of 4.7%-32.5% or less.

A reduction in the EBITDA margin from the assumption of 41.4%-50.4% applied
to a revised assumption of 34.9%-43.9% or less.

An increase in the discount rate from the 13.0% assumption applied to a revised
assumption of 15.7% or more.

(iii) Other CGUs

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss of approximately
HK$17,087,000 was recognised. Impairment provision was made on goodwill

of the other CGUs primarily due to the performance of the business which was
below the management’s expectation. The impairment loss recognised for the
year represented the difference between the carrying amount of the CGU including
goodwill and its estimated recoverable amount. The Group reassessed all classes
of assets of the CGU, impairment provision was also made on intangible assets

of approximately HK$11,355,000 other than goodwill as at 31 December

2019,

S Bl % $R R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

14. B EE (#)

(i) ERFASELEEN
BRReELEEUMNIWESEIIREART
BEREERAGTE ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁium%ﬁ Al T
BT -MIRREREFRMIEREEEIE
E’J/@%J\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁ%°f“FH75’\fﬁ‘£mg
FERIRBEIRE B13.0% - FAREEHEHR S
FEE&E&B/\@%%%@ /ﬁg%ﬁﬁi%iz%
3% °

i?iihﬂﬁ’&ifﬁ/ﬁiﬂjgﬂ$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ TR
9 LT AL T B LA A

Waig R & 7.4%-35.2%
EBITDARIE =& - 41.4%-50.4%
BhI8 & 13.0%

W35 B 3 T\ TR EART - B S R E
ORI o8 B At e 7551 B %5t B #L
ENFHOEALERALEE AR

EBITDAME W 25 2 A 79 bt 7% )\ 5 T8 8 A ) ) <
VA TYER B ATHE XKL
B AR BRI HA R R 35 A0 o

PIRAMIRE SRR R I RRABRE
ELBNZFERR -

%%T?ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬂ%@@%EE%Q@EE@EE

HER R R G TEARBRET 4% 35.2% &
ERAEFTBRERIEA.7%-32.5%F LA T °

EBHDAﬂ BEREMEARKES .4%50.4% T
[ 2= IS AT R 1E34.9%-43.9% L LA T ©

BRI E B PR ER B RRE13.0% T B R-EAERT
RERE15. 7% A Lo

(i) HMBEESELEN

REBEE-_ZE—hhF+_A=+—HIEEE"
Eﬁwﬂ@ﬁﬁmmwmm%m o E fib
ReELESUMNEEENRERE N EE

EBE\A%%&E’J%EEJE% REREAO B F N T
ROBEBEBERCELEV (BHEHE)
E’ﬁ%@fﬁfﬁiﬁﬁ Jr—JLBZIEI/i\ B TRIH) Z 8
R-T—NE+-A=F—A1" $§,‘%l¥1
ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ EEMREELBLETEN NS
REFEE (REEIN TELRERELD

11,355,000/ JT °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements &S

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14.

(iv) Ice-skating rinks CGU

On 27 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shares in Rise
Mode Investments Limited and goodwill is allocated to the CGU. The management ~ H#EIREBR A 7 &)
believes that the carrying amount of the goodwill is the best estimate for the 25

recoverable amount as at 31 December 2019,

A=+—H =E2E

S il 75 $R R B

BIELEE (#)
(ivy, BKBHEESELE
RZE-NF+_A-+tH TEBKE

Al S R A E AT

5 i

2EE BTG
ElReELEN -R_T— G+ =
REZEENEEES

R

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 15. REEE NI REE X ER
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Associates R /NE] 2,939,185 3,577,938
Joint ventures AEDE 545 18,282
2,939,730 3,596,220

Interests in associates REEE QA 2SR

The following is @ movement of interests in associates during the year: NTREARBE AR 2 ERZH -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHERT FHET
At 1 January n—A—8 3,577,938 3,575,241
Share of profits less losses for the period SAE HA AR A RUE 18 342,419 183,179
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income D MEE 2w (EE) W= 427 (514)
Share of reserves DGR 20,090 21,531
Dividend received 2 H&Hx =\ (50,523) (11,343)
Change in interest in associate due to partial R ﬁ EER N E QA @)
disposal = H) (862,594) -
Reclassification to amount due from an BB ERYK—HEE QA
associate FRIA (5,522) =
Currency translation differences MEH ERE (83,050) (190,156)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,939,185 3,577,938
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

(@)  The Group entered into a placing agreement (“the Placing”) with Goldman
Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. on 24 March 2019 to sell 148,000,000 Li Ning Co
Shares. The Group’s investments in Li Ning Co is considered as investments
in associate and accounted for using the equity method before and after
the Placing. Upon the completion of the Placing on 27 March 2019, the
Group derecognised the carrying value of the associate proportionate to
the percentage reduced, reclassified a proportionate amount of exchange
fluctuation reserve previously recognised to the consolidated financial
statement, resulting in net proceeds of HK$1,719.7 million and gain of
HK$817.4 million. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 25 March, 28 March, 9 April 2019 and the circular of the
Company dated 6 May 2019.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest
incorporation/ directly attributable
Name Notes  registration to the Group
at fit AEBEEELER
£ WaE I/ EMtE BREZZBEIN
Li Ning Co (@) Cayman Islands 16.3%
/N He#Es
CITIC Land (b) The PRC 29%
hEER HE
Double Happiness (c) The PRC 10%
ngE h

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

15, REBERAREELEIES
(#)

REE QAT 2ERE (&)

@ MZE—NAE=ZAZ+WBE -KA&EH
EA Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.5] 3 FR & #7735
(IR EE1E]) B H £148,000,0000% 2
BRAEIRMGD AEERFTEQRINKRE
BRAENBERAFNKERNREESE
BRI FERESEAR R —NF
A+ EAEKEEEER A5H
RIEERBEL R R DT B2
BREE BEERZELRBREE
LRl eREHDPBEGAYBRE E
A PR S FRIEF 58 1,719,700,00058 7T & Uk
817,400,000 L - BEFE B2 H
AAGBHRA-_ZE—-hNhE=A=-+H
H- ZAZ+ N \H WAALHBAE X
ARaBHA-_TE—AERANEHN
3 LK o

AEBzTEBRERRZFRET:

Principal activities

TEEK

Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-
related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories in the PRC

RAEREEEEBEE RS BN REFzRERE
it W HERAH

Property development and operation; property management; hotel
investment and management; construction project and facilities
contracting and equipment installations; decoration unit; landscaping;
property development consultancy

FHERE L& MEEE: BERAER BEIRRT
RBERE  RERMTRE: BME(: B ERARY

Manufacture, research and development, marketing and sale of principally
table tennis and badminton equipment under its own 4L £ = (Double
Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories

Bt g RERHEAEREmE AEEINTERR
REPERAMREMEER S
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements &S

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the market value of Li Ning Co’s listed shares was HK$23.35

(2018: HK$8.40) per share. The number of Li Ning Co ordinary shares held by the Group

as at 31 December 2019 was approximately 263,405,000 Shares (2018: 299,374,000

Shares) and the number of convertible securities held as at 31 December 2019 was

approximately 137,797,000 units (2018: 249,827,000 units).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
principal associates extracted from its financial information or financial statements
after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of acquisition
and adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any (the ones extracted
from Li Ning Co and Double Happiness are after adjusting for the impacts of
adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments for differences in

S il 75 $R R B

15, RBZERTRRAELEZER

(#&)

ZE-NFF+ZA=t—HB 2R LMWK
ﬁme;‘fz%Hiza.%,%x(_" J\F : §h8.40
W) © EA:%anJr—ﬂ:wL A RNEEHF
BzEERAEBREE 4 /263,4050000% (=
T— )\¢-299,374000H§> RZZE—NFE+=A
=+ — B ARRES 2B 4 7/137,797,000
1 (= — )\ : 249,827,0001% ) °

TERMEAREEETRHERB ZMBETHKE
- BBER R RV BE MM R
= (ERNRBRAEL ZCHABRZEFELAR

LR BRRER (WBE)FLRE) (ZF
MEBEFTERRRALEEZEH VLN
BREL 2 ARTZEFLHBRRLAKE R

accoulntnjg policies, if any, and for non-coterminous periods between the Group ZENFCEeIRENEE (WE)RT
and Li Ning Co): ESTHRELARE)
2019 2018
—E-hE —B-N\%§
Double Double
Li Ning Co CITIC Land Happiness LiNing Co CITIC Land Happiness
FENT hEEX aeE EX-UNS| RIEEE nes
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THT THT FET
Gross amounts of the associates BENRAZELE
Current assets REBE 9,016,426 288,991 1,203,849 7,148,061 336,090 923,294
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,195,262 1,193,583 1,060,418 4,642,210 1,237,906 1,190,093
Current liabilties REEE 5,264,440 165,342 549,445 3,512,848 184,608 908,907
Non-current liabilies Ei =8 788,117 317,686 150,662 195,788 381,765 183,527
Net assets attributable to the equity holders EaiAAELEETFE 9,159,131 999,546 1,654,160 8,081,635 1,007,623 1,020,953
Revenue for the period HRES 11,770,738 118,280 756,303 11,977,388 36,751 814,895
Profit/(loss) for the period HREF (BE) 1,492,344 10,859 763,679 778,601 (13,757) 125,633
Other comprehensive income//(loss) Hin2EkS/ (BE) 2,958 - - (2,280) = =
Total comprehensive income (loss) AN/ () 88 1,495,302 10,859 763,679 776,321 (13,757) 125,633
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests FEERBEATAN
in the associates ERNHE
Gross amounts of net assets attributable to BENRRREBAEEEE
the equity holders of the associates FELE 9,156,290 995,888 1,641,029 8,081,635 1,007,623 1,007,958
Group's effective interest AEEERES 16.3% 29% 10% 22.5% 29.0% 10.0%
Group's share of net assets of the associates FEEEGEBERNANEEFE 1,496,138 288,809 164,102 1,829,682 292,212 100,796
Goodwill 5 859,777 75,160 54,339 1,218,004 76,847 55,484
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements RGE B BRENRER 2,355,915 363,969 218,441 3,047,686 369,059 156,280
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 include the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2019 and adjusted for any significant events
or transactions for the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 December 2019. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the twelve
months ended 30 September 2018 and adjusted for any significant events or
transactions for the period from 1 October 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associates’ results based on accounts drawn up
to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months. There is no non-coterminous period end for other associates and
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss of investment

in a joint venture of HK$17,381,000 was recognised in profit or loss as the
management considered that the recoverable amount of such investment was
below the carrying amount.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

15, REERTREELR 2 ESE
(%)

AEEBEE_T-NF+_-_A=1T—HILF
BZHGEaRBRRERAKENETERTR
BE_T-NFAA=THIETZERAZXE
BRFEISRE T -—NEF+A-—HBEEZ
E-NFt-_A=+t—HUIEHEAZE@MER
EHARFELRAB - AKEHE_FT N
FT_A=1THLFEZHEEUBHRRE
RASENEFERRBE_ZT—\FNA
=tRET-EAZRERRKEELLE =
E-N\FTA-BEE-_T—-N\F+-A
AR ZEMEREHXR HEL
HE - AKEDRAETB G ER B8R AT
B2 3 Bt HEES ARBZE QAN
HEHER(BEFEEZENSEB=A)
ZHRB REEZ BIGHE RR] 2 EE  HAf
gENRRAEERFRENHERER

REELENESR
REBE-_Z-NE+_A=+—BILEE"
HREEERAN —MALELEZRENT
WElemEERERTE  WZIEEZRERES
817,381,000 TN B P FER
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
Commitments in respect of associates and joint ventures

15. RBMEQATARGELR 2 ER
()
BRBEAAREE RN

i

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Commitment to provide funding for associates’ and ~ FAEEE AR R G E R EE X
a joint ventures' capital commitment* HIEREE S 2 RIE 571,504 584,329

Included in the total capital commitment disclosed in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BB AR BT 30 M 0 BB 2 i A A
-

16. TTEMBITA

2019 2018
e —2-NF

Notes Asset Liabilities Assets Liabilities
B =t BE =i BE =R
Options Hi R () - 2,965 = 2,772
Forward convertible loan REIARBRE R (b) - - 22,780 =
- 2,965 22,780 2,772
Current mE - 2,965 22,780 =
Non-current IE B - - = 2,772
- 2,965 22,780 2,772

(a) The options are accounted for as derivative financial instruments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the put

option and the call option were approximately HK$291,000 (2018: HK$736,000) and
approximately HK$3,256,000 (2018: HK$3,508,000) respectively.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the options as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 were
estimated, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions, spot price
and exercise price of the options. The following table lists the other key inputs to the model
used:

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

16. fTEMEIT A (@)
BREARZZT-N\F+ZA=+—BEZ=ZZT—N
F+—A=t+—BZAFENEA=-BRNEXGH
B ERERE G RGE BREZR
EERMTEE - TRBINZEXNFRAZEMEE
A EUE

Valuation date

HEBH
2019 2018
“E-NF —E-N\F
Annual risk-free rate (%) 42 3 B 5 1 2K (%) 2.40 2.75
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 02 (%) 46.02 454
Life of options (years) BRESH(F) 0.98 1.98
Probability of fulfiling all conditions for exercise (%) ERFT B TR G 2 AT RE1E (%) 4.2 4.4

The fair values of the put option and the call option were measured using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3 of fair value hierarchy). During the year,
there were no transfers among the levels.

(b) A forward convertible loan with six-month maturity is formed near year ended 31
December 2018 for a potential acquisition of a e-sports group when certain conditions are
met. At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of it reasonably approximated to its fair
value.

17. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

RaERRBEZ AFEDEBEKRDTA
B ABE (FRAFERE)GFE-F
W RFEERELEETES -

b —HRERAR B ES AR E RN
TE-N\E+ A=+ BEHER BRNE
KRETHREREE - EREXEEE -R_FT—N\
Ft-A=+—RB EHITARERZRAESR
HERFESEMRE-

17. MEEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Properties under development for sale BRY FEME 290,557 293,474

The properties under development for sale are held in the PRC with medium to
long term lease. The development is expected to be completed after more than
one year from the reporting date.

BRP ZEENE AR E NS RERERS
B BBMBREEHERAHRE R HEESE—
RN -
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. &8
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Raw materials R K - 12
Finished goods FIRX o 1,807 232
1,807 244

There was no write-down of inventories for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

RBE-_E—-NE+-_A=+—HBEK=-Z
—N\F+-_A=+—HItFE WEFEM
R o

19. EWRFKREWERE

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Trade debtors and bills receivable JFE g BR R K R W R iR 220,382 384,764
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREBE (20,758) (4,449)
199,624 380,315

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally

one month, extending up to six months for major customers. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade debtors and bills receivable balances. Trade debtors
and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivable based on the payment
due date is as follows:

AEEEBECESIAERTFR S EEH
—RAE—EA FEXEFRRZAEREE
HERNER BREFHUAERSEERE-
SREEETH R ARG NREL &
o L LA BR K % B M SR R A R B (AR
i S EL IR R (5 B 2 (RIE - REUAR TR I UL
SRR TENE -

FEWBR 3R K FE R AR IR N X B BA B 2 BR iR
DT

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current BN HA 108,145 349,183
Less than 3 months past due wmE LR =EA 66,852 17,900
3 to 6 months past due BHA=% N A 13,937 800
More than 6 months past due 0 HA R 1B 7N (E A 10,690 12,432
199,624 380,315
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19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS REGEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Information about the impairment of trade debtors and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 39.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified
customers with no recent history of default.

Included in the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts of
HK$1,082,000 (2018: nil) due from associates.

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

£E39 °

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+
31 December 2019 —ZE—AFE+=-_A=+—H

19. EWRZKERERE (&)
EEENEZNREARAEEEREER
% SN R R ERER 2 ER - B2

I R 780 B S R0 (B 2 FE WO TR 2 % 22 T B 4

R EFBR-

&) -

STARER B EKRZE AEK
AIFKIE1,082,000 BT (ZF— )\ F:

20, ARRE ReREMERKRRIE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET AT
Prepayments TAfTRIE 44,168 112,701
Deposits and other receivables Be Kk E WA (a) 127,862 96,129
Less: loss allowance for deposits and B TRe R E M FEYBGRIE
other receivables 2 R 39 (88,166) (24,014)
83,864 184,816
Less: current portion W mENE D (50,236) (115,861)
Non-current deposits and other receivables ERBIEE K
H b B W IR 33,628 68,955
Note: B 5T
(@ Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. The detail @ EekEMBERFEZBHENATE -H5H

information about the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other

receivables can be found in Note 39.

e hEMEEFREER
Z

I 2= S

EEEES

& KORE DT
B BT 5E39 o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANGES
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise

21, BERBITHER
(a) BLRBITESHEE

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances other than time deposits T BT A SN 2 IR & RIRTT A5 £ 500,867 349,457
Time deposits — less than 3 months EFHER—PR=EA 148,395 31,197
Cash and bank balances He MRIT4 649,262 380,654

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$336,955,000 (2018:
HK$355,390,000), approximately HK$330,892,000 (2018: HK$283,685,000)
of which was domiciled in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies in the PRC, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

(b) Net debt

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for

the year ended 31 December 2019.

RBRERR AEBUARBAEZRE
MR 1T 4582 49 5336,955,000/8 7T (ZZE— N\
4 : 355,390,0007%8 7T) + H & 49330,892,0007%
ot (=2 — J\ 4 : 283,685,000/ 7L ) TR A
- A\RERFBETTERLRAEME
Ko AT - ARIR (P RIMNEERIKH) K (&
E EELMNEEERT) AEBEES

BEREETINEEB ZRITHEARB LR
BEME -

RORE (ERFEHGRINRESARTE

TR 27 By A R BRER A 2. - 52 A A TE R
F%HE E-BAATE RFAKERHRE
R - WE R B 52 HITE B 5N R BRER
ME - RITERTFRNROEEOLERARE
BRIFZ|RIT

(b) KBEE
AEHRARE_F—NE+-A=+—H1
FRENES R S RAERTE S

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FERT FAET

Net debt (G
Cash and cash equivalents HENRSEZEY 649,262 380,654
Restricted bank balances PR 1)1 R 1T 45 & 3,342 =
Barrowings — repayable within one year BE-R—F W EE - (40,023)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BEE-R—FEREE (1,256,000) (819,602)
Lease liabilities HEBE (184,638) =
Net debt BB TR (788,034) (478,971)
Cash and cash equivalents HENRRSEZEY 649,262 380,654
Restricted bank balance IR ’|"$ IRTT 48R 3,342 =
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B BRRE-EE M =X (184,638) (819,602)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B RREZEF =X (1,256,000) (40,023)
Net debt (ET R (788,034) (478,971)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 21. RERMBITESR (@)
(b) Net debt (Continued) () EXRFE(E)
Liabilities from
financing activities Other assets
REMETBZEE HitEE
Bank and Convertible Lease Cash and cash Restricted
other loans notes liabilities Sub-total equivalents  bank balance Total
BT BeRESE PR 1 14
Higx TRRER HEEE Nt ZEY BT Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Net debt as at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F
—A—RZER3E (37,535) (750,605) = (788,140) 521,012 (267,128)
Cash flows Reng 1,629 38,901 = 40,530 (104,024) = (63,494)
Interest expenses FERX (3,065) (80,628) = (83,693) = = (83,693)
Capitalised borrowing costs ERLEERAE (1,052) (27,270) = (28,322) = (28,322)
Foreign exchange acjustments HNE & - - - - (36,334) = (36,334)
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+=A
=t+-HZEBTE (40,023) (819,602) - (859,625) 380,654 = (478,971)
Net debt as at 1 January 2019 R=—ZE-hF—HF—H
ZEBFE
Recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 MR B BB B E
(see Note 2.2) A E 165 R
(RH2.2) - = (40,057) (40,057) = (40,057)
Net debt as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-nF—A—H
ZE%FE (40,023) (819,602) (40,057) (899,682) 380,654 (519,028)
Cash flows Rene (1,210,916) 859,464 10,229 (341,223) 282,258 3,507 (55,458)
Interest expenses FERE (5,061) (106,984) (6,289) (118,334) = = (118,334)
Fair value gain RFENE - 67,122 = 67,122 = 67,122
Acquisition — leases WE-HE - - (154,666) (154,666) - (154,666)
Termination — leases mIt—HE - = 5,338 5,338 = = 5,338
Foreign exchange adjustments HNE = = 807 807 (13,650) (165) (13,008)
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—NF
+-R=+—-Bz
EHFE (1,256,000) - (184,638) (1,440,638) 649,262 3,342 (788,034)
22. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 22. FRAEIMEIRITHEER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Restricted bank balances PR ) 14 3R 17 45 #4 3,342 =

The restricted bank balances were pledged to secure the operation of two sports
destinations, namely Nantong Li Ning Sports Centre and Tianjin Li Ning Sports

Centre.

EEMEGIERITRBABRRREREE B &
w(AEAFEEPPOLRREFEEH

ISELS X
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ERNRAREMENSIE
The trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were all BEZZEHHE AEER_Z—LFK
aged within three months, as determined based on the invoice date. They are non- —E—N\F+-_A=+—HZENERZKE
interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from 30 to 60 days. RPN =FAH ZEHBREER—KRAE
F30ZE60R Z HARR A EE -
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables JE T BR 3K 57,873 102,789
Other payables HoAth & 1+ 3R 114,721 43,448
172,594 146,237
24. ACCRUALS 24, EESTER
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT F&T
Accruals st E 50,794 33,859
25. DEFERRED INCOME 25. i FE Yt A
The movements in deferred income as stated under current and non-current SIARBRIERBENEEE T ZIELERA
contract liabilities are as follows: ZEEMT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT F&T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKREEAE 25,743 41,187
Government grants received during the year F RS W BRAT 4 Bh 5,867 8,368
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (20,291) (21,169)
Currency translation differences M & E R (488) (2,643)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t-—A=+—HBZEKEE 10,831 25,743
Less: current portion B OmENER (8,959) (15,732)
1,872 10,011
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

25. DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED) 25. IEZLEW A (&)
Deferred income mainly represents government grants obtained for the purpose BEEWAEZEZREpAEMMMB AR 2L EMM
of subsidising subsidiaries’ operation. Government grants received are initially B2 BT AL - BT R B V1 2 R 6 Bt

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income BRARANERBELEW A WIRRFEE
and are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in REZmAET Bl TRE RN B #E-
which the grants are intended to compensate.

26. BANK LOANS 26. RITER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Bank loans, secured RITEFR BHEM 1,256,000 40,023
Less: Current portion B mENE - (40,023)
1,256,000 -
Bank loans bear floating rate of HIBOR plus basis. RITERREARITRAEFEMEEEERZ
FENR KB o
As at 31 December 2019, loan represented collateralised bank loan which RZE—NF+—A=+—H EFXIEH
is secured by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying amount of R—EBE AR z#ED (AT ETE ]
approximately HK$1,065,055,000 (2018: HK$110,986,000), and the loan 1,065,055,000/8 7T ( =& — )\¢ HO 986,000
is subject to certain covenants requirement relating to the quoted price of the BIC) VIEEB 2B EBETER  BZER )
associate. Z PR B A% B & A A Z#Efﬂ‘ﬁ 3@ E’J T2
HIE o
The Group has obtained bank facilities of HK$1,648,500,000 (2018: RER - A& B ESRTRELE1,648,500,000
HK$460,000,000) during the year, of which HK$392,500,000 (2018: BT (ZE—NF: 460 000,000/& 7T ) * E
HK$420,000,000) remained unutilised at 31 December 2019. 392,500, OOO/%E (== — )\ : 420,000,000
BIL)IRZZE— jli‘i'_ﬂ —t+—HEXE
% o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 13 December 2016, the Group completed the issuance of redeemable
convertible notes (the “Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$778,000,000 with an initial conversion price of HK$0.840 per ordinary share
of the Company (subject to adjustments). The Notes were issued on 16 December
2016 (the "Issue Date”) which will be due on the fifth anniversary of the Issue
Date, i.e. 16 December 2021 (the “Maturity Date"). The Notes bore an initial
interest of 5% per annum payable quarterly in arrears after the Issue Date. Unless
previously converted, redeemed or cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed on the
Maturity Date, at a redemption price equal to the aggregate of:

(i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes;
(i) the outstanding interest up to the date of redemption;
(i) the outstanding default interest (if any); and

(iv)  any additional amount that would make up an internal rate of return on
the amount of the Notes in (i) above at 10.5% per annum (having included all
interests paid together with that payable in (i) and (iii) above), calculated during
the period from the Issue Date up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

An aggregated net proceeds of approximately HK$777,013,000 was raised by
the convertible notes during the year 2016.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion component
were determined upon the issuance of the Notes.

The fair value of the liability component as at the Issue Date was determined

by reference to the valuation performed by American Appraisal using cash flows
discounted at an effective market yield of 14.64% for a similar liability that does
not have an equity conversion option. The residual amount, representing the value
of equity conversion component, is included in shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

On 27 November 2019, a supplementary agreement was signed to lower the
internal rate of return from 10.5% per annum to 8.5% per annum and the Group
can redeem the Notes early in full.

On 5 December 2019, the Stock Exchange unconditionally approved the
supplementary agreement. The management of the Company carried out
valuation on the fair value of the liability component on 5 December 2019 by
using cash flows discounted at an effective market yield of 13.07%, resulting in
HK$67,122,000 fair value gain. The convertible notes were redeemed fully on 10
December 2019, For details of the amendment to the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Notes, please refer to 5 December 2019 announcement.

The Notes were secured by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying
amount of approximately HK$764,676,000 as at 31 December 2018 and the
charge was released after full redemption in 2019.

The Notes are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

27. TERREE (&)
R—FE—NF+—A=++tRH BEE—1H
WD SABREERHTFI05%RET
F85% EAEERABHERNEE -

R_TE—NE+-_AEB BIAEGEH
BERRRE - R_S—NE+-_AAR"
AAREEEERFERAERERMBRER
13.07%MIRNEREMIB T EAHEELIHA
FEETHE EE QN FERE67,122,000
BT - BEREEN_ZT—NAE+_A+H
BREED - 5 R BB IG R R GG
B HE F2H_E-hFE+-_ARAWY
N

R-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—8 ZEHMH
BRTE (B & #0764,676,000/8 7L 2 B & N A 2 1
HEEE RN T — W FRBEE L& E R
o

SERMBRARAZ5T

HK$’000

FHET

Liability component at and 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—A—BZEBEBD 750,605

Interest expense FMERZ 107,898

Interest paid BEAAFE (38,901)
Liability component at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—B K

ZE-NEF—-—A—BZzafEHS 819,602

Interest expense FERAX 106,984

Interest paid AT F B (122,131)

Fair value gain on redemption BBl 2 A FEW S (67,122)

Early redeemed REED (737,333)

Liability component at 31 December 2019

R_E-NF+_A=+—HBZaEHXH =

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

28, EEHEBEEERER
ERNGRAV MR RER 2 ELEREEEF
BT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE 23,700 12,443
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE (49,538) (3,178)
(25,838) 9,265
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

28. EEFHEBEBEERE RS (&)

FRECHAEERBBEZESHNT

Fair value
changes arising
from valuation Impairment and
of investment other temporary
Deferred tax assets movement properties differences Lease liabilities Total
BEREEESD RE
NERER
B HER
NYERD  HHEREER BEAR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TEL TAR FHL
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A—H 7,023 1,025 - 8,048
Credited to proft or loss PR A 287 4,558 = 4,845
Currency translation difference EHESE (3) (447) = (450)
At 31 December 2018 and 1January 2019 RZE-N\E+ZA=1-BR
“Z-h15-A-H 7,307 5136 - 12,443
Acquistion of subsidiaries KN BLA A = 10,559 = 10,559
Credited to profit or logs REBEETA - 5,536 45,306 50,842
Disposal of  subsidiary HE—RIBAT (7,031) 429 - (6,602)
Currency ranglation difference EXES (276) (6) = (282)
Set-off of deferred tax liabilties BRHEERBAE - - (43,260) (43,260)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+—H - 21,654 2,046 23,700
Fair value
changes
arising from
valuation Amortisation
of investment of intangible Right of
Deferred tax liabilities movement properties Acquisitions assets use assets Total
EERHEEESD RE
NEEER
B2
AYESD WE EREESE 2 RAEEE H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THL THL THAT THL
At 1 January 2018 WZZ-N\E—-H—H = = = = =
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—RHHBAR - (3,385) - - (3,385)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss RER (0%) /HA (119) - 9% - 23)
Currency ranglation difference ERES 4 = 226 = 230
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\¥
TJanuary 2019 +-A=+-BR
“Z-N¥-R-H (114) (3,389) 32 - (3178)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB L = (54,737) = = (54,737)
Credited to profit or loss RERFTA 110 = 6,680 (43,260) (36,464)
Currency ranglation difference EHES 4 3 1574 = 1,581
Set-off of deferred tax assets BHERHEEE - - - 43,260 43,260
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
+-A=1+-H - (58,119) 8,581 - (49,538

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]
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28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) At 31 December 2019, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$778,634,000 (2018: HK$586,679,000), subject to the confirmation of
tax losses from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These tax losses are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$63,545,000 (2018:
HK$40,642,000) that will expire within five years to offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liability has not been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
certain portions of the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of certain of
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC as all of those profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders.

31 December 2019 —E—hFE+=-A=+—8H

%%Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁé&ﬁﬁ(ﬁ)

@ R-ZE-AFE+-A=+—HB -x£ER®
EAELTHEEEL778,6340008 T (ZT— N\
4 : 586,679,000 L) ' EAFB BRI BERT
BER MZEHRBERTERSBEREES
BRBIZARERB mF c NEBMMRFBEES
T I8 E51863,545,000/8 7T ( == — /\4F : 40,642,000
BT AR ARRERTOER - BB IEE
BERAFARB BARZEAGERHEFE—
BB MERRB A ] AREHESARIER
BrHeT K MU ERZEEEERELTHE

AREBI AR E TP BRI 2B AR 2 KE

&Mz E TS mENBRIHERECHEAR
B ARZENEE2HETERTRBROE -

7R 2 ) i) L S PR S AN R B I AR AR AAT B A P IS B %2
&
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Shares % 12
2019 2018
“E-NE —E-N\F
Nominal value Nominal value
[ERE HfE
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
R EE TER bt TET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREBOGET EER
(‘Orcinry Sheres) ([E£@K]) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000  20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable convertible preferred shares of BRAEEELZ TEE
HK$0.01 each (‘Preferred Shares’) mERELR([BER]) 6,000,000,000 60,000 6,000,000,000 60,000
Total ot 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and full paid: BRTRAR:
Ordinary Shares LB 8,864,332,726 443,217 8,847,924,726 442,396
A summary of the movements in the Company's issued capital during the years BHE-_ZT—NEER=-_FT—N\F+=-A=1+—
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows: AIEFEAQNGSBEITRAEHH MM T
Issued Capital 2®ITRAK
Number of Share
Ordinary Issued premium
Shares in issue capital account Total
B8
LERHA ERTRA B4 % E R @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i zE TAT TAT TAR
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-\§-H-H 8,808,732,726 440,437 4.172,526 4,612,963
Issue of ordinary shares BITLRR @ 39,192,000 1,959 26,526 28,485
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1—-H 8,847,924,726 442,396 4,199,052 4,641,448
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR (b) 16,408,000 821 11,510 12,331
Diidend peid BfkE - - (1,667,102 (1,667,102
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-A=1+—-H 8,864,332,726 44317 2,543,460 2,986,677
Notes: Mo aE
(@ 39,192,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options @ ZE-N\FRAAETHEREETEMET
during the year of 2018 for proceeds totalling HK$21,373,000. The proceeds of such 39,192,0004% & @ A% - HE1SAT{S SR A ££21,373,000

issues had been applied towards general working capital of the Group.

B -RERTZMEREEREAERZ —K

(b) 16,408,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upan exercise of certain share options b ZE-—NFRAABTHEREETEMET
during the year of 2019 for proceeds totalling HK$9,198,000. The proceeds of such 16,408,000% & B A% - #ES FT1S FIE A $£9,198,000
issues had been applied towards general working capital of the Group. B -ZEETCAMBRECRHEAEBR 2 —K

BEES -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary, who, as
the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and members of the
senior management of the Company (the “Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or the
Committee (as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for
period of ten years commencing on 29 June 2010.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time

to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The
Company may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining
the approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total
number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.

The Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Ordinary Shares following
the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Ordinary Shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 752,060,472 representing 8.48% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company. The maximum number of Ordinary Shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue
as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

30. BERESE
R-ZE—ZEANA-+NB ALGRABY
BRER A —EERETE ([52]) -
SERAAEREL TH 2 2 EEIZ 420
/g AEEAREESEE R HEI
HAEEBEBEZANER B2 2EE
BERATSIERMMBRATIZIES =HB
BRI R ERBHIRRIEAEE
RBEFREE 2 EMAL  BEAARSE
I Bt B A RHEAI 81T - JEBTT R IB L FEBNTT
EE MESTIHARAEERSAEE
ABHERZZEe ([E8g]) (BEBERM
E)VREERETIERSR TEMB R E g
BEEURFAEEeREE e (RBERH
E)ARABBE2IGMHE T2EBBR
TEBALTREEBEAEEEEANER 5T
YN —E—TESA-+HBRHTER
B

E R IEET 8 & AR RER H A B ERT 8IFT
KHMERARITE A W RITEEREET
EmA PRI 2EBIREE 2 BEBRY &
HEABBBTREBITERREE 230% -
tEoh - EARR AT 8] K AR R R {A] £ 4th B8 A% 4
FEEREN RS TERN A EEREETT
FmA FET2EBRAE aETEBB
RNtE8E BB ERITEBRAMBEZ10%
([FHEIRE LR ) - NRRA] N FE BRI
HARE FESREI EATEFTERE L
BRoFIEIRIE LR —LHH BREFTE R
KAFITEEMEBBRETE B TREZE
R EETEmA FTET2EBRAEE R
BREHRERTSHEARRAEETNERDS
BITEBAREE 210% °

KEERRERR-_ZE—+F AT+ NBHREEH
1% 5HEIR7E LR £A878,060,4720% i@ A% o

MAFEBR Rt BT FRHIT2ER
% 48 81 A752,060,4720% - HHE R A A RIRA
BT AN 28.48% o FAMEAR[121E A HifE iR
BERERITTHEETSAERRHEE
ZEBBREE RETEBRBARAREZ
REBHBERTEBR 1% - ER#E—FE
B R 2 IR AR IR R A Z kAR
AL -
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors or the Committee, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may
otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary

Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

At 1 January 2018

Granted during the year
Forfeited/expired during the year
Exercised during the year

R-ZF—\F—HA—H
RERFE L

R R B
RERITE

At 31 December 2018 and

1 January 2019
Granted during the year
Forfeited/expired during the year
Exercised during the year

RZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—H
rE=ZF—-—NF—HA—H
RE AR

RE AR UL B B
RERNITE

At 31 December 2019

R-ZEBE-NF+-_HA=+—H

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]

30. BBRRERTE (@)
RIBFTEIRHEREZ ZNAINELN B MR
28R MRS MARAARLNE R
TBTZRBARE-ERLBEREZITE
HhEEeZBeBT HERBHETE
HBERHBHREHI0F - RIEFTERTE
ROHEUEREETENAFEBREZ
A2 R

BREZITEERESSRZESET H
THREATISE 2 &ESE  ((ZBIRNE
BREREAPAEBIFAZWTE: ((TBRK
REEREHBHIRAERS BEBRFZF
HWHE: Ri)EBREE-

FE R L S TR A AMEUBR B SRR A
SIREZEMN-

FRFEETHARITERBRELT

Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options

hniE
FEITERE fERR 2B
Notes (HK$ per share) '000
iir=s (BB %5
0.76 571,176
(@) 0.94 60,000
(b) 0.86 (76,608)
() 0.55 (39,192
0.78 515,376
(@) 0.478 6,000
(b) 0.74 (283,814)
() 0.56 (16,408)
(d) 0.71 221,154
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The fair values of the share options granted under the Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2019 were HK$868,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as at
the respective dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted, the valuation of which was performed
by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited. The following table lists the inputs to the

model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
Expected life of options (years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

S Bl % $R R Bl 5
31 December 2019 —FE—hFE+=-A=+—8H

%0 BRETS (@)

@ REE-F-NF+-_A=+—HLFE:"
RIBET &I PTIR B M A FE A H/3868,0008
TC THiRE BB R W 2 R R R E R — R
ABARZ AR BHET A HEMAEHD
KHEBRAERARET TRIVRAAERRR
ZEBABIE

B% B R (%) 0
T8 HA R 18 (%) 3547
BERETESEH (F) 3-5
15 3 P8 1 = (%) 1.21 =157

Equity-settled share option expenses of HK$10,377,000 (2018: HK$13,148,000) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2019 in respect of the

share options granted under the Scheme.

(b) 283,814,000 (2018: 76,608,000) share options granted under the Scheme were
forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2019 upon the resignation of certain

grantees during the year.

(c) 16,408,000 (2018: 39,192,000) share options granted under the Scheme were

exercised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

(a) As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 221,154,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.5% of the Ordinary

Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.

REBEZT-NFT_A=+—"HLEFE R
R EIFR B R B R AR E 2 8
PR 3210,377,000/8 70 ( —F — /\4F £ 13,148,000
AIL)

b REBEEZZT-—NAFF+_A=+—BLHF
E BB 2R T 2283,814,00000 (—ZF— )\ :
76,608,00010 ) BEREE N FRE FTEERABEIER
/XLBZ/ IHﬂ

© WBEFERE 216,408,000 (ZZE— N
F:39,192,000 ) IEREEREE T —NF
+-—A=t+—BI-FEETE-

) RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H XRAAH
221,154,000 sH BB T 2 M ARTTHEBRE BE
R-E—hF+_A=+—HEBTETREBRZH
2.5% o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #F ¥R

183



184

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements £ 8

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(e)  The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding under the
Scheme as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019
Number of options

Exercise price* Exercise period

BREHE THEE* THEHE

(’000) (HK$ per share)

(F14) (BR#ET)

1,304 0.8 20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
76,925 0.8 20 Jan 2018 to 19 Jan 2020
76,925 0.8 20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
20,000 0.478 5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021

2,000 0.478 15 Aug 2020 to 14 Aug 2022

2,000 0.478 15 Aug 2021 to 14 Aug 2023

2,000 0.478 15 Aug 2022 to 14 Aug 2024
20,000 0.49 5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022
20,000 0.49 5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023

221,154

2018

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

B SR T1EE" 1715 B A
('000) (HK$ per share)
(F%) (5RET)
1,200 415 6 Sep 2014 to 5 Sep 2019
1,200 415 6 Sep 2015 to 5 Sep 2020
92,380 0.5 2 Jul 2016 to 1 Jul 2019
4,804 0.8 20 Jun 2016 to 19 Jun 2019
4,804 0.8 20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
175,138 0.8 20 Jan 2017 to 19 Jan 2019
87,925 0.8 20 Jan 2018 to 19 Jan 2020
87,925 0.8 20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023
515,376

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share
capital of the Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect
of a transaction)

At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding

share options under the Scheme would, under the present capital structure

of the Company, result in the issue of 221,154,000 additional Ordinary

Shares and additional share capital of HK$11,058,000 and share premium of
HK$145,094,000, before taking into account any transfer of share option reserve
to the share premium account.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]

81} 3% 6 2% Bl 53

. BRESE (|
(6 REEHIRGBIET MR T BT
B RATE R T :

—E-AF

—E—+tHFEXRNAZt+HEZ-ZE-EEXATHHE
—E-N\F—-A=-+HE=-ZE=-ZEH5-—-HF+ A
—E-hE-A=-+BE=-ZE=-—f5—-—H+AhA
—E-hEAARBE=ZE=-—-5hAMWMAE
—ECEFN\A+HEBE-E-=—EN\A+MHNAE
—E - N\A+HEBE=-E=-=Z=E/N\A+MHNAH
—E--HEN\At+HEBE=-ZE-_MWENAE+HIA
—E_EFNAREBEZZE-__FhAMNAE
—E_-FhAREBEZZE-_=FhAMNH

—N\F

—mFEALARNBE_ZE—NAFNARH

—hAFNLARNBE_ZT-_FTFNAAH
_T_/\ﬂz‘tﬂ AE=-2—hhF+tHA—H
_2 NEXNAZt+HBRE-Z—AEA~A+AIAH

—+tFARNAZFTHZE_ZE-_ZEFXA+NH
—E—+F—A-+BE=_ZT—NLF—AT+NH
_f—ﬂ¢ AZ+BZ2=Z=FF—A+NH
:T hWFE—A=Z+HZE=E=_—F—A+A1A
—E-NFhLARBE-_ET-_—FNAMNH
:g—giﬂﬁﬁai—g::iﬂﬂma
—E-—HFhNhARBE-_ZE_=FhAWMA

BRETEEURARFETEMEARL
BT AR IRAA B IR SHIR (BT E AR
ERRXSREERIN) BIEHHE

RIRER RIBAQRIRR 2 EARNER -
FTEIIE THRITEBREESSITERE
BEHNEE1T221,154,0000% & 3B A% - $% 15 58 IMNAR
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31. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The perpetual convertible bonds issued are as follows:

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

3. KAMTRRES
BB ZRAETBRESNT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Perpetual convertible bonds KA MR R (& 5 1,139,046 1,139,046

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind
Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited to advance the
timetable for the possible issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds in
relation to the acquisition of approximately 25.2% equity interest of Li Ning Co
in December 2012. The execution and performance of the Deed were approved
in the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 4 November 2013. The
earn-out perpetual convertible bonds with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000
were issued in advance in November 2013 and were classified as equity and
the related derivative financial liabilities were derecognised at the same time,
the financial impact of which was based on the fair value of earn-out perpetual
convertible bonds upon the Deed becoming effective.

There was no movement of perpetual convertible bonds for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

32. RESERVES

() The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in Note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

R-ZE—=FN\A=+8" K27 &Vitory
Mind Assets Limited 52 Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited5] \Z 8245 - AHERIRER — T ——F +=
ARBEE RARIAD2%REMAIEETR
Floe DK A MR R E S AR &K o IR 2
EUNMBTR -2 —=F+—ANAH1T
WRREN ARG LEESIHE- ATFER
1,140,000,0007% 7T 2 & F 8E 77 7K A M AT 2 AR
BHRERE—=F+ - ARAMET ALH
Hrtgn RN HATEVBAGERIE
R HUBZENREREZBRERRNR
Mee Nk AR R ESR 2 A FEFE -

BT \Fk-_F—NF+_A=+—
HIEFE KA ES W EE R E
@jo

32. f#E
i) XNEERFr—EErAEEEESER
HABPONGARREHENZT -

(i) MEREFEEEDRBERTTERRE
ZRVE - — S F RN M B R M 2.3
PRt AR D B 2 @ 5T HUR - BB BAS R
EHBRERTERERERMNEER X
RNBBBRERAE IS ERERE S
M,/ BEHEE -

i)y REBEE2EHRBERZBBEERIER

AREBERP BRI 2 2 & &8 B B0 A
BEEAXREMAEZHEHEES -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT
As lessor

33. REMHORH
ERHBAA

As at 31 December 2019, the Group leased sports park facilities to independent RZZF—-—NF+ZA=+—8 A5ERE
third parties under operating lease arrangements, with each lease negotiated for a KERNLTHERBYE =L HEEERR

term of 2 to 10 years.

M ERHELERRAPR _E1+F-

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables RZFE—NF+ZA=+—8 A5ERE

under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

HEEPRI M 2 TR BRGSO MmN T 5 58
Rz ARERSEESABENT

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within one year —F R 4,684 10,840
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERAF (RHEEREME) 9,650 38,118
Over five years HEFE 3,216 19,828
17,550 68,786

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+
31 December 2019 —ZE—AFE+=-_A=+—H
34. COMMITMENTS FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT/ 4. EHERE BB ZAE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following commitments for property RZE-NF+_A=+—H *x&£BH%HE

development and capital expenditure: VAT 5 b 22 B B8 B AN S R HE -
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: BT 4B KRB
Property development/construction work EihEME IZETRE 18,576 32,522
Capital contribution/acquisition of joint ventures/ TE/RBEERE
associates R l/N] 571,504 584,329
590,080 616,851
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. EAHEALIRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the PRt S BmREME D IFl 2SN
Group had the following material transactions with related parties in the ordinary AEEFARBEBKBRET SHEBEALTE
course of business during the year: TUATERRS:
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Marketing service income received and 2 U % e U
receivable from associates RN A2 TS HEE R U A () 318,998 331,633
Cost of purchases paid and payable BT K E — A
to an associable BERNRZREBER (il 6,237 3,374
Office and car-park rental expense paid and 2 R ERBEZ AT 2
payable to associates WMAEREFEESHEAL (i) 1,987 2,164
Dividend received from associates BB ERAIZIRE (v) 50,523 =
Consultancy fee paid to an associate EN—REBE AR 2
BARGE ) 7,820 -
Compensation cost paid to an associate Ef—RHBE A ZEER (vi) 15,506 =
Rehabilitation service income received B— Qe E
from an associate RERS A (vii) 82 =
Trademark assignment fee paid to an associate & — R B &8 A &) 2 FG 12
EHEE (i) 1,455 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ue B8 — I BT B A &) (iX) 290,000 =
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i) Marketing service income in relation to some sports events and
competitions and the endorsement of brand products of LN Group and Double
Happiness managed by the Group received and receivable from LN Group*

and Double Happiness®, was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated
between the related parties.

(i)~ Cost of purchases in relation to brand products of LN Group* paid and
payable to LN Group®, was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated
between the Group and LN Group™.

(i)~ During the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, the Group leased
certain offices and car-parking spaces from LN Group* and Double Happiness®.
The lease rates were determined after arm'’s length negotiations between the
related parties with reference to current prevailing market rate.

(iv)  The dividend received were made pursuant to the dividend rates proposed
and declared by Li Ning Co and Double Happiness.

(v)  The consultancy fee was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(vi)  The compensation cost was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(viiy  The rehabilitation service income was charged in accordance with the terms
of an agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(viii)y ~ The Trademark assignment fee was charged in accordance with the terms
of an agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(ix)  Acquisition of Rise Mode Investments Limited which is engaged in the
business of management and operation of ice skating rinks from Lion Woods
Limited (“Lion Woods”)**, was completed in accordance with the terms negotiated
between the Group and Lion Woods.

* Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are common directors of the
Company, LN Group and Double Happiness.

Lion Woods is wholly owned by Mr. Li Chun who is an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning
and the father of Mr. Li Qilin. Lion Woods and Mr. Li Chun are associates of Mr. Li Ning
and Mr. Li Qilin and are therefore connected persons of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules. The transaction also constituted a connected transaction and the Company
has completed with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. For details of the transactions, please refer to announcements dated 22 July
2019, 9 October 2019 and 22 November 2019 and the circular dated 27 November
2019.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]

3. EABEAEALRES (&)

) HALAEEEEBEZETEREHEAELR
ERFTEERRAEE REERRS A
TEEBERAESWR KBRS TIHHRE
AR AIRZ B A L E 2 G FRURER ©

i) BNEEMNZEZEE£ENTEEE RE
ERfERBERRASERTEEE KT

B fER SR MR ER o

i)y MNEBEBE_ZE-—NF+_A=+—BI
T A AEEERFEEE MAEEZ
ETHMRAERFEL - WWIEBS TR B/MET
WFTLERTMGKFRERAFERRETE -

vy BURBEETDREZERAARIIEEE
FERERZEEERIETE -

) RSB R R R B — RS A
TR 2 ok e IR R R o

(v BEEFREANEER—EEE QRG]
32 1hh e B AR SR URCER

(vil) 1R BR A5 Y A T3 AR 5 7R ok 8] B — T g
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BREKEARAR (REBEEREERK
SHER) MEIE - THREAEE EE Lon woods
TE P AR U R o

) FEAERFTHEBAE (FERENET)
BARR] FTEEERACEZHRES-
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GEMETMREIETARR ZRIEAL - X 5 INEK
BER S AARFERIECGEM EMARRFE20ER
REEER -EEXINFE F2HAHAE=
T-NFLtA-+-B —TE-NAF+AAEE
TE-NFt+—A -+ -_HRNAERBEHA-ZT
—hWE+—A=++BwBK-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %= & Bif 5% & 2= Bii 5+

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) A subsidiary of our Group and LN Group established a joint venture for
developing sports coaching activities during the year of 2018.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as included in revenue, other
income and other gains-net, trade debtors and bills receivable are disclosed in
Notes 5 and 19 to the financial statements.

Included in prepayment, deposit and other receivables (2018: interest in
associate) was an amount of HK$5,522,000 (2018: HK$5,522,000) due from
an associate. The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free, has
no fixed terms of repayment. The amount is expected to be settled less than one
year (2018: more than one year) from the reporting date so that it is reclassified
from interest in associates to prepayment, deposit and other receivable in 2019.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in Notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

Apart from the transaction disclosed in Note (ix), the other related party
transactions set out in this note did not fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

3B. EXBEALRS (&)

(@ AEE-—MHBRANRZ-ZZTE—N\FEZE
EEEHRRABAKL T —GEE &
ARHEREREBEEINIEE:

(b) BEALZRFSEE

AEBGF Ak HEMARE AU S F
B ORBERREREECBAEALEH®R
FHIEER B RRM SR E -

JE U — 1 B 22 D B) B9 FRIEB,522,00008 7T ( —
T — [\ 5,522,000/ 70 ) Thst ATEATFIE -
EFeREMEWRBE(ZZE-N\F :REE
NAIMEZ) B — ML DNFNREE
EEF RS REBEETERBR - EHEEE
EHAERBREBHE—FA(ZT—\F:
BB—F)EE UWER-ZZE—NEFEBER
REERNRNERET D EEEMNRE &
o N H b fE U FRIE -

() AEBXEEBEAEZEHMH
FHREEMEeERESFHALTZFHE DA
OB 7 R B 5E8 K% 9 o

BR BT EE (X P IBB O R S50 AN SEPT 8 2 B
b BEE A LR 5 I BRGEM LT R RIZE20
EETHER BEXZ IR IHERER
1
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A

SUBSIDIARY
36(a)

On 28 March 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shares in Joy Top
Management Limited (“Joy Top"), an operator of three sports destinations in the

36(a)

PRC, for consideration of HK$850,000. The acquisition is expected to enrich the E|) (PE=

Group’s portfolio of sports destination and bring in new sources of revenue for the

Group.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as

follows:

Purchase consideration
Cash paid

36. ¥XE5HEHE—BEKEQT

—NF=ZA=Z+NB AEBEUR
{E850,0008 T B B E R B R A 7
REEEE My B8 2 E
BRITRMD WEEEBEHATEEAEERN

(T3

5 B el A W A7 & B 5 T A Y 2 ok

IR ©

LIRS

BENRE
EfNRE

BERE UBEZEEFELRAEZHE

HK$'000
TAET

850

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

AKRBEEEIACEERABNT

Fair value

AFE

HK$'000

T T

Cash and cash equivalents ReKkBREFEY 23,776
Restricted bank balances BR I 14 SR 1T 45 4 3,342
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 5,920
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,060
Operating rights =B 16,249
Other non-current asset Hi3E R EE 578
Inventories "E 92
Trade receivables JiE Wt BR 3K 79
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TN e R H M EWKKIE 6,094
Trade payables and other payables JE 11 BR K K HL At B <) SR I8 (25,601)
Accruals and receipts in advance FEET & B R TBW A (29,427)
Borrowing BE (635)
Lease liabilities HEBE (2,060)
Tax payables FEI IR (995)
Deferred tax liabilities RERERR (4,116)
Net identifiable liabilities acquired Frik i ] sk pl B8 B3 5R (4,644)
Less: non-controlling interest R FEPE AR M 84
Add: goodwil e 5,410
850
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The goodwill is attributable to Joy Top's experience in operation of sports

destination and synergies expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition. It has

been allocated to the sports destinations development segment. None of the

goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of the acquired operating rights of HK$16,249,000 and
deferred tax of HK$4,116,000 has been provided in relation to these fair value
adjustments.

() Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition-related costs of HK$269,000 are included in administrative expenses
in profit or loss.

(i) Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is HK$3,814,000 and includes trade
receivables with a fair value of HK$79,000. The gross contractual amount for
trade receivables due is nil.

(i) Non-controlling interest
The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportion
of net assets acquired shared by the non-controlling interest.

(v)  Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$51,898,000 and net
loss of HK$6,175,000 to the Group for the period from 28 March 2019 to
31 December 2019. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit after tax for the year ended 31
December 2019 would have been HK$631,772,000 and HK$825,063,000
respectively.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

3. ¥BESHREE—BHEBELAR

(%)
BAEETANEERELESLFAEERN
Hb B 48 B LA Rk 7N £ B U B TR BB EE A 1 R
ME-FREEEHIREREENHMERD
B o TE HAME M G B W] B IE IR o

B U EE & B 2~ F 816,249,000 7T K& Bt
ZENTEAZLIRIEL T IES,116,0008
7T|:O

) WAL A
U B8 8 BA B A8 269,00058 T 5T A I8 25 1T I FE
§ o

() BT AE FE Y E

FBUREFREEMBERREBZAFEES
3,814,000/ 7T & R B ¥E R F B A79,000%
TTRIEWER R - B RN R R 2 & W RE AR

=
=

UEZ
7 S5 B35 12 1 3 45 AR 25 (i FT M B R M
2 b 15 ¥R 3 R B 4 2 -

() W zs ] a7 B Bt

FIWBEBEN _ZE—hAhE=A_+N\BE
TE-hAE+-_A=+—RHEALRER
BB U 2551,898,00008 T RE £ BB F R
6,175,000 LW BEEER T — N F
—A—B%4 ABE-_Z—hh&E+_-A
=t HIEFENGEBERGARBESR
R ¥ 2 B A&631,772,0007 Tt 5%.825,063,0005%8
=
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements % & Bif 5% & 2= Bfi 5+

31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
36(b)
On 4 April 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in _E /825 Z 4848 R
RAR AR (" L/EZEE") which owns 80% equity interest in Snake Esports
(renamed to LNG Esports in late May 2019), one of the participants in League
of Legends Pro League in the PRC, for a consideration of RMB89,154,000.
The Group expects to leverage its extensive sports resources and managerial
experience to providing further professional practices for the business model and
long-term development of LNG Esports as well as the Chinese esports industry
at large, in addition to creating additional value and commercial opportunities for
more sustainable development.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as

36. ¥ SHREE—ENBAF
(#&)

36(h)

_i—nﬁmﬂma AEBEWE 5=

WPERMFEERRAR ([LEEE]) 2B
ﬁé EH#EA [SnakeE %m&fﬂ“ﬁ*m (BR=
T-NFRATAERZR [INGE FRRiREL
21 ARE (CRAEEBE) BEBRESLENM
Z—)80%R%#E - KB A AR¥S89,154,0007T °
AEBEEEERETEENEBEERE
RBREIRRE - BINGE FRE B4 mpg
BAMRRER ULTPREREXREE
ZHBFELCHRE VAEFLZHREEEMEE
el —DERAFERRE-

BERE MUBEEFELRBEZFRBN

follows: ™

HK$'000

FHET
Purchase consideration BENRE
Cash paid ERE 104,221
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows: WEERZEERBEWT

Fair value

AFE

HK$'000

FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReKkBREFEEY 695
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 25
Right-of-lease assets FREEE 3,696
Intangible assets EBREE 112,809
Trade receivables JiE Wt BR 3K 9,759
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables ?Eﬁ RIE - e R H MW RIE 5,284
Deferred tax asset BEERIBEE 527
Trade and other payables EENEE?‘K&%@F&EH RIE (10,789)
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,696)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAEE (28,202)
Net identifiable assets acquired T U B AT 58 Rl B E DR E 90,108
Less: non-controlling interest R FEPE AR M A (18,021)
Add: goodwill e 32,134

104,221
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The goodwill is mainly attributable to_t= /8 2% 2 's experience in operation of

esports team and existing internal resources including team players and coach. It

has been allocated to the sports segment. None of the goodwill is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of the acquired intangible assets of HK$112,809,000 and
deferred tax of HK$28,202,000 has been provided in relation to these fair value
adjustments.

() Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs of HK$401,500 are included in administrative expenses
of which HK$281,500 and HK$120,000 are recorded in 2018 and 2019 in
profit or loss respectively.

(i) Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is HK$10,449,000 and includes
trade receivables with a fair value of HK$9,759,000. The gross contractual
amount for trade receivables due is HK$9,759,000 of which nil is expected to be
uncollected.

(i) Non— controlling interest
The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportion
of net assets acquired shared by the non-controlling interest.

(v)  Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$18,736,000 and net loss of
HK$12,507,000 to the Group for the period from 4 April 2019 to 31 December
2019. I the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019, consolidated revenue
and consolidated profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
have been HK$627,079,000 and HK$822,929,000 respectively.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

3. ¥BESHREE—BHEBELAR

(%)
BAEENTEARN LSRN EAEELET
BREFNCHIARESNBER (BIEK
ERHM) -HREEESREREHI-TE
HA M 4 75 B 0] B EBTE R o

BB EREE 2 A F(E112,809,00058 7T &
FhEZ & N T B T BT IR I T F 7828,202,000
BIre

) WEFREK A

1 B+ B A AN 401,50078 Tt AfTBE S - &
MR- NER_E-IENBRET AR
281,50078 7T K. 120,00078 JT °

() BT AE FE Y E

FBUREFREEMBERREBZAFEES
10,449,000 7T + & # B 1E 2 B A&9,759,000
BT EWEER DR R A NRE
/9,759,000 L EHR W EBHAAKE S

UEZ
S5 B35 12 1 3 45 RO 2 (i FT M P R 7 M
2 b 15 ¥R 3 B 4 2 -

() W zs ] a7 B Bt

FIWBEEN —_Z—AENANBAE_FT
—hWE+-A=+—BHRHAREETE WK
2518,736,0008 7T M B 4 E5 18 F 812,507,000
BT oMUEEEN _Z—hAhF—A—B%
£ ABE-_ZT-AFE+_A=+—HILHF
EMRAREREEABRBEESEFE DB B
627,079,000 7T %.822,929,00078 JT °
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
36(c)
On 27 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shares in
Rise Mode Investments Limited (“Rise Mode") which is principally engaged in
business of management and operation of thirteen ice-skating rinks in the PRC,
for consideration of HK$290,000,000. The acquisition is expected to provide
additional Ieisure sports destination to the Group’s customers apart from Li Ning
Sports Park and Li Ning Sports Centre and will further diversify and enrich the
Group’s sports destination portfolio by improving the number, variety, service
offering and nationwide coverage of the sports destinations operated by the
Group.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as

81} 3% 6 2% Bl 53

36. ¥ SHREE—ENBAF
(#&)
36(c)

—NE+ZA=++t8 FEEUR
8290,000,0008 T WA EIKEFR QA
([8#]) (FERFRREEEREESME
BIKBEENER) 2 WEHITRMD - WESE
HERAAEBR  EFAPRHEFEEEE R
TEBEEH P LI EAREEE B A
#5355 3B 52 §$§%@bﬁ7’%@ﬂ’]hﬁﬁﬂ’]f@
ZHE R RERZBREBEESHE

follows:

Purchase consideration
Cash paid

LI EREEAEENEER E’Jf@iﬂ/\
BERE FIUREBZEEFERBEZFHE
W
HK$'000
F&T
HBERE
BENRE 290,000

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

ARBEEEEIACEERABNT

Fair value

AFE

HK$'000

T T

Cash and cash equivalents ReKkBREFEEY 102,503
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 39,881
Right-of-use assets FREEE 136,359
Trade Name EEEE 63,832
Membership = 25,845
Inventories FE 669
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables ?Eﬁ RIE  R e K H MW RIE 16,393
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 10,032
Trade payables and other payables and accruals FE T BR X TA N H M ERRIBIA R EFTE R (52,697)
Receipts in advance B (32,532)
Borrowing BE (32,074)
Lease liabilities HEBE (135,786)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBBEE (22,419)
Net identifiable assets acquired Fir Ui B AT 28 Rl B EDF RR 120,006
Add: goodwill e 169,994
290,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %% & Bif 55 & 2= Bii 5+

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The goodwill is attributable to Rise Mode’s business networking, experience in

operation of ice-skating rinks, existing internal resources including reputable

trainers and synergies expected to arise after the Group's acquisition. It has been

allocated to sports destinations development segment. None of the goodwill is

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of the acquired intangible assets of HK$89,677,000 and deferred
tax of HK$22,419,000 has been provided in relation to these fair value
adjustments.

() Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition-related costs of HK$2,160,000 are included in administrative
expenses in profit or loss.

(i) Acquired receivables
The fair value of other receivables is HK$8,680,000.

(i) Revenue and profit contribution

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019, consolidated revenue and
consolidated profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have
been HK$759,573,000 and HK$839,541,000 respectively.

Further information relating to the transaction with related parties of the Group is
set out in Note 35.

36(d)

On 30 May 2019, the Group disposed of 100% of its entire equity interest
in Shenyang Zhao Huan Modern Construction Industry Park Limited (57t B5
KERREEEZXBEABR AR ), awholly owned subsidiary of the
Group for a cash consideration of HK$96,346,000, net assets disposed of
were HK$115,866,000, exchange fluctuation reserve previous recognised
to the consolidated financial statement of HK$10,437,000 was reclassified
to the consolidated income statement resulting in a loss of disposal after
income tax HK$29,957,000. Net cash inflow arising on disposal of such was
HK$95,731,000, net-off bank balances and cash disposal of HK$615,000.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

36. ¥XESHREE—BEHBAT

(&)
BAEBDHREEABLER KIS ¥
BRERKHR BENRER(BEEEE
B AR ) A R 7 £ (B Wy B T8 HR 48 E AR 1 B 3K
E-EREEESREEEENHERES
&R o T8 HA M 4 75 B 1] A VE B IE R

B EREE 2~ F1E89,677,000%8 T &
FhEZ & N T B T B AT R & F 7822,419,000
BIre

) WEEFEEE L A
U B AR B8 Ak 482,160,000 7T 2 51 A B 22 B9 1T
B -

() BT S Y B E
H {th & Uy 308 2 A F (B A8,680,00058 IT ©

(i) Yoz R FI & B
WEEENR_T—NFEF—HA—B%4 " 8
AEEEE-_ZT—NAF+-_A=+—HI
FENGEWREREEBRBMERNED R A
759,573,000 7T %.839,541,0007 JT °

FREASEREALIRSHNE - L ERE
PAF £S5

36(d)
R-_ZE—NERA=1tH A&EEHEL
BRERREEEXEERAR (—EARX
EENZENBRARNEHBER B
KB /R96,346,0008 T  HEMNEEFEAR
115,866,000 7T * 5t BT R 4R & BF 75 MR & 1#
R EE KR B RE 510,437,000 T EHT 5 58
ERARER EERAMSHELEEE
29,957,000 - B EMEAMNRESRA
JHEE A95,731,00008 70 (S HBR LERNIRITE
# &3 4615,000/8 7T) °
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. MERRFE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: —E-hF+_A=+—HEENBRRF
BIIRIAT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name operations shares/paid up capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
HEME&L/ BRI
NRER EMREERY  TER/ARRA AAREEREEDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Viva China Holdings Ltd (*VCHL") BVI US$1 & 100% - Investment holding
HK$2,079,000,000
EEEAHS (B4 RAER
2,079,000,000% 7T
Winner Richjnvestmem Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - \nvgstment holding
KHEREBERRA Bk BT REER
Viva China Sports Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$520,000 100% - Investment holding and sports
talent management
FAFEEERERAERDA £ 520,000 7T REZBRREBEATER
Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
FAFBEHEREZRER AR RBERES (o REER
Viva China Community Development (Yangzhou) Holdings Limited BV US$20 - 70% \nvgstmem holding
FAPEMERSE (BN BERERAF RRERES 0ETT REER
Viva China Yangzhou Community Development Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 70% Investment holding
FARBBNHERRERERAT g 10,000%7% RERR
BNEAEHEREBRAA PRC RMB210,000,000 = 70%  Properly development
e AR #210,000,0007T B ERE
FITENBE N ELEEBRAR PRC RMB500,000 = 100%  Sports event organisation and
(Note i) operation
HE AR 500,000 EREDEMREE
(L)
BMNFERLBE BB AR PRC RMB300,000 = 100%  Sports park management and
operation
FE AR 300,000 EEREEREE
BIELBEEEER AR PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Sports park management and
operation
FE AR #1,000,0007T BEEEBERYE
EFEUEELER LA PRC RMB1,000,000 = 80%  Sports park management and
operation
I ARH1,000,0007C BEEERREE
KEREERREEEERAA PRC RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Project investment and property
development consultancy
) services
FE AR #100,000,0007T BEREREHERE
LR
FNEMBEER (LR)BERAT PRC RMB102,100,000 = 100%  Sports talent management,
(Note i) competition and event
production and management,
and sports-related marketing
and consultancy service
HE AEWOZJO0,0Q\O% BEATEE BER
(B sEii) 5@@%&%%&
BRAWATSEER
R - ARG
ERENEBEHERAGTRAR PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100%  Provision of development
consultancy services
HE AR #25,000,0007C REREZARSE
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 37. MEARFE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name operations/ shares/paid up capltal attributable to the Gompany Principal activities
LI
ARER AR EnE aﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁ%&iﬂw ARFEEREBD I TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 1
KEREEERTESERAA PRC RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Marketing and sales of
" ;?Tnstruction TEmatenals
FE AR #150,000,0007T Bz minHERERIEE
KEREREEHERARA PRC RMB38,000,000 = 100%  Marketing and sales of
(Note iv) construction materials
HE AE%&O%Q(J;?E Bz TnHEREREAE
[ ativ
i%;@t&i%#gﬁiiﬁ%% B g{t)fé%ﬁ%&* PRC RMB125,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
REEEPL(BEREYE
FE AR #125,000,0007T REZR
KBEABEEREEEFRAA PRC QABW 2,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
FE AR %12,000,0007T REER
KEREEAZEREEREGR PRC RMB3,500,000 = 100%  Investment holding
(Note i
HE AR #3,500,0007C REER
(=)
FERER (RE)BERBEERBRAR PRC RMB2,000,000 = 70%  Provision of scientific physical
(Note v) rehabilitation training and
health management services
FE AR %2,000,0007C RERIZEERENRK
(FizEv) BREEERE
METHEEEULERA PRC RMB300,000 = 100%  Sporls park management and
operation
FE AR #300,0007C SEEEHREE
HEmEERE UL ERRA PRC RMBO = 100%  Sports park management and
_ (Note v_i) operatlon o
FE AREOT BEREEREE
GED
KEMBEEEVLERER PRC RMB1,000,000 = 70%  Sports park management and
operalmﬂ
FE AR #1,000,0007T BEREEREE
LBRINERRERAA PRC RMB100,000 = 80%  production and distribution of
sports content, management
and marketing of sports talents
FE AR #100,0007T WA%A’EE@%TT EE
M‘Fé*fi& Mm% E
LBRBRENBEERAR PRC RMBO = 80%  production and distribution of
(Note vii) sports content, management
and marketing of sports talents
Gk N RENERERES BB
GED) )\T%E&m%?&fé
BHERA (AR BEERERAR PRC RMB14,312,160 = 100%  Operation of ice-skating rinks
FE AR #14,312,1607C SERKG
BRRBEA (L8)EKALBERAR PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Operation of ice-skating rinks
FE AR #5,000,0007T SERKE
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary
Company name operations shares/paid up capltal
HEMEEL,/
AREE Mk EENY aﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁ$
KEMEERABEAEERARA PRC RMB5,000,000
FE AR #5,000,0007T
BOMBEERABEZRERL PRC RMB500,000
FE AR E500,0007T
MMBEEE L BRAR PRC RMB500,000
FE AR E500,0007T
HNMEHERKEELARAT PRC RMB500,000
FE AR E500,0007T
REMEAEBKBEXLARDA PRC RMB5,000,000
FE AR #5,000,0007T
FITEAEGBEENIERAA PRC RMB500,000
FE AR E500,0007T
Notes:

() The registered capital of EIN T IENBE XL EXZERBR QA is
RMB1,000,000.

(i) The registered capital of 3 FL4B L BE B T R
RMB150,000,000.

(i) The registered capital of BROBBEEIENEBREBTEBR A A is
RMBS5,000,000.

(iv)  The registered capital of 2 /8% Z M2 & 5 B R 2 A is RMB100,000,000.

(EEFR)BERAF IS

(v The registered capital of JE L7E R (KB BBE R ERAMR A A is

RMB3,333,333.

(i) The registered capital of EI BT B EEE

(vii)  The registered capital of =& P 5% #8 4& £L 5 & FR A 7] is RMB100,000.

Apart from BREE S FENBREBE LEXERERETEHR O
(BRE %) being registered as limited partnership, all the other principal
subsidiaries of the Company are registered as limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR & PR A 7]

XAt EBR A& is RMB10,000,000.

37. B AFERE @\

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREEREAESL
Direct Indirect
E# CF:3
- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks
EEBIKS

Principal activities

TEXHB

- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks

EERBIKS
- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks
EERBIKS
- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks
EERBIKS
- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks
EEBIKS
- 100% Operation of ice-skating rinks
EERIKS

3

)y FYMEABEXLEEREARARZ
%EFH%QZK?%/\EW 000,0007T °

i) JFENBEBEEERE (tR)EBERAIRZEM
&R B AR #150,000,0007T °
(i) HBEBIFAEEREEEERRAZHF
it & A& & AR5 ,000,0007T °

vy HKEEZmEBEZERAFAZEMERR
AR ¥100,000,0007T °

V)  FEAEBE (RS BEREZERERARAZ
FMEAR A ARKS333,3337T

Vi EEBTHREEREXEERARZEMER
A AR ¥10,000,0007T °

Vi) EERNEEKBEBRERARZAMERR
AR #100,0007T °

BIRBESIENRREE LEXBRIKE
EREPL (ARER)EMRBRABIN I

ﬁ?@ﬁ?ZE@I%W%@ﬂ@%IHﬁ%ﬁﬁE
NG
EREBINARRZHMBRAR EFRR Z

EMBRARETEHFREEBATENL
ARAEEEEFECTIRZHD EFERR
gﬁﬂﬁf@ﬁﬂ% RAIZEMSEHRIEBNIT
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38. XAFAZHMBERRARRBEES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
“B-0E —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% TAR TEL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment b ER NS 204 147
Right-of-use asset FREEE 7,886 =
Investments in subsidiaries RIFBARIZKE 1,376,837 3,852,126
Prepayment BRHIA 1,856 =
Deposits o 1,939 1,939
Total non-current assets ErBHEELE 1,388,722 3,854,212
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEW KB A R 0B 1,039,360 503,701
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRHIE - e REtENEIR 47,162 47,035
Cash and bank balances BeRBTHEH 153,247 15,888
Total current assets M EELE 1,239,769 566,624
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to subsidiaries NI NGIE: O 38,354 35,679
Lease liability HE&E 5,913 =
Other payables and accruals HiERFIEREAE A 6,014 6,431
Total current liabilties MEBEESE 50,281 42,110
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,189,488 524,514
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABRABER 2,578,210 4,378,726
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FrBEE
Convertible notes ARRER 27 - 819,602
Due to a subsidiary R —REMNBRRHE 837,387 =
Lease liability HE&E 2,412 -
Total non-current liability EE el ik 839,799 819,602
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,738,411 3,559,124
EQUITY g
Issued capital BEITRA 29 443,217 442 396
Perpetual convertible bonds KA R ES 31 1,139,046 1,139,046
Reserves e (a) 156,148 1,977,682
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 1,738,411 3,559,124

The Statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the board of ~ AR B ZHBERNRER T _ZTF= A
directors on 27 March 2020. “t+tHEESTEHE-
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38. RARZHMBMRRKKFEEB
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
Note: MiEE -
(@) Reserve movement of the Company @ ARAZEEES
Share Share Convertible
premium option notes equity  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
ROREE BRERE BEfkE 2 EE wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL TEL TEL THL
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\F—A—A 4,172,526 118,735 90,392 (2,251,816) 2,129,837
Logs for the year and total comprehensive loss FNEERFNEZEBERE
for the year = = = (184,717) (184,717)
Shares issued upon exercise of share option BREETERRT RN 26,526 7,112) - - 19414
Equity-settled share option arrangements PARIEEE 2 BTG = 13,599 = (451) 13,148
Transfer of share option reserve upon the PR R HE 08 Uk o R
forfeiture or expiry of share options ERERERE = (22,212) = 22,212 =
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-NEF+ZA=+—HK
RZZ-N&—A—8 4,199,052 103,010 90,392 (2,414,772) 1,977,682
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss FREBREFR
for the year 2EBBAE - - - (132,519) (132,519)
Shares issued upon exercise of share option BRERTERETZRR 11,510 (3,133) - - 8,377
Equity-settled share option arrangements MIREEE 7 Bk = - 10,377 - - 10,377
Transfer of share option reserve upon the R RS R Kk B
forfeiture or expiry of share options ERERERE - (53,430) - 53,430 -
Redemption of equity component of convertible notes ErORRERESSD - - (90,392) 49,725 (40,667)
Dividend paid BTRE (1,667,102) - - - (1,667,102)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&
+=A=+-8 2,543,460 56,824 - (2,444,136) 156,148
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39 BERAREEEEREE
POLICIES
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in NEHBRAEREBEHEBEREEEE T (FEH
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does BT EASHERE AEEBWHEEZMR
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of EREBRRENES - AM A ABESEE
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures FTHIRTeE ST EHTEEUEIERE
to manage the Group's exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk, BASZzHmERR (BIEIEREE - FXEER
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the Group fREMERER) RHELEAMNEEE
employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. As the Group’s Efe-—fMms AEBHEAEERREIE
exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest risk and other ER AR AEFEAT ZTERRE (B
price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk are kept at a minimum level, the Group has HEk - A REREEMERRRE) R’
not used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group SRBNEEERREZNZENKE  iRE
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The REUE AT RLTAE sk EM T ELAES R A

most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are discussed below. e AREBWEBZERBITITEVBEIAE
RPA® - REEAX 2 HEXNPHRE K
T XA it o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets and liabilities in relation to cash at banks and bank
loans and convertible notes, details of which are disclosed in Notes 21, 26 and
27, respectively, to the financial statements. The Group has not used any financial
instrument to hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates. The exposure to interest
rates risk for the Group’s cash at banks, bank and other loans and convertible
notes are considered minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument (excluding investment in associates) will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Most of the sales and frading transactions are settled in RMB. Deposits invested
into various bank deposits are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$. As at the
end of the reporting period, foreign currencies were translated into HK$ at the
closing rate. As at 31 December 2019, cash and bank balances denominated

in RMB and domiciled outside the PRC amounted to HK$6,063,000 (2018:
HK$71,705,000), cash and bank balances denominated in US$ amounted

to HK$16,000 (2018: HK$17,000), cash and bank balances denominated

in EUR amounted to HK$7,000 (2018: Nil) and the remaining balance of
HK$643,176,000 (2018: HK$308,932,000) was mainly denominated in HK$
and domiciled outside the PRC or denominated in RMB and domiciled in the
PRC. The Group does not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with the cash and bank balances denominated in US$ given that HK$
is pegged to the US$. The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

31 December 2019 —E—hF+=ZA=+—H

39. KEREEEEREEK (&)

F == F
FERBRIDEFETEZATFESKIBERAE
SREMSANEREHMEREBS 2 BABRER -
AEEBEHEBEERBE PREITHRS
RITERRARBREE - BEFBED RN
R MIFE21 2627 H T - NREB I K fF
REMPE T AP EEF R LS - NEEH
BITHEES BITREGMERRATBRRERZ
I = 2 B 4 AR A S A o

S L B

EERREFETIAE (TEERE L QA
ZEREBE)ZATFEIARREERETHEEEX
BEHMESZRABR AEEREERFEH
BE - ABOHEEREERIUNARKLE
H-HERZRABRITZHEAHRAARE BT
RETTEHE - R & HAR - SNEE 12 Wy o BB =
MEABT R_ZE—hAhE+-_A=+—
H UAREFELFHRATPREIINZES
K 8B 17 45 #% 56,063,000 7T (— T — N\ &F:
71,705,000 70) * AETFEMNR E KR
1TH# 516,000 7T (ZF— )\ F : 17,0007
T0) * BT EHE IR & &R 1T & % 57,000
BIL(ZT—/)\F:#|&) - MEREE643,176,000
T (ZF— )\ :308,932,000/7T) B T &
IANAB T ELFRRF BREINRUARE
STEYFRRFBEREAN - BRBTEETH
8 A ANEBFRET ST HIR AR ELAZE
TrHEMBEE MRTEABEENEREER
B AEENBERFT —HETINERKRE
BHRE URBZEHRITZBER -
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to

foreign currency risk at year end date.

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$303,000 (2018:
HK$3,585,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other
receivable carried at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents included in
the face of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with

its customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to six months to its major trade
customers. The credit risk of other receivables arises from that borrowers fail to
repay loans on time. The Group has assessed the credit status of each borrower
and the value of the collaterals has been taken into account when calculating the
provision for impairment. The Group’s historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks in Hong
Kong and the PRC, therefore the directors consider that the credit risk for such

is minimal. The credit and investment policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the Group’s
exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at
cost, including trade debtors and hill receivable, deposits and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalent.

Impairment on trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other
receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.
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39, BIREAREEEEREE (&)

Shs LBy (4]
B Z T
TISHRESMERBRFEL B A ZIMNE

R EE -

WMARELBEHE 2B BIARE
RE RS, M #9303,0008 T (ZF—N
£F 13,585,000/ 7 ) ©

FERER
EERBREMETAZ X ZE 7 RERENM
BITAZGRBEITEER SAKERIH
BRRZER AEEBAZ 2 EERARTIE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other receivables are written

off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, significant

financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments, and the failure of a

debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade debtors and bill receivables
To measure the expected credit losses, trade debtors and bill receivables has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-_A=+—H

39 BBEREEREREE (&)

JEU R TR e FE M R4 A Ko ¥ & % HL At B KUK
BN A R TEHE AU E A T AMEE - S IE TR
HELZREFBEZFREE  (RHREHFE)E
BABABERYBERE  EH AR EE AR
EXMBER BORBRERLEBAR
RE B £R 8] 5T 3258 SRAET &

HART MRS FEYTXBEMBREE
A 9SRHBER E MR - B30 # BRI BT
R B & 18 o

FE W AR K % B W R 4B

R ERHEEEBR  BRERNEEKRRE
EREXAENEERRBRAMNAHRES
E

Less than More than
3 months 3 to 6 months 6 months
Gurrent past due past due past due Total
aHo R ks
B =R 2N REBBAEA &3t
31 December 2019 “E-NE+ZAZT-H
Expected loss rate HHERR 4% 5% 35% 29% 9%
Gross carrying amount BERE 113,239 70,69 21453 14,994 220,382
Loss allowance BEAE (5,094) (3,844) (7,516) (4,304 (20,758)
108,145 66,852 13,937 10,690 199,624
The movement of loss allowances for trade debtors and bill receivables during the FR-EKRERREWRER  BEREZE
year is as follows: m
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 January n—H—H 4,449 4,038
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 18,479 558
Deduction of previous impairment loss RN EE BB A RER
due to disposal of a subsidiary FRDREEBERS (2,186) -
Currency translation difference N =% 16 (147)
As at 31 December w+=—A=+—8 20,758 4,449
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=ZA=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables relating to accounts that are long overdue with

significant amounts, known insolvencies or non-response to collection activities,

they are assessed individually for impairment allowance. The Group recognised the

provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of

debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and considering the prevailing

economic conditions.

The movement of loss allowances for deposits and other receivables during the
year is as follows:

39. BIEAREEBEREE (&)

Bk HEbERREA
HERABYEAXENENEGRTEE
WRORBHIRR P A B 2 %% & E Al B W kIR
S (@B AR ER A - AR BB EEK
ERRZEERRSE - MR RIKREIRIAZ
Al BEME - W BIREEEAN - RAHE
EERRE-

FR HEREBERFRCERBEGES
(I

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

As at 1 January Rn—H—H 24,014 7,206
Impairment loss recognised BERERRESE 64,004 17,180
Currency translation difference PE N ZER 148 (372)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 88,166 24,014
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Assets carried at amortised cost
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment 10ss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

I, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals and bank loans, also in
respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by
carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day to day and week to
week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 3 months projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly.
Net cash requirements are compared to available funds in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available funds are expected

to be sufficient over the lookout period. The Group maintains cash and short-
term bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 90 days to 365 days at
a minimum. Funding for longer term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of borrowings and the ability to sell longer term financial assets.
The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade
customers.
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet

in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Apart from the non-current bank loan disclosed in Notes 26 for the financial
statements, the maturity profile of the Group’s major financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is within one year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted payments
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.

81} 3% 6 2% Bl 53
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The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the TRIIWTEREREGEORMRAESHRE (B
year, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest RBRERBEGHOREFEZFENR) 2FHRE
payments computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be HVEHERAEBARERERZHKRER
required to pay: By
2019
ZE-nf
More than 1 year More than 2 years Total
but less than but less than Over contractual ~ Carrying amount
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows  at 31 December
“t+=A
BB-F BBME EHRERE Br=[
-#R BYRWE BYREF BBEE EL] ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET Ti#n Ti#n
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTENBER
Bank and other loans ROREMER 63,150 63,150 1,319,150 - 1,445,450 1,256,000
Lease liabiltes REERE 25,001 21,239 60,392 195,816 302,448 184,638
Derivative financial liabilities fTERBak
Options Hig 2,965 - - - 2,965 2,965
2018
—E-N\E
More than 1 year More than 2 years Total
but less than but less than Qver contractual  Carrying amount
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows  at 31 December
R+=A
BB BBmE i’ﬁﬁémg =1+-H
—Er  BSRmE  BIRLF BARE 2% ZREE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TAR TAER TER TET TET TET
Derivative financial assets fTEBKEE
Forward share purchase contract REREEEAR 22,780 = = = 22,780 22,780
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTENBEE
Convertible notes (liability component) TRREE (8EHSH) 38,900 38,900 1,125,682 - 1,203,482 819,602
Bank and other loans ROREMER 40,03 - - - 40,03 40,023
Derivative financial liabilities fTERBEE
Options Hig = 2772 = = 2772 2772
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value risk and disclosures
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group held certain derivative financial
instruments which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further
detailed in Notes 13, 16 and 30 to the financial statements. In respect of the
derivative financial instruments, their fair values were measured based on a
valuation technique for which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are based on significant unobservable data (the “Level 3 fair
value hierarchy"). During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
transfers among the levels (2018: Nil).

In respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 which are carried in the financial statements at other than fair value,

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of their respective fair
values as these financial instruments are due to be received or settled within one
year. Accordingly, no disclosure of the fair values of these financial instruments is
made.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position

as capital, for capital management purposes. The amount of capital (total

equity plus total debt) as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$4,500,233,000 (2018: HK$4,794,087,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
forecast strategic investment opportunities.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified as financial asset/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in notes 16 and 30 to
the financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities previously measured
at amortised cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9, respectively.
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31 December 2019 —FE—AF+-_A=+—H

41. DIVIDEND M. RE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEX) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET

Special dividend of HK$0.148 (2018 Nil) R IR BT AR0.14878 7T

per share (ZE—N\F : &) 1,667,102 =

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 has inevitably
created certain impact towards our staff, suppliers and customers,
particularly in China. The outbreak of COVID-19 is a new emerging risk.
In a baseline scenario, the outbreak should be contained but led to
certain impact in the operation of our sports centres, sports parks and
our newly acquired businesses, especially ice-skating rinks, suspension or
postponement of a number of sports competitions and events in the first
quarter of 2020. The Group expects that the facilities and competitions will
resume their normal operations in the second quarter of 2020. The Group
has carried out necessary measures to control its costs and keep our staff
in safety and will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operation
results of the Group.
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cularsfofgStock{of{Properties

VESASPAA

Approximate Site

Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
BEA 4 #h E &

NE rEEER HE (F7FXK)

Guangling Xincheng, Yangzhou, 70% Medium to long term 23,334

Jiangsu Province of the PRC,

northwest to the intersection of

Binshui Road and Jianmin Road

RETERE 70% I E K Y 23,334

5 N T JE B #
BKEE EiER KR X AR
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the AT AEBBEREVRFEZEENR

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited EEHBERERAEME  HEEEASE
financial statements of the Group, is set out below: BB EEZYERE
RESULTS EF

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1T-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-hE ZE-N\F ZB-tf ZE2-RF ZB-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR THET AL TEL TAET

REVENUE e 625,004 1134584 612,467 552,208 147,355
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB AER,/ (BB) 834,137 94,723 (108,863) 112,163 (182,551)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE R BIHEZ B A
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EEFERET/ (BB) 834,366 76,982 (109,666) 103,630 (179,657)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
31 December
+=ZA=+-8
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E2-RE ZE-\F ZB-tf ZB-RE -2-IF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TAL TET TR ThET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 3671,737 3867676 3793409 3525815 3,536,271
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE 1,194,828 1193328 1,351,961 1,580,745 781546
CURRENT LIABILITIES EI=RE 327,551 290,979 296,774 635,634 320,727
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 867,277 902,349 1,055,187 945,111 460,819
TOTAL ASSETS BESE 4,866,565 5061004 5145370 5106560 4,317,817
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITES ~ BERZERZEAE 4539014 4770025 4848596 4470926 3,997,090
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS AR RIERHE A

OF THE COMPANY R 3,021,297 3,891,137 4,003,132 3,718,317 3,741,854
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In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

“‘Board”

[EFg]

“BVI"
[REELES]

“China” or “PRC”

[ B

»

“close associate(s)

[EEHBEA
“Company” or “Viva China”

[ARRA® K [FER+E]

”

‘connected transaction(s)
[BAER 5 ]

“Directors”

[E%]

“GEM”
[GEM |

“GEM Listing Rules”
[GEM_E T 43 Bl |

“Group”
[RE&EHE ]

‘HKS$"
Biopdl

“Hong Kong"
(&5 ]

EXRFHRN BXEAZBEAEIN THH
AR NXES 2 HE:

the board of Directors
Exg

the British Virgin Islands
REBRAES

the People's Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
PEARHEME RAFHEMS  TEEEE PEARKFNBEIRFIER
THE R A

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules

H B GEM_E 48 B AT iR T RO A R &

Viva China Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8032)
FEAFBEEZERERAR RASHSTMKIZERAR  EEBITRG
PRGEM T (A7 5% - 8032)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the GEM Listing Rules
BB GEM L AR BIPTE TOR &

the directors of the Company

ARABES

GEM of the Stock Exchange
B4t 22 Pt GEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
GEM=E 77 i #% Al

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRARREKE LR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong

B BEREAEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PREFBRRITITRE
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“Li Ning Co”
(== d ]

‘LN Group”
(T=5E]

‘LN Share(s)"
=M

“Reporting Period”
[R5 8 |

‘RMB’
TAR® ]

“SFO”
58 7% R AR 151

“Share(s)”
R ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A% 3 |

“State Council”

[B 56 |

)

“Stock Exchange’
[ B 22 BT |

‘Us$”
=l

”O/ "
(o]

[% |

Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code; 2331)

FEBRAG-RASHEESEIMKLZBRAA - A2 BITFERMD A5
R EMR £ (AR A5% - 2331)

Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries

ZFERFREMB AR

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
FERARAPEREEC10E T KRG

the period of 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
TE-AFE—A—HBE_Z-NAFE+-_A=+—HHM

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR HBEERY

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EREDIFET1 B EF LG &

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company

ARAFIPEARFREESE L2 TiBAR

holder(s) of Share(s)
B FE A

State Council of the People’s Republic of China
R A R H A0 E B B

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARGMBRALQR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
En ENBERBEAEEES

per cent
Al

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G PR A 7]



Room 3602-06, 36th Floor, China Merchants Tower

VIvA EHINA Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED FBTrEEF 20057 =EH O I8 HAEI361E3602-06F

3—'5 ﬂ.r EF' @] }?E Hﬁ ﬁ BE /Z\\ ﬁ.l http://www.vivachina.hk

C. +

o |~ GELEE
FSC responsible sources Carlngcompany

FSc™ 4. Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Socil Service
meoy  FSC™ C004888 S




	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Business Review
	Financial Review
	Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
	Particulars of Stock of Properties
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Glossary
	Back Cover



